il ol

Cabazon Water District | 1

December 15, 2020 FAC Meeting Agenda

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street » P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
AGENDA

Meeting Location:
Cabazon Water District Office
14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230
Teleconference:
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, December 15, 2020 - 5:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER,
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report
e Balance Sheet
e Profit and Loss Budget Comparison
2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on specific agenda items, please
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

ADJOURNMENT

ADA Compliance Issues
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section §4954.2, if special assistance is needed to
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.

Business (351) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



2] ILee

Cabazon Water District | 1

December 15, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Meeting Location:

Teleconference:
Dial-in #; 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188
Email: info@cabazonwater.org

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, December 15, 2020 - 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL
CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.

1. Approval of:
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants approved by the committee on
November 17, 2020
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of November 17, 2020

2. Warrants - None
3. Awards of Contracts — None

UPDATES
1. Update: San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Update
(by Director Israel / Director Morris)
2. Update: Manager’s Operations Report (by GM Louie)

Business (351) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



2|1t

Cabazon Water District | 2

December 15, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

CLOSED SESSION:

(1) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Potential Litigation (1 case).

NEW BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Action: Report of the Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2019-2020, as
Presented by Fedak and Brown, LLP. (by Fedak & Brown — Byerrum)
OLD BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Action: NBS Water Rate Study Review and Discussion (by NBS)
NEW BUSINESS
2. Discussion/Action: Reimbursement to Board Directors for taking COVID Test related to District
business. (by Director Wargo)
3. Discussion/Action: Transfer of funds from the District's General Account to the District’s LAIF
(Savings) Account. (by AGM Lemus)
4. Discussion/Action: Non-business Hour Water Emergency Response Fee Review (by GM Louie)
PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3) minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS

1. Future Agenda ltems
The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.
e Suggested agenda items from the Public.
o Suggested agenda items from Management.
e Suggested agenda items from Board Members.

2. Management Comments

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



] tcete

Cabazon Water District | 3

December 15, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

MISCELLANEOUS

1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

a. Finance & Audit Workshop ~ Tuesday — January 19, 2021, 5:00 pm

b. Regular Board Meeting - Tuesday - January 19, 2021, 6:00 pm

c. Personnel Committee — None

d. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance - Alliance Meeting - Wednesday -

ADJOURNMENT
ADA Compliance Issues

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a

Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



S

Cabazon Water District | 1

November 17, 2020 FAC Meeting Minutes

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street + P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES

Meeting Location:
Cabazon Water District Office
14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230

Teleconference:
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, November 17, 2020 - 5:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,
ROLL CALL

Director Wargo - Present
Director Sanderson - Present

Calvin Louie (General Manager) - Present
Elizabeth Lemus, Board Secretary - Present
Cindy Byerrum, Financial Consultant - Absent

*Note: This meeting was recorded by the District -

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report
e Balance Sheet
o  Profit and Loss Budget Comparison
Main Reports:

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



Cabazon Water District | 2

November 17, 2020 FAC Meeting Minutes

* Balance Sheet - depicts what the District owns and what the District owes.

* Profit & Loss ~ shows monthly revenue and expenses.

* Profit & Loss Budget Performance — shows how the District is performing against the budget, and the condition of
the District fiscal year to date.

Balance Sheet:

The District's combined Cash with Chase and LAIF balance was $1,222,343 at month end.
The District's total liabilities were approximately $893,582 at month end.

Profit and Loss: - Year to date is 33% of the year

4. Commodity Sales: This is variable income from water consumption charges. YTD
(Year to Date) is trending above budget at 53% due to higher consumption in the summer months.

5. DHPO Contract: This the variable charge to the Desert Hills Premium Outlets (DHPO), which is segregated until
their contract expires in December 2022. YTD is trending above budget at 41% due to higher consumption
in the summer months.

9. New Account Fees: This account is the fees to set up a new utility account. These fees are currently at $20 for
residential accounts and $65 for construction accounts. These fees are hard to predict and can trend under
or over budget during the year.

32. Workers Compensation: The district makes worker's compensation installment payments in the first part of the
fiscal year. By November, workers compensation will be paid in full through 5/1/21. YTD is at 60% due to
timing of workers comp payments.

46. Engineering Services: This account includes the engineering costs for District activities. YTD trending above
target at 45% due to an unexpected amount of new development and the tank recoating project.

90. Grant & Loan Processing Fee: This account includes the Loan fee from BNY. YTD is at 0% due to timing of
payments.

94. Miscellaneous: This account includes other non-operating expenses. YTD is over budget because of Covid
testing for employees preformed in October.

101. Meter Replacements & Other Capital: Budget in this account includes meter replacements and fire hydrant
relocation project. YTD is at 174% due to purchase of new A/C unit ($20.4K) and for rehabilitation on Well
#1 (340.5K).

*Note: The Board asked if the Meter Replacement expenses could be separated out from the “Other
Capital” expenses, just for clarity.

As of October 31st, the fiscal year-to-date net income is $66,417.
2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on specific agenda items, please
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



”/ Wl

Cabazon Water District | 3

November 17, 2020 FAC Meeting Minutes

ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn at 17:16 hr. made by Director Wargo and 2" by Director Sanderson.

Director Wargo - Aye
Director Sanderson - Aye

Meeting adjourned at 17:16 hr. on Tuesday, November 17, 2020

Robert Lynk, Board Chair Elizabeth Lemus, Secretary
Board of Directors Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District Cabazon Water District

ADA Compliance Issues
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to

participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



| \uM

Cabazon Water District | 1

November 17, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MINUTES

Meeting Location:

Teleconference:
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188
Email: info@cabazonwater.org

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, November 17, 2020 - 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL

Director Martin Sanderson - Present
Director Diana Morris - Present
Director Sarah Wargo - Present
Director Maxine Israel - Absent
Director Robert Lynk - Present

Calvin Louie, General Manager - Present

Elizabeth Lemus, Board Secretary - Present

Cindy Byerrum, Financial Consultant - Present

Steve Anderson, Best Best & Krieger Law Firm - Absent
Joseph Ortiz, Best Best & Krieger Law Firm - Absent

Note: This meeting was recorded by the District -

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no

separate discussion of these items. If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



1. Approval of:

Cabazon Water District
November 17, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants approved by the committee on

October 20, 2020

b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of October 20, 2020

Motion to approve following consent calendar item(s) (a.) Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Minutes/Warrants of October 20, 2020, and (b.) Regular Board Meeting Minutes/ Warrants of October 20, 2020,
made by Director Wargo and 2" by Director Sanderson.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Morris - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Israel - Absent
Director Lynk - Aye

2. Warrants - None

3. Awards of Contracts -

b.
1. Update:
2. Update:

Well No. 1 Rehabilitation & Re-equipping Project - Legend Pump and Well Service Inc. (per
the October 20, 2020 Board Meeting)

Tank No. 1 Rehabilitation & Re-equipping Project - Simpson Sandblasting and Special
Coatings Inc. (per the October 20, 2020 Board Meeting)

San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Update
(by Director Israel / Director Morris)

Manager’s Operations Report (by GM Louie)

Edison PSPS Event predicted for 10/26-10/27/2020

Engie Alternative Power meeting with management to be rescheduled.
Preconstruction meeting held with Krieger and Stewart (engineers),
Legend Pump and Well, and Simpson Sandblasting and Special
Coatings in regards to upcoming Well 1/Tank 1 rehabilitation projects.
COVID-19: No changes to the District's current operations (still closed
to the public, etc.). City of Banning now closing their lobby to the public.
Tesla Alternative Power: waiting on a bid from them,

SCADA failure at Tank #2.

Public Education Video: some unexpected issues uploading to District
website; GM to find alternative method for uploading videos.

52396 Esperanza Ave. ~ District is currently working on serving water to
property. Customer signed a payment plan and is making payments
towards water service.

Dolores Ave. - working with customer and engineers regarding
installing a new service and fire hydrant(s) that are needed.

50100 Main St. Yard - District planning on occupying by the end of
March 2021.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

2

cl/ W



NEW BUSINESS

of

3

\BY)
Cabazon Water District
November 17, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Chick-Fil-A development on Seminole Ave. — K&S supplied their
comments regarding the plan drawings to Chick-Fil-A’s
developers/engineers; awaiting response.

Accent Computer Solutions ~ GM authorizing the purchase of an iDrac
system (remote control system) for Accent to be able to remotely turn
on/off the District's server, etc., to save District staff time from having to
drive out to the District every time the server is shut off (due to a power
outage, misc. reason, efc.).

1. Discussion/Action: Customer Concern: Elizabeth Miffieton, Development Project on Hattie Ave.

Customer explained that she is concerned with the $30k engineering
deposit; it is a lot to pay upfront, in addition to the other estimated
District expenses. Looking for some kind of payment plan, pay-as-you-
go plan, etc.

The General Manager offered to arrange a meeting with Ms. Miffleton to
see if there was a possibility of the Board approving a lesser deposit
upfront.

The customer agreed to this, and expressed she would like to meet as
soon as possible.

No motions made; the customer is going to meet with the General
Manager to see if something can be arranged regarding her property
development project.

2. Discussion/Action: CalMutuals JPRIMA Ballot Selection for Jim Byerrum (only candidate
running) - (by GM)

* The General Manager explained that only one candidate was up for

election, and he needed the Board's approval. The Board gave it.

Motion to approve the CalMutuals JPRIMA Ballot Selection for Jim Byerrum made by Director Sanderson and

2 by Director Wargo.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Morris - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Israel - Absent
Director Lynk - Aye

3. Discussion/Action: Thetford Web Development - (by GM)

¢ The GMis currently unhappy with Thetford Web Development's current

service, and would like to shop around for another website host.

= Director Lynk explained to the GM that it was an administrative action to

shop around for a competitive bidder (the GM was free to do so
without Board approval), but if a new contract was obtained, it would
then go to the Board for approval.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



Cabazon Water District
November 17, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

o No action was required or taken at this time.

*No roll call vote made regarding this item; the General Manager just announced that he would like to look
for a new vendor.

OLD BUSINESS

1. Discussion/Action: NBS Water Rate Study and Adoption of Rates (Adoption of adjusted
monthly meter charges and tiered water rates).

e A 3% increase over the next five years was planned, with a 30% fixed
charge (monthly meter charge), and a 70% variable charge (water
usage charge).

* |t was explained that the higher water users would pay more, but for
residential customers that use approximately 1400 cubic feet or less,
there would be a savings compared to the current structure.

e There was some discussion about middle range water users, the
increase in cost for higher users, and the fact that lower water users
should not subsidize the cost for higher water users.

e Mrs. Kerri Mariner and Miss Kayla Mariner were the only public to call
and protest against the proposed 30/70% water rate adjustment.

Motion to approve the 30% fixed 70% variable water rate structure, as presented in the NBS report, made by
Director Sanderson and 2" by Director

Director Sanderson - (ves / no/ abstain)
Director Morris - (ves / no / abstain)
Director Wargo - (ves / no / abstain)
Director Israel - (ves / no/ abstain)

Director Lynk - (ves / no / abstain)

No second. Motion failed.

The Board expressed that it would like to review the options again at the December 15t Regular Board
Meeting and make a decision about moving forward (whether to go through the whole Prop 218 noticing
requirements before voting, or to just drop this item entirely). If the Board would like to adopt a new water
rate structure, notices will have to be re-distributed, and the Board will have to make a decision after a
certain time period from mailing the notices.

2. Discussion/Action: CUSI UMS Billing System Software Quote to Upgrade - (by AGM)

e Itwas explained that while the current billing system will eventually need to
be upgraded (which will be rather costly), at this point in time the meter
reading machines/capabilities are the most important since one of the meter
reading machines is currently broken and the technology has become
obsolete.

» A meter reading app for smartphones has been proposed by CUSI, and the
cost is $150 per month for two smart phone meter reading apps ($75 per
phone app).

Business (951) 849-4442  FAX (951) 849-2519

i/ ke
4



ll/\uu

Cabazon Water District | §

November 17, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Motion to approve the CUSI Meter Reading Apps (to be downloaded onto two of the District’s work
smartphones) made by Director Wargo and 2" by Director Sanderson.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Morris - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Israel - Absent
Director Lynk - Aye

3. Discussion/Action: Name the Water Dinosaur contest - (by GM and Director Wargo)

*  No response from Dollar General regarding a donation. In-N-Out Burger did,
however, sent several meal gift card donations to the District.

e ltwas decided that the District could move forward with the donations it had.
The General Manager requested that the target date for this competition be
moved to Easter/Spring Break time, since the weather should be nicer. No
objections to this were voiced by either Board or Public.

No motions were made. It was the consensus of the Board to proceed as
discussed.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3) minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS

1. Future Agenda Items

The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

o Suggested agenda items from the Public.
e Suggested agenda items from Management.
e Suggested agenda items from Board Members.
o Rate Study: to review proposals during the December Meeting (Lynk, et all).

2. Management Comments
Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board

and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519



Cabazon Water District
November 17, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

MISCELLANEQUS
1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

a. Finance & Audit Workshop - Tuesday — December 15, 2020, 5:00 pm

b. Regular Board Meeting - Tuesday — December 15, 2020, 6:00 pm

c. Personnel Committee —~ None

d. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance - Alliance Meeting —~ Wednesday - Nov. 25, 2020

ADJOURNMENT

Motion to adjourn at 19:58 hr. made by Director Morris and 2" by Director Sanderson.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Morris - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Israel - Absent
Director Lynk - Aye

Meeting adjourned at 19:58 hr. on Tuesday, November 17, 2020

Robert Lynk, Board Chair Elizabeth Lemus, Secretary
Board of Directors Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District Cabazon Water District

ADA Compliance Issues

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time wil assist staff
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

13/ WL

6



Cabazon Water District

Balance Sheet
November 30, 2020

1 ASSETS
2 Current Assets
3 Checking/Savings
4 General Bank Account-Chase
5 Payroll Bank Account-Chase
6 Trust Account-Chase (Cust. Deposits)
7 Local Petty Cash
8 Total Checking/Savings
9 Accounts Receivable
10 LAIF
11 Bank of NY Trustee Accounts
12 Prepaid Expenses
13 Inventory
14 Total Current Assets
15 Fixed Assets
16 Total Fixed Assets
17 Accumulated Depreciation
18 Net Fixed Assets

19 TOTAL ASSETS
20 LIABILITIES & EQUITY

21 Liabilities

22 Current Liabilities

23 Accounts Payable

24 Other Current Liabilities

25 Customer Deposits - Co 1
26 Customer Deposits - Co 2
27 Total Customer Deposits

28 Accrued Vacation Pay

29 DWR-HS Payable - Current
30 Current Portion Zion's Bank Loan
31 Accrued Payroll

32 Accrued Payroll Taxes

33 Accrued Interest

34 Accrued Expenses

35 Total Current Liabilities

36 Long Term Liabilities

37 DWR-H Loan Payable (2026)

38 Zion's Bank Long Term (2023)
39 RCEDA Loan Payable

40 Total Long Term Liabilities

41 Total Liabilities

42 Total Equity

43 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Nov 30, 20

$ 349,551
35,309

6,262

100

391,223
214,517
843,648
56,872
19,313
94,015

1,637,990

13,130,969
(5,993,048)

7,137,921

$ 8,775,911

$ 29,969

7,450
4,386

11,836
9.437
40,763
82,872
11,311
838
3,647
3,000

203,965

238,187
172,026
300,000

710,213

914,178
7,861,733

$ 8,775,911

I 4/ Wl



/ 5/ Wl

Cabazon Water District
Profit & Loss
July - November 30, 2020
FY 20/21
Nov-20 Current YTD Budget YTD (42%)

1 REVENUES

2 OPERATING INCOME

3 Base Rate - Water Bills $ 76,954 $ 381,715 939,800 41%

4 Commodity Sales 30,541 205,781 329,700 62%

5 DHPO Contract 15,069 83,199 168,000 50%

6 Fire Sales - Water Bills 461 2,305 5,900 39%

7 Fire Flow Income - 1,710 - 0%

8 Penalty Fees - Water Bills 243 2,345 31,000 8%

9 New Account Fees - Water Bills 145 1,055 1,600 66%
10 Returned Check Fees - 60 500 12%
11 Basic Facilities Fee 26,768 40,152 - 0%
12 Stand By Fees - Tax Revenue - - 113,600 0%
13 TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 150,180 718,321 1,590,100 45%
14 NON-OPERATING INCOME
15 Property Taxes - 787 60,900 1%
16 Cell Tower Lease Income - 10,645 25,600 42%
17 Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income - - 7,300 0%
18 Interest Income - 1,526 19,600 8%
19 TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME - 12,958 113,400 11%
20 TOTAL REVENUES 150,180 731,279 1,703,500 43%
21 EXPENSES
22 PAYROLL & BENEFITS
23 Directors Fees 900 4,600 15,000 31%
24 Management & Customer Service
25 Customer Accounts 3,924 22,448 54,800 41%
26 Business Admin Manager 5,896 32,343 77,700 42%
27 Office Assistant 779 3,764 7,800 48%
28 General Manager 7,154 38,034 89,200 43%
29 Total Management & Customer Service 17,752 97,765 229,500 43%
30 Field Workers 8,908 53,110 123,000 43%
31 Employee Benefits Expense
32 Workers Compensation 928 4,636 6,200 75%
33 Employee Health Care 12,088 41,662 94,800 44%
34 Pension 5,041 28,909 77,400 37%
35 Total Employee Benefits Expense 18,057 75,207 178,400 42%
36 Payroll Taxes 2,103 12,458 33,200 38%
37 TOTAL PAYROLL & BENEFITS 47,720 243,139 579,100 42%



38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

48
49
50
51
52
53

54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63

65
66

67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75

76

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

Facilities, Wells, T&D

Lab Fees

Meters

Utilities - Wells

Line R&M Materials

Well Maintenance

Security

Engineering Services

Facilities, Wells, T&D - Other
Total Facilities, Wells, T&D
Utilities - Office

Electricity

Gas

Telephone

Trash Pickup & Office Cleaning

Total Utilities - Office
Office Expenses
Water Billing System
Supplies & Equipment

Copier Lease & Printing Supplies

Dues & Subscriptions
Postage

Printing & Publications
Computer Services

Office Storage

Air Conditioning Servicing
CA Water Systems Alliance
Office Expenses - Other

Total Office Expenses
Support Services
Temporary Labor
Financial Audit
Accounting
Legal Services
Bank/Payroll Service
Website Support
General Liability Insurance

Total Support Services

‘Lz[\u(_(

Cabazon Water District
Profit & Loss
July - November 30, 2020
FY 20/21
Nov-20 Current YTD Budget YTD (42%)
153 1,806 8,900 20%
- 50 4,800 1%
4,013 38,842 96,600 40%
181 4,534 72,500 6%
1,395 3,544 37,800 9%
1,516 7,931 24,800 32%
9,934 35,162 56,300 62%
506 1,865 12,200 15%
17,698 93,733 313,900 30%
764 7,583 15,800 48%
46 122 1,100 11%
842 4,230 10,200 41%
374 2,270 4,600 49%
2,026 14,205 31,700 45%
177 886 2,100 42%
378 1,335 10,100 13%
344 1,552 5,000 31%
- - 1,300 0%
785 3,524 8,100 44%
- 292 6,300 5%
3,072 17,746 36,800 48%
- 2,500 6,200 40%
418 2,090 5,100 41%
- 208 2,500 8%
- 136 2,100 6%
5,174 30,269 85,600 35%
- 10,563 12,600 84%
5,011 7,641 23,000 33%
3,000 15,000 35,000 43%
7,271 17,485 71,000 25%
434 2,117 5,200 41%
- 150 900 17%
2,075 10,374 26,100 40%
17,791 63,329 173,800 36%



h/lwu

Cabazon Water District
Profit & Loss
July - November 30, 2020
FY 20/21
Nov-20 Current YTD Budget YTD (42%)
77 Training/Travel 12 283 4,500 6%
78 Other Fees/SWRCB 160 1,716 8,900 19%
79 Service Tools & Equipment
80 Shop Supplies and Small Tools 1,559 3,680 9,300 40%
81 Vehicle Fuel 144 3,788 16,300 23%
82 Employee Uniforms - - 1,800 0%
83 Safety 1,290 1,290 500 258%
84 Tractor Expenses - - 3,700 0%
85 Equipment Rental - 1,450 2,000 73%
86 Service Trucks - R&M 1,148 3,544 14,500 24%
87 Water Ops Phone & Internet 294 1,174 4,800 24%
88 Total Service Tools & Equipment 4,435 14,926 52,900 28%
89 NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
90 Grant & Loan Processing Fee - 1,325 1,400 95%
91 DWR Interest Expense - 4,121 7,900 52%
92 DHPO Interest Expense - 3,167 5,800 55%
93 Bad Debt Expense - - 1,200 0%
94 Miscellaneous 115 1,674 1,100 152%
95 TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 115 10,288 17,400 59%
96 TOTAL EXPENSES 95,131 471,890 1,267,800 37%
97 TOTAL INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL & GSA 55,049 259,389 435,700 60%
98  DHPO Capacity Credit (1,750) (8,750) (21,000) 42%
99 CAPITAL PROJECTS
100 Main Street Improvements (Icehouse Imp.) - (4,834) (20,000) 24%
101 Meter Replacements & Other Capital - (20,399) (35,000) 58%
102 Well & Tank Repairs - (40,568) (465,000) 9%
103 TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS - (65,801) (520,000) 13%
104 DEBT - PRINCIPAL
105 Debt Service Principal - DWR - (20,224) (40,800) 50%
106 Debt Service Principal - DHPO (Zion) - (41,436) (82,900) 50%
107 TOTAL DEBT - PRINCIPAL - (61,660) (123,700) 50%
108 SGMA/GSA (1,928) (5,390) (35,000) 15%
109 NET INCOME / (LOSS) $ 51,371 $ 117,788 $ (264,000)

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.
The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows.

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States are not included.



New Business

1.Discussion/Action Item:

Audited Financial Statements for FY 19-20 as
presented by Fedak and Brown LLP

18\l



p
y .
r r'.. 4

o,
y .
2 A

Cabazon Water Iflstl}lbi\
Annual Fmanci*;d Report
For the Fiscal Years Eni\le&Juneﬁﬂ 2020 and 2019




7'0/ WY

Cabazon Water District
Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cabazon Water District
Board of Directors as of June .3[:)'_",'2020

, E]'é.i:}ted/ Q 5 Current

Name Title ,&ﬁpojﬁtéd  Term
Robert Lynk Chair @ Eletled 1202017~ 122021
Maxine Israel Vice Cihan \ Eiected 12/2019 - 12/2023
Diana Morris ol \\ Elected 122019 - 12/2023
Sarah Wargo D“‘Ia-ctox Flected  12/2017 - 12/2021
Martin Sandersfn Wpirdttor Blected  12/2017 - 12/2021

y Wil
b y |
Vg ,'I

, W
o ',/

Cabazon Water District
Calvin Louie, General Manager
14618 Broadway Street
P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230
(951) 849-4442



Cabazon Water District

Annual Finanm@ep t

For the Fiscal Years Ended 0,2020 and 2019

2\



12
\le

Cabazon Water District
Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Table of Contents
Page No.

Table of Contents i
Introductory Section
Letter of Transmittal 1-3
Financial Section
Independent Auditor’s Report 4-5
Management’s Discussion and Analysis /\ 6-10
Basic Financial Statements: y . X

Statements of Net Position y Q. 11

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Po,sitlon ) N 12

Statements of Cash Flows X 13-14

Notes to the Financial Statements 14 " 4 15-32
Report on Internals Controls and Comphance § A \ <
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control‘Ov&r i manmangportmg

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based cm The: Aud}fs of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Govment Auki\rr'r)g Standards 33-34



7/93) el

Introductory Se@&






December 15, 2020

Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District

Introduction &

Itis our pleasure to submit the Annual Financial Report for the @gbazon Water District for the fiscal years

ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, following guidelines set forthdy the Govetfimental Accounting Standards

Board. District staff prepared this financial report. TheDfstrict is ultimzitéy responsible for both the

accuracy of the data and the completeness and the fairne§s of prqsé}ﬁation, including all disclosures in this

financial report. We believe that the data presented is acgucaie in all material respects. This report is

designed in a manner that we believe necessary (!‘.Q__ nhance‘ygﬁr understanding of the District’s financial
@

position and activities. \\ﬁ;-:;“_*m__\ .

Ve . A .
This report is organized into two sections: (1) In\{hdlm{o i (2) Financial. The Introductory section
offers general information about the Distfigtis orgah\i fition and current District activities, and reports on a
summary of significant financial resu-_ljs.’ Thé,-fzinancr section includes the Independent Auditor’s Report,
Management’s Discussion and Agalysis Qf the DistRpt’s basic financial statements, and the District’s

audited basic financial statements @i@-_a{o(_‘:ioﬁi‘p‘&nyin?notes.

Generally Accepted Acqgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*%l{rirﬁt@lgs (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overviewfand analysls to‘#iccompany the financial statements in the form of the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A”aﬁd‘_\should_,&;é read in conjunction with it. The District’s MD&A can be found
immediately after the Indepergent Afiditor’s Report.

District Structure and Leadership

The Cabazon Water District is an independent special district, which operates under the authority of
Division 12 of the California Water Code. The District was formed in 1954 and is governed by a five-
member Board of Directors, elected at-large from within the District’s service area. The General
Manager administers the day-to-day operations of the District in accordance with policies and procedures
established by the Board of Directors. The District employs six (6) full-time employees organized into
two departments. The District’s Board of Directors meets each month. Meetings are publicly noticed and
citizens are encouraged to attend.

The District provides water service to approximately 1,000 customers within its 7,040 acre service area,
located in the eastern portion of Riverside County. The District encompasses the unincorporated town of
Cabazon and some of the unincorporated areas of Riverside County, California.

ZS/ Lt



District Services

Residential customers are approximately 97% of the District’s customer base and consume approximately
90% of the water produced annually by the District. The District currently has a total of four groundwater
wells with a maximum production capacity of 3,160 gallons per minute.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The District office is located in the unincorporated town of Cabazon in Riverside County. Regional
growth has been slow to recover from the continuing effects of the dissolution of Redevelopment
Agencies throughout the State.

Internal Control Structure

District management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the internal control structure
that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal control
structure also ensures adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principlesy The District’s internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these gbjectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control shp{ﬂd-.ﬁat_ exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits require estimates and jidgments by management.
Budgetary Control & \\ ::

The District Board of Directors annually adopts an opé _'éting ‘aqr}"’capital budget prior to the new fiscal
year. The budget authorizes and provides the basis for repgrting and control of financial operations and
accountability for the District’s enterprise operations and'\:g\_ip;tal projects. The budget and reporting
treatment applied to the District is consistent\ﬁthfﬂl‘?-..agcnhl:basis of accounting and the financial
statement basis. o

A z & - >
. - S
Investment Policy L5 v

_"J/.". ".I' A \ \
The Board of Directors has adop '__-’an inyﬁ's{npent ﬁg]:_icy that conforms to state law, District ordinance
and resolutions, prudent money m 'age_gfgntg-’a.&[t_[fce““prudent person” standards. The objective of the
Investment Policy is safety,_l,'L_qui,cjity,\ahd_:_yield. District funds are invested in the State Treasurer’s Local
Agency Investment Fund?,@&‘ihsﬁgbt_\ioﬁaj\%gvings and checking accounts.
Water Rates and Dist-‘i"\.ié'/t\Revenué\S“l."\,_ »

4

District policy direction\"eu}u\res thf_ai;fall revenues from user charges and surcharges generated from
District customers must sup‘pq!‘s___alﬁ.--District operations including capital project funding. Accordingly,
water rates are reviewed on an‘@nnual basis. Water rates are user charges imposed on customers for
services and are the primary component of the District’s revenue. Water rates are composed of a
commodity (usage) charge and a fixed meter standby charge.

Audit and Financial Reporting

State Law and debt covenants require the District to obtain an annual audit of its financial statements by
an independent certified public accountant. The accounting firm of Fedak & Brown LLP has conducted
the audit of the District’s financial statements. Their unmodified Independent Auditor’s Report appears
in the Financial Section.

2,(.0/ \W



Other References

More information is contained in the Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements found in the Financial Section of the report.

Acknowledgements

Preparation of this report was accomplished by the combined efforts of District staff. We appreciate the
dedicated efforts and professionalism that these staff members contribute to the District. We would also
like to thank the members of the Board of Directors for their continued support in planning and
implementation of the Cabazon Water District’s fiscal policies.

Respectfully submitted,

Calvin Louie L7
General Manager
\.(..I. .\~..
/,'- y <
r 4 <
V 4 ; >
"‘-\ ™, r
iy
\".
“.: » \-‘ :\ n ._\.. :
L @ ¢
i A -
L { e y
pre— V4
£ X .'\\ \\, L
A\
s o) A
r Ia¥ ] a
y A \
h ., ?
QS
/ o “ . \.‘
y 4 b <
& N
U |
O ]
O y
% .\.‘ _/_,r'"
< -"'__.-"
"

9,7/ e



< Page IntentlonallQljlan&

’L?S/WLL



&
J






Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District
Cabazon, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Cabazon Water District (District) as of and
for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related notes tavthe financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as lis/tgd‘_iri’ the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements & Yy @

.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair prsentation df-"_vthese financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally acceptedfini the United State®of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of intefal contidt relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. Py >

‘\\-\\:. B %

LY

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinign on ‘);heég’ financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance ith audjting &té{xdards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable 6 financial audits Sgntained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of\fhe UfH€dNSH@teS; and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit
Requirements for California Special “E}ist(l'cts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable a;sb“ﬁran't:&:;abot‘rt_'\"whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. & e 9

An audit involves pel‘fo?‘:ﬁﬁng procedufes to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. Thg prog _';ﬂlres selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of matésgaiimisstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Cabazon Water District, as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

4

> e



Independent Auditor’s Report, continued
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information on pages 6 through 10 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the informatién because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or p_r_o:yi'de any assurance.

Other Information ¥ \

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming af)” opinion on dhe financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial stg;(;fm'ents.__,The intro\dﬂ&:tory section on pages 1
through 3, are presented for purposes of additional analysis afid are not a required part of the basic

financial statements. W
Other Reporting Required by GovernmentAt{\g'ift'ij_zg.&arlda}d\s )
Ny 2,

Vi - N

In accordance with Government Auditing SrandaF'a‘E‘;, w&" E;é"qlsé issued our report dated December 15.
2020, on our consideration of the Distrip,tr’_siutemz{l;_éc{i]{‘rol over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions 6t 'Téi\js‘ﬂ regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that repog-;izs’to deg;‘ij"b_g_ the Ecépe of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance, and the"'reht_}t;ﬁ}-t-haktg'gfljng, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting orS_,on--x:\qm'i)lj:ax_f_ce. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Goverr}ni)éﬁ?"A'Lt@‘._:_';1g\$'tqndar'cls in considering the District’s internal control over
financial reporting and,dqfhpliance. ‘E‘ﬁiﬁs reporit can be found on pages 33 and 34.

P

A5
N, A
e ¥’
, W o4
A

N
v

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
December 15, 2020

32



%6/ \uw_

Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance
of the Cabazon Water District (District) provide an introduction to the financial statements of the District
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the Introductory section and with the basic
financial statements and related notes, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

* In fiscal year 2020, the District’s net position increased 1.12% or $86,036 to $7,743,945. In fiscal
year 2019, the District’s net position decreased 0.42% or $32,312 to $7,657,909.

* In fiscal year 2020, the District’s operating revenues increased 6.39% or $96,066, to $1,599,446.
In fiscal year 2019, the District’s operating revenues increased 2.75% or $40,236, to $1,503,380.

* In fiscal year 2020, the District’s operating expenses decreased 0.83% or $10,771 to $1,292,857.
In 2019, the District’s operating expenses increased 19.24% or 210,384 to $1,303,628.

Required Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements./I}HE”State'inéng\of Net Position, Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and Statément of CashyFlows provide information
about the activities and performance of the District usjné:-—-éccoum__ing methods similar to those used by
private sector companies. @

The Statement of Net Position include all of the Distric?“&_,i‘i]_yestments in resources (assets), deferred
outflows of resources, the obligations to creditirs @?ahﬂities)‘, dhd deferred inflows of resources. They
also provide the basis for computing a’rate of ret{i(n,“e?;i}ﬂating the capital structure of the District, and
assessing the liquidity and financial ﬂexibil_ify of the District. ATl of the year’s revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the Statement of Revonues, Expe{l{es, and Changes in Net Position. This statement
measures the success of the Distri‘gtjfs'operqti/bns ovéhthe past year and can be used to determine if the
District has successfully recoveretiall of ;ts _gp_sts--th:;\m'gh its rates and other charges. This statement can
also be used to evaluate proﬁtabiliti\ahd:c?edit ‘worthiness. The final required financial statements is the
Statement of Cash Flows; _‘ﬁfzf@h._ rﬁﬁdgs information about the District’s cash receipts and cash
payments during the re/p_Qﬁﬁhg perio 1\§l" he-S‘f_gtement of Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash payments,
and net change in casli't@sulting from @perations, investing, non-capital financing, and capital and related
financing activities, as W‘e'\?l“-as provid]‘i.p{; answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what

was cash used for, and what"xf%s thefbhange in cash balance during the reporting period.
Wy
Financial Analysis of the District

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information about the District in a way that
helps answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred
inflows using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private
sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of
when the cash is received or paid.



Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Financial Analysis of the District, continued

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in it. One can think of the District’s
net position (the difference between assets and deferred outflows, and liabilities and deferred inflows), as
one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in the District’s net position is one indicator of whether its JSinancial health is improving or
deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic
conditions, population growth, zoning, and new or changed government legislation, such as changes in
Federal and State water quality standards.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 15
through 32.

Statement of Net Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a usefg,f.-ihaic_\é‘ltgr of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, assets exceeded liabilitigéyby $7.743$_}4§ and $7,657,909 as of June
30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. <7

By far the largest portion of the District’s net position ﬁ8i4% ahd 83.9% as of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively) reflects the District’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still putstandi-qtg\‘The District uses these capital assets to
provide services to customers within the Dist(i“c_"t"ﬁf'_'s_eny\i_c_e area; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Y T

At the end of fiscal years 2020 and 2(3!]'9-,-.1_11'; Distfiet showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net
position of $1,378,943 and $1,1 69,553, respf_jc{tively.\@ee note 7 for further discussion.

C‘om(lens';\d Statements of Net Position

24 / e

V o V)N 2019 Change 2018 Change
Assets: \ ‘ \ v
Current assets 3 ___1’;)_552,088 1,325,053 207,035 1,211,877 113,176
Capital assets, net \\u __';7;137,922 7,380,775 (242,853) 7,650,546 (269,771)
Total assets T 8670010 8,705,828 (35,818) 8,862,423 (156,595)
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 215,852 214,071 1,781 217,957 (3,886)
Non-current liabilities 710,213 833,848 (123,635) 954,245 (120,397)
Total liabilities 926,065 1,047919 (121,854) 1,172,202 (124,283)
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 6,304,074 6,426,530 (122,456) 6,579,006 (152,476)
Restricted for debt service 60,928 61,826 (898) 61,138 688
Unrestricted 1,378,943 1,169,553 209,390 1,050,077 119476
Total net position $ 7,743,945 7,657,909 86,036 7,690,221 (32,312)




Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

%‘5/\\‘,/&

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

2020 2019 Change 2018 Change
Revenues:
Operating revenues h) 1,599,446 1,503,380 96,066 1,463,144 40,236
Non-operating revenues 118,108 106,183 11,925 98,792 7,391
Total revenues 1,717,554 1,609,563 107,991 1,561,936 47,627
Expenses:
Operating expenses 1,292,857 1,303,628 (10,771) 1,093,244 210,384
Depreciation 322,478 318,432 , 4,046 322,482 (4,050
Non-operating expenses 16,183 19.815 47 (3,632) 21,707 (1,892)
Total expenses 1,631,518 1,641 875 A (V2 5Y)) 1,437,433 204,442
86,036 37,312) 118,'32'3‘;_--__, 246,698 (279,010)
Net position, beginning of year 7,657,909 7, 690 22] _ (32,312) 7443523 246,698
Net position, end of year $ 7,743,945 . 7,657 90\9- § 86,036 7,690,22] (32,312)

\ "—~.\ T

The statement of revenues, expenses, and change}s jn ueI po.sltmn shows how the District’s net position
changes during the fiscal year. A \

L

A closer examination of the sources 6{" chang’.es in nef posmon reveal that:

In fiscal year 2020, the District’ s het* posillcm mczeased 1.12% or $86,036 to $7,743,945. In fiscal year
2019, the District’s net po,smen decnea@ed 0.42% or $32,312 to $7,657,909. See note 7 for further
discussion. *® L

In fiscal year 2020, fhe Dlstrlct s o'phratmg revenues increased 6.39% or $96,066, due primarily to
increases of $40,037 in water consumprlon sales, $32,100 in facility fees, and $24,107 in standby fees. In
fiscal year 2019, the DlStl‘ltJ’é; operatmg revenues increased 2.75% or $40,236, due primarily to an
increase of $79,594 in water bansrfmpt:on sales; which was offset by a decrease of $36,738 in facility
fees.

In fiscal year 2020, the District’s operating expenses decreased 0.83% or $10,771, due primarily to
decreases of $31,270 in pumping and water treatment and $29,701 in transmission and distribution; which
were offset by an increase of $49.458 in general and administrative. In 2019. the District’s operating
expenses increased 19.24% or $210,384, due primarily to increases of $127,931 in transmission and
distribution and $94,829 in general and administrative.

Capital Asset Administration

At the end of fiscal years 2020 and 2019, the District’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) amounted to $7,137,922 and $7,380,775, respectively. This investment in capital assets
includes land, transmission and distribution systems, wells, tanks, reservoirs, pumps, buildings and
structures, equipment, vehicles, and construction-in-process, etc. Major capital assets additions during the
years include improvements to the transmission and distribution system, source of supply, and purchase
of vehicles.



Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Capital Asset Administration, continued

The change in capital assets for 2020 was as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2019 Transfers Transfers 2020
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 840,755 89,317 (70,378) 859,694
Depreciable assets 12,210,589 60,686 - 12,271,275
Accumulated depreciation (5,670,569) (322,478) - (5,993,047)
Total capital assets, net $ 7,380,775 (172,475) (70,378) 7,137,922
The changes in capital assets for 2019 was as follows: 2
Balance Additionsf.-' Deletions/ Balance
2018 Transfers . 5, _ Transfers 2019
Capital assets: p ."'_A} : O
Non-depreciable assets $ 803,714 o 49070 @ ( 12,029) 840,755
Depreciable assets 12,198,969 At620 - 12,210,589
Accumulated depreciation (5352,137) 1 {318432) - (5,670,569)
Total capital assets, net $ 7,65£Q.'§713‘;"'- - '(’35‘},,742) (12,029) 7,380,775
Debt Administration o O
Changes in long-term debt in 2020_',“’ér‘e' as f@llows:
Balance 3 Balance
o WL 2019 Additions Payments 2020
Long-term debt: y N b
Loans payable Q ) 954,245 - (120,397 833,848
Total loans payable $ 954,245 - (120,397) 833,848
.\ >
Changes in long-term debt in 2019 were as follows:
Balance Balance
2018 Additions Payments 2019
Long-term debt:
Loans payable s 1,071,540 - (117,295) 954,245
Total loans payable $ 1,071,540 - (117,295) 954,245




Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated and
voluntary closings of businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration of the closings. However, the related financial impact on the
District and the duration cannot be estimated at this time.

Management is unaware of any other conditions which could have a significant impact on the District’s
current tinancial position, net position, or operating results in terms of past, present, and future.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders, and
other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition.
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request
additional financial information, please contact the District’s General Maaager at 14618 Broadway Street,
P.0O. Box 297, Cabazon, California 92230. V4



Basic Financia%ts

%&/



Cabazon Water District
Statements of Net Position

39‘/ \\//u

June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2019
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 1,100,289 910913
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted (note 2) 60,928 61,826
Accrued interest receivable 2,594 3,957
Accounts receivable — water sales, net (note 3) 223,949 206,521
Property taxes and assessments receivable 14,579 3,722
Materials and supplies inventory 94,015 104,142
Prepaid and other assets 35,734 33,972
Total current assets 1,532,088 1,525,053
Non-current assets:
Capital assets — non-depreciable assets (note 4) __,-8’5‘5,694 840,755
Capital assets — depreciable assets, net (note 4) 6278228 6,540,020
Total non-current assets , 7,f3=;{322 7.380,775
Total assets 4 86700100y 8705828
Current liabilities: A
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 47,348 55,976
Accrued wages and related payablesi Y " O 12,149 8,149
Customer advances and deposits R W 19636 11,748
Accrued interest payable on )cmg—term debt 4 3,647 4.449
Long-term liabilities — due/wnhm orle yea?'\ \
Compensated absence‘s (note 5} 9,437 13,352
Loans payable (note' ﬁq Ty 123,635 120,397
Total cu’!;rent 1‘31:.\11&..:9 215,852 214,071
Non-current! lmbllmes \,
Long-term hahﬂ'tues — due ]u]J more than one year:
Loans payable, n@e@ 710,213 833,848
Total non-current liabilities 710213 833,848
Total liabilities 926,065 1,047,919
Net position: (note 7)
Net investment in capital assets 6,304,074 6,426,530
Restricted 60,928 61,826
Unrestricted 1,378,943 1,169,553
Total net position $ 7,743,945 7,657,909

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Cabazon Water District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales $ 1,365,963 1,325,926
Connection fees 5,399 3,520
Standby fees 134,104 109,997
Facility fees 49,458 17,358
Other charges 44,522 46,579
Total operating revenues 1,599,446 1,503,380
Operating expenses:
Pumping and water treatment 96,777 128,047
Transmission and distribution 120,724 150,425
Customer accounts 54,726 53,984
General and administrative ] 920 630 971,172
Total operating expenses _,_f';v‘/ 1,2‘!2.’857 1,303,628
Operating income before depreciation ] o
and amortization <. A7 306,589 199,752
Depreciation ) Qe (322,478) (318432)
Operating loss c B __(15.889) (118,680)
Non-operating revenue(expense) ' o\ 2 Z 1
Property taxes . \ ' 4 65,350 60,146
Rental income — cellular mtennas} ) ‘\_‘1\ 25,046 24,555
Investment earnings ¢ . VP 22,001 21,839
Interest expense — long\talm debt (16,183) (19,815)
Other non—opemfmg{evcnﬁé et 5,711 (357)
Total pon—ope mtlng\mvel}u;s net 101,925 86,368
Chhnges in net yosmon 86,036 (32312)
Net position, begmh;ﬂg of year 7,657,909 7,690,221
Net position, end of ye ar $ 7,743,945 7,657,909

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Cabazon Water District
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2020 and 2019

LH/MQ

2019

1,389,803

109,997
(271,329)
(1,059,339)

169,132

24,555
72,522

97,077

(48,661)
(117,295)
(20,591)

(186.547)

20,339

20,339

100,001
872,738

972,739

910,913
61,826

2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales $ 1,455,802
Proceeds from standby fees 134,104
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages (325,505)
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services (961,819)
Net cash provided by operating activities 302,582
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Proceeds from rental income — cellular antennas 25,046
Proceeds from property taxes 54,493
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities & 719,539
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 4
Acquisition and construction of capital assets O (79,625)
Principal paid on long-term debt & “0120.397)
Interest paid on long-term debt &y {16:985)
Net cash used in capital and related ﬁnanciﬁg é_l_l:.t__iviﬁ'e's" (217,007)
Cash flows from investing activities: -
Interest earnings - W, 23,364
Net cash provided by investiqg_gctivitigs\l y g 23,364
Net increase in cashf}ind_ Eash equii:s'i_lle nts 188,478
Cash and cash equivalents, beg‘ﬁmfhg ofy’eaf R \ 972,739
Cash and cash equivalentsgend.of year, $ 1,161,217
’I.r ..-\.;/._.' - __\..' h ' ..\I‘- '
Reconciliation oftash and cash'\’,quivale nts to statements of
net position: Q@ Y |
Cash and cash equivalent@yd® $ 1,100,289
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted 60,928
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 1,161,217

972.739

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

13



Cabazon Water District
Statements of Cash Flows, continued

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

42/ UL

2020 2019
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating loss $ (15,889) (118.680)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided
operating activities:
Depreciation 322,478 318432
Other non-operating 5,711 (357)
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net (17.428) 382
Materials and supplies inventory 10,127 (10,470)
Prepaid and other assets (1,762) (13,963)
Increase(decrease) in liabilities: Y
Accounts payable and accrued expenses O (8,628) (5,582)
Accrued wages and related payables 04000 31
Compensated absences ' (3915) 3,301
Customer advances and deposits 7,888 (3.962)
Total adjustments . 318471 287812
Net cash provided by ope ratmgaqt]hl‘l;S : $ 302,582 169,132
Non-cash investing, capital, and finafiting tra\'r;é’ai,/cfi(ons:
Changes in fair-market value__p_f_’f’l.'iﬁds c!ei}osﬁed"z;*ﬁgh LAIF $ 2,406 2,131
) Ly A 2,406 2,131

\ - /_.-' < .-'V $

See accompanying pﬁtﬁéé/to the ‘Bag‘k:_ ﬁﬁ‘aqgial statements

VA



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(1)  Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

The Cabazon Water District (District) was formed on May 21, 1954, and provides potable water and
water services within a 7,040 acre service area between the cities of Beaumont and Palm Springs within
the County of Riverside. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors who serves four-
year terms.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District
is that the costs of providing water to its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges (water sales), capital grants, and similar funding. Revenues and expenses
are recognized on the full-accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are regognized in the accounting period
in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the perig@l incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place.

Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales and, Water \pl{r'tabases, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the Dis»tﬁc'i. Exchange \rﬁhgactions are those in which
each party receives and gives up essentially equal valuel Management, admifistration, and depreciation
expenses are also considered operating expenses. Otl1ei""r§\{enués’énd expenses not included in the above
categories are reported as non-operating revenues and expe'hs_é's.'_'

The District’s basic financial statements have be(:h prﬁﬁfed.}h conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States’ ﬁf;Americ,a YGAAP), as applied to governmental entities. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for

establishing governmental accountifig and fifiancial repdrting principles.
trig. U,

Ve

C. Financial Reporting

. Ty )
The District has adopted the following GASB pronouncement in the current year:

In May 2020, the GAS_,Bf ssued ﬁ}'a(elﬁ'aﬁt-. No. 95 — Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain
Authoritative Guidanag.. The primaty, objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to
governments and other stakeholders if light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished
by postponing the effective"tfl}'ltgs ofc;shain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first
became effective or are schéﬁu}e/fo become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and
later. g

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position
1. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, and disclosures
of contingent assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at
the date of the financial statements and the reported changes in net position during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3\l



1)
D.

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position
2. Uncertainty

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated and
voluntary closings of businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration of the closings. However, the related financial impact on
the District and the duration cannot be estimated at this time.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash
equivalents.

4. Investments

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recqg»tjiééd'_as_ investment income reported for
that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, change$in fair value, and any gains or

losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investmen(s.” WO\

5. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Unco‘]\léétiblﬁg ’é._'\écounts

The District extends credit to customers in the noﬁhaf'_{fourse of operations. When management
deems customer accounts uncollectible, the Bi;‘;_tri_qt‘uses ?heffa!_lowance method for the reservation and

write-off of those accounts. L O ©
6. Property Taxes and Assessments._ | &

The County of Riverside Asses;o;'-"'é Office asse"sﬁgs all real and personal property within the County
each year. The County of Riy@tSide Tak Collectt’s Office bills and collects the District’s share of
property taxes and assessments hn -'@93,"1%&4founty adopted the alternative method of secured
property tax apportionment auqilﬁb}g&_u\nder Chapter 3, Part 8, Division 1 (commencing section 4701)
of the Revenue and ,',__I’_:.)aa(éfthiudr'if\bd_e b-ﬂIL1e State (also known as the “Teeter Plan”). This alternative
method provides 81 funding e-&c‘:ﬁ taxing entity included in the Teeter Plan with its total secured
property taxes during the year the taxes are levied, including any amount uncollected at fiscal year-
end. Under this planj.the Cgtﬁafy assumes an obligation under a debenture or similar demand
obligation to advance funds Tm;,e’over expected delinquencies By such financing, the District receives
the full amount of secured property taxes levied each year and, therefore, no longer experiences
delinquent taxes. Property tax in California is levied in accordance with Article 13A of the State
Constitution at one percent (1%) of countywide assessed valuations.

Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes collected by the County of
Riverside, which have not been credited to the District’s cash balance as of June 30. The property tax
calendar is as follows:

Lien date March 1

Levy date July 1

Due dates November 1 and March 1
Collection dates December 10 and April 10

16

LH/\\N



(1)
D.

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position, continued
7. Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water meters, pipes, and pipefittings for
construction and repair of the District’s water transmission and distribution system. Inventory is
valued at cost using a first-in, first-out cost method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the
time that individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed.

8. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements.

9. Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at hi_stoﬁ'éal cost. District policy has set the
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $1,000,Donated assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of donation. Upon retiremgn_t, or othe"f'-d}sposition of capital assets, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removeddtom the respec‘!=i$e_balances, and any gains or
losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on agfraight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows: .

e Transmission and distribution mains — 15 to 40 x'e_émf_s

e Reservoirs and tanks — 10 to 40 year§ .

o Wells— 10 to 30 years L < .4

®

-

Buildings and structures — 5 to 40 yea;‘§ /
e Office furniture and equipmient<35 to 10 years
e Tools and equipment —10 20 y__‘e.g’rs A

* Vehicles—Syears " 4y
10. Compensated Abs_gl!jt;_if's-~- 3 A

The District’s polic;,f",‘is"'to perﬁﬁ("e\_mp“!ajfres to accumulate earned vacation up to a total of 240 hours
with amounts excéﬁ_gf:ﬁ.ng the limitibeing paid out as part of the employee’s regular compensation.
Upon termination of " ‘ep;f‘rp_loymerjt,,-’employees are paid all unused vacation and 50% of any unused
sick time for non-exelnp‘t-«g"\mp_imj!e'es.

11. Net Position .

The District follows the financial reporting requirements of the GASB and reports net position under
the following classifications:

*  Net investment in capital assets — this component of net position consists of capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by any debt outstanding against the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets or related debt are included in this component of net position.

17

‘/5/ e



‘-/(.a/\u(L

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(1)  Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position, continued

11. Net Position, continued

* Restricted — this component of net position consists of assets that have restrictions placed
upon their use by external constraints imposed either by creditors (debt covenants), grantors,
contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law
through enabling legislation.

¢ Unrestricted — this component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in
the determination of the net investment in capital assets or restricted components of net

position,
12. Water Sales y
Water sales are billed on a monthly cyclical basis. Estimated,u_!;'bj?l}qd water revenue through June 30
has been accrued at year-end. Y

13. Budgetary Policies

The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget,for pldnning, control, and evaluation purposes.
Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by compasisons of actual revenues and expenses with
planned revenues and expenses for the per}od‘_\l\incumb‘rq:hqe accounting is not used to account for
commitments related to unperformed contraqﬁ\forjgpm{rgcﬁqi};_and services.

s

(2) Cash and Investments _ \ VW . 4

o | ¥V 4
Cash and investments as of June 30,{5{6 éiaSSii]ed aé-ﬁ\llows:
Vi 4 Jinf Y

A Ly L TEAY

L Lo 2020 2019

Cash and cash equ,ixaiém_é s 1,100,289 910913

Cash and €Gsh equivalents < festricted 60,928 61,826
Tofaly, $ 1161217 972,739

Cash and investments as of iﬁ;i_e 39;,';&6nsist of the following:

2020 2019
Cash on hand $ 100 100
Deposits with bank 385,659 274,881
Investments 775,458 697,758
Total $ 1,161,217 972,739

As of June 30, the District’s authorized deposits had the following maturities:

2020 2019

Deposits in California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) 191 days 173 days



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(2) Cash and Investments, continued

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the
California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy,
where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
U.S. Treasury obligations 5 years None None
Federal agency and bank obligations 5 years None None
Certificates-of-deposit (negotiable or placed) 5 years 4 30% 10%
Commercial paper (prime) 270days 47 10% 10%
Money market mutual funds N/A K 20% None
State and local bonds, notes, and warrants NA < O . None None
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A : '-\':'N_one None
Custodial Credit Risk & »

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in- the cvent of failure of a depository financial
institution. a government will not be able to recoyer its depb,sh,i or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an out51de\party »The cusTonaI credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event of failure of the counterparty (e.g\ broﬁe;»ﬂeajt:r) to a transaction, a government will not
be able to recover the value of its investment or coﬁat’/ ral securities that are in the possession of another
party. With respect to investments, cﬁ,srodlai credit, PiSk generally applies only to direct investments in
marketable securities. Custodial cnef(;irt risk dgés not b\pply to a local government’s indirect investment in
securities through the use of mutual ﬁmds,@,r guyeri'l‘mé’nt investment pools (such as LAIF).

The California Governments Code, ¢ and. the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would J{jrf t the Bxposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
the following prov1snorﬁor deposits: nThe California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by State or local/g b,t)vemmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository rf;gulated uinder state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged s‘écl.m\;res in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount
deposited by public agencies.

Of the bank balance, up to $250,000 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, is federally insured and the remaining
balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities are not held
in the District’s name.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
the California Government Code under the ovensnght of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

i) i



el

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(2) Cash and Investments, continued
Investment in State Investment Pool, continued
The District’s deposit and withdrawal restrictions and limitations are as follows:

Same day transaction processing occurs for orders received before 10:00 a.m.

Next day transaction processing occurs for orders received after 10:00 a.m.

Maximum limit of 15 transactions (combination of deposits and withdrawals) per month.
Minimum transaction amount requirement of $5,000, in increments of $1,000.
Withdrawals of $10,000,000 or more require 24 hours advance.

e Prior to funds transfer, an authorized person must call LAIF to do a verbal transaction.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the change in market interest rates will adyersely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the gréi‘ater the sensitivity of its fair value
to the change in market interest rates. One of the ways that the Dis,t:‘i,;ig"cgn manage its exposure to interest
rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer termhinvestments and by timing cash
flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio matuf#s or comés:_algse to maturity evenly over
time as necessary to provide for cash flow requirements a_nd,ﬁfiquidi}y needed {5 operations.

Information about the sensitivity of fair values of the Distri€¥’s investments to market interest rate
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the'distribution of the District’s investments by
maturity date. . b

Ny,
,

Maturities of investments at June 30, 2020, consiﬁél\égﬁbhf]iﬁ:g:_'ﬁ)llqlWhg:
.// —

Re maining maturity

1

, "-.\ \ 12 months
lnvestme_fltfl"ype, . O Total or less
. W e 4
Local Agency Investment Fuifid (LATF) $ 714,530 714,530
Held by bond tuftee=" .
Money mdpket funds Q © 60,928 60,928
N $ 775458 775458
\._\'-_\\.. /.' 7

Maturities of investments at Ji &_-5:?.1{2019, consisted of the following:

Remaining maturity

12 months
Investment Type Total or less
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 635,932 635,932
Held by bond trustee:
Money market funds 61,826 61,826
$ 697,758 697,758




e

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(2) Cash and Investments, continued
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by the California Government Code (where
applicable), the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for
each investment type.

Credit ratings of investments as of June 30, 2020, were as follows:

Minimum Rating as of
legal year-end Not
Investment Type Total rating AAA Rated
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 714,530 N/}} - 714,530
Held by bond trustee: y <
Money market funds 60,928 .'-&Ak-x 60,928 -
$ 775458 A 60.928 714,530
Credit ratings of investments as of June 30, 2019, were B.ﬁ_'ttgllows';--"
" N -'i\zlinimum Rating as of
L . "'--\I_:le_..gal year-end Not
Investment Type Tatal . rating AAA Rated
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Smp, 635952 N/A - 635,932
Held by bond trustee: y B z
Money market funds 461826 AAA 61,826 -
 NE 697758 61,826 635,932

Concentration of Credjf-ﬂfék \

The District’s investment policy cont_‘f,_ﬁps no limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any one
issuer as beyond that stipildted by thg California Government Code. There were no investments in any
one issuer (other than for walﬂ;.'"-«]'fi:bé’s,uw securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that
represent 5% or more of the District’s total investments as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

(3) Accounts Receivable

The balance at June 30 consists of the following:

2020 2019
Accounts receivable - water sales and services $ 263,772 236,679
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (39,823) (30,158)
$ 223,949 206,521




cso/ e

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(4) Capital Assets

The change in capital assets for 2020 was as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2019 Transfers Transfers 2020
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 689,548 - - 689,548
Construction-in-process 151,207 89,317 (70,378) 170,146
Total non-depreciable assets 840,755 89,317 (70,378) 859,694
Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution mains 10.316.396 59,261 - 10,375,657
Source of supply 1,552,225 1,425 - 1,553,650
Water treatment 8,800 & - - 8,800
Tools and equipment 123,319 S - - 123,319
Buildings and structures 12,281 ¥ QW - 12,281
Oftice furniture and equipment 71,808 4~ A % - 71,808
Vehicles 114,728 £ o - Q@ - 114,728
Intangible plant 11,0388 & - - 11,032
Total depreciable assets 12210589 0 60686 - 12271275
.y b -.ﬁ\
Accumulated depreciation: L . O
Transmission and distribution mains (4}79‘5,49/9);_:--1?'_:“ . (251,154) - (5,046,644)
Source of supply . (567276) T (58,606) - (625,882)
Water treatment & N (7883 (1.467) - (8,800)
Tools and equipment & 4 (12048 (875) - (121,298)
Buildings and structures ‘\.‘;\ T ~L6J”(4) (744) - (6,858)
Office furniture and equipment g L (62,603) (4,778) - (67,381)
Vehicles A7 0 . (100298) (4.,854) - (105,152)
Intangible plant &< Y (11032 - - (11,032)
Total accumulated depre-.'éi.ﬁ'ﬁqn ,fl (5,670,569) (322,478) - (5,993,047)
Y y
Total depreciable assets, net \ 6,540,020 (261,792) - 6,278,228
Total capital assets, net ' $ 7,380,775 7,137,922

Major capital assets additions during the year include improvements to the District’s transmission and
distribution mains.



S‘/\UUV

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
(4) Capital Assets, continued

The change in capital assets for 2019 was as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2018 Transfers Transfers 2019
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 689,548 - - 689,548
Construction-in-process 114,166 49,070 (12,029) 151,207
Total non-depreciable assets 803,714 49,070 (12,029) 840,755
Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution mains 10,313,196 3200 - 10,316,396
Source of supply 1,552,225 & - 1,552,225
Water treatment 8,800 y & - 8.800
Tools and equipment 123,319 & ey - 123,319
Buildings and structures 2281 & VW - 12,281
Office furniture and equipment 71808 £ S - 71,808
Vehicles 106,3081‘__*3\_. 478420 - 114,728
Intangible plant 11,032 - - 11,032
Total depreciable assets 12108969 11620 - 12,210,589
N e Vv
Accumulated depreciation: \ \ O
Transmission and distribution mains y N (4,54:’%.\‘5@]/) (246,929) - (4,795.490)
Source of supply &7 1) (508%70) (58.606) - (567,276)
Water treatment S Laii® (1,760) - (7.333)
Tools and equipment G (119548) (875) - (120,423)
Buildings and structures ~_#F5 \'x\\ \ < (5,369) (745) - (6,114)
Office furniture and quipfm‘fnt S O (57379) (5,224) - (62,603)
Vehicles A N 1) (96,005) (4,293) - (100,298)
Intangible plant QU & (11,032) - - (11,032)
Total accumulated deprec iatib;{ ,/ (5.352,137) (318,432) - (5,670,569)
Total depreciable assets, net 6,346,832 (306,812) - 6,540,020
Total capital assets, net $ 7,650,546 7,380,775

Major capital assets additions during the year include improvements to the District’s transmission and
distribution mains and purchase of a vehicle.



SZ/NJ/(‘”’

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
(5) Compensated Absences

The change in compensated absences at June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Balance Balance
2019 Additions Deletions 2020
$ 13,352 25,513 (29,428) 9437

The change in compensated absences at June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Balance Balance
2018 Additions Deletions 2019
$ 10,051 21,846 (18.545) 13,352
(6) Long-Term Debt
Changes in long-term debt in 2020 were as follows: \
Balance ) ‘ \ Principal Balance
20194  ,Additions \» Payments 2020
1993 Calif. Dept. of Water Resources Loan - E58416  $ 318499 A7 - (39,550) 278,949
Zions First National Bank ) 335,7-16\_‘ - (80,847) 254,899
Riverside County Economic Development Agency 300, 000 A N - - 300,000
Total long-term debt \_\",. 954,245'___"'_ > ; - (120,397) 833,848
Less current portion y o ;[20,397) (123,635)
Total non-current y AR 833 848 710213
Changes in long-term debt in20.19 We]‘&,.&b follows:
p ' i \ N Balance Principal Balance
2018 Additions Payments 2019
1993 Calif. Dept. of Water Resourcbs Loan }’.53416 $ 356,924 - (38,425) 318,499
Zions First National Bank il 414,616 - (78,870) 335,746
Riverside County Economic Development Agency 300,000 - - 300,000
Total long-term debt 1,071,540 - (117,295) 954,245
Less current portion (117,295) (120,397)
Total non-current $ 954,245 833,848



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(6) Long-Term Debt, continued
1993 California Dept. of Water Resources Loan — E58416

In 1993, the Cabazon Water District contracted with the California Department of Water Resources for a
$979,860, 30-year loan under the 1984 California Safe Drinking Water Bond Law to fund capital
improvements in order to comply with the California Safe Drinking Water Standards. Terms of the loan
call for monthly debt service deposits by the District with a trustee. Principal and interest payments of
$24,346 are payable semi-annually on October 1* and April 1* each year at a rate of 2.955%, with the
obligation maturing in 2027. Annual debt service requirements on the 1993 California Dept. of Water
Resources Loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2021 3 40,763 7,928 48,691
2022 41,959 6,732 y _‘ 4 48,691
2023 43208 54834 48,691
2024 44,487 4204 \ . 48691
2025 45,825 2866 W, 48,691

2026-2027 62,707 & 1,738 64 445
Total 278,949 47 2893) 307 900
Current _ (40,763) 76.))
Non-current $ 238, 18&\
Zions First National Bank _ ‘, ) /‘_'..J-"

In 2013, the Cabazon Water District 9ntered mto a lqap agreement with Zions First National Bank in the
amount of $787,309 to refinance{the 1993 é«ahfqmia Dept. of Water Resources Loan — E62039, and
provide funding for the constructiorahds upgrEH‘e ‘of'the District’s transmission mains. Terms of the loan
call for semi-annual debt seryi cepa,ymeni‘s of principal and interest payable on April 1% and October 1* of

each year at a rate of 2/49%, matuhng\iq 2073 Annual debt service requirements on the loan are as
follows:

&N, L
e |
N\ I

Fis ;31.:Ye,_ar y /Principal Interest Total
2021 W5 82,872 5,831 88,703
2022 84,948 3,755 88,703
2023 87,079 1,623 88,702
Total 254,899 11,209 266,108

Current (82,872)

Non-current $ 172,027

= ’5/ e



Cabazon Water District

Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2020 and 2019

(6) Long-Term Debt, continued

Riverside County Economic Development Agency

6‘*/\\.0&

In 1997, the Cabazon Water District contracted with the Riverside County Economic Development
Agency for a $300,000 loan to construct water improvements, in conjunction with MKA Cabazon
Partnership Construction Agreement. The agreement calls for a zero interest loan with funds to be repaid
with connection fees as development occurs. The unpaid balance has been classified as long-term as no

connections are anticipated in 2020.
(7)  Net Position

Calculation of net position as of June 30 was as follows:

Net investment in capital assets:
Capital assets, net h)
Loans payable — current portion
Loans payable — non-current portion

2020 2019
7,187,922 7,380,775
A0123835) (120,397)
& (710213), (833,848)

Total net investment in capital as_s(__ﬁ'

Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted

6304074 P 6426530

Total restricted W e

Unrestricted: P A\
Non-spendable unrestricfed net hosition:
Materials and suﬁb\li’és inveafory N

Prepaid and othgf'-a_gsg_;g;_. ==

Total pﬁﬂ%ﬁed@atﬂé\uﬁastricted net position

Spendab\iaflmrestricte-a él\qt position:

Operé't'i:_};g-.r_eserve ) |

Total spéhdﬁhlajhﬁfestricted net position

b
Total unrestricted

Total net position $

60,028 61826

D 60928 61,826
94015 104,142
35734 33972
129,749 138,114
1.249,194 1031439
1249,194 1031439
1,378,943 1,169,553
7.743,945 7,657,909

(8) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The District provides pension benefits to all covered employees under the Collective Bargaining
Agreement to the Service Employees International Union National Industry Pension Fund. The District’s
contribution is based on 15% of gross wages. The District’s contributions to the Plan were $77,360 and
$59,895 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(9)  Deferred Compensation Savings Plan

In 2003, as amended in 2008, the District offered a Profit Sharing 401(a) Plan (Plan), to qualified
employees. Participation in the Plan is open to employees who do not meet the eligibility requirements for
pension benefits under the terms of a separate collective bargaining agreement. At June 30, 2020 and
2019, the Plan included two participants. The market value of all assets held in trust by the District’s
401(a) Plan at June 30, 2020 and 2019, amounted to $237,390 and $201,163, respectively.

(10) Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is insured for a
variety of potential exposures. The following is a summary of the insurance policies carried by the
District as of June 30, 2020:

* Property: Blanket limit of $6,058,000 with a $1,000 deductible gér incident.

* Property damage: $1,000,000 per occurrence and $I0.000,Q90rjh the aggregate.

* Personal and advertising injury: $1,000,000 per per50|::_'c;r'".c;i*g-'_z"mization and $10,000,000 in the
aggregate. & )

*  Wrongful acts: $1,000,000 per claim and $10,00’0.Q00 in the aggregaéTe'_\,Lwith a $1,000 deductible.

* Employment practices liability: $1.000,000 péi‘“-.::;Taim --‘L_ihﬂfl$10,000,000 in the aggregate with a
$1,000 deductible.

e Employee benefits liability: $I,000,00Q_.:?'§I~‘ pg;_;oﬁ \"aﬁ?;___j&;l0,000,000 in the aggregate with a
$1,000 deductible. L .’

¢ Automobile: $1,000,000 per occurrence wf‘(\l.?.aj’SS'OO deductible.

e Crime coverage: $250,000 Qg_r}'.'b'c‘cﬁﬁ-e\zl‘nce \\;igﬁla $1,000 deductible.

e Excess liability: $4,000,0(I'('}‘¢_'_mpl(}yc_é__:_‘?js--liabi_l’\lit;f excluded.

(11) Governmental Ac’gpun.ﬂnﬁg\.\gﬁ‘lﬂdard; Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective

The Governmental ACC’Q_[_"il/Elﬁ.i'.lg éféﬁ@qrdé“ﬁo;rd (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to the
issue date, that have effgétive dates that may impact future financial presentations.

Governmental Accounting ;_Stqndart!; Board Statement No. 84

“\ L
In January 2017, the GASB whde«f Statement No. 84 — Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments,
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent
arrangement that meets specific criteria.

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2018; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged.

27

55 / \uw



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2020 and 2019

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87 — Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting pé;'i'ods beginning after December 15,
2019; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the eftectwe dateh‘as been postponed by 18 months.
Earlier application is encouraged. y

"\ b

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement N 7 89

o

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89 — Accm(mmgfm Interest Cost incurred Before the End
of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital asset§ aﬁﬁ the cost af horrowing for a reporting period and (2)
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred be\fore the eﬂd of”‘a ‘construction period.

This Statement establishes accountmg,requnremems for 1nterest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. Such interest cost lnc?ludes all interest that previously was accounted for in
accordance with the requirements i paragﬁaﬁhs 5- ZQ \of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting
and Financial Reporting Guzdaﬂc‘e Crmrmmzd Win  Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, which are,sup\seded “{)y this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost
incurred before the end ofi@ constinictiol period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the
cost is incurred for finarigtal statemb ts pgpared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a
result, interest cost mcﬂt:léd before the lend of a construction period will not be included in the historical
cost of a capital asset reported ina buq)hess -type activity or enterprise fund.

This Statement also 1e1terates”tl}a't, in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2019; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively.

‘SLa/ \wle



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 90

In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90 — Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a
majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition
of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured
using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary
activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent
fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equ1ty 1hterest at fair value.

For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separ ate orgamzatlon a government should
report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the' ‘€oyernment or fund that holds the
equity interest should report an asset related to the majority pqmty interésg using the equity method. This
Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity inferest in a legally. Separate organization results
in the government being financially accountable for thef lggally ,s@parate organization and, therefore, the
government should report that organization as a component umr

This Statement also requires that a componentaunit in whmh a government has a 100 percent equity
interest account for its assets, deferred outflows Di\‘i esohrsqi llabllmes and deferred inflows of resources
at acquisition value at the date the government at;qurred a LD@ percent equity interest in the component
unit. Transactions presented in flows ,state.;nents df ‘the component unit in that circumstance should
include only transactions that occurred subseqment tdﬂ;{e acquisition.

The requirements of this Statemdnﬁ were éﬁ'ectwe fcu' reporting periods beginning after December 13,
2018; however, in light of the COWDJQ pandentic, ‘the effective date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encodfdged. The) requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the
provisions related to (])teportmg a major“ty equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a
component unit if the \g,’avemment a;:?qlmres a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be

applied on a prospective bams }-‘ /
Governmental Accounting Srana'af’ﬁs Bom d Statement No. 91

In May 2019, the GASB issued S'tatement No. 91 — Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those
objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit
debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting
of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.

This Statement also addresses arrangements—often characterized as leases—that are associated with
conduit debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the
proceeds of a conduit debt obligation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities.
Payments from third-party obligors are intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments.
During those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass
to the obligors at the end of the arrangements.

61/\\)&



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91, continued

This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations,
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about
the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2020; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 92

In January 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 92 — Omnibus 2 20 The objectives of this Statement
are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial repQ‘_rfjnfg"a;jid__to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have ‘been identified during implementation and

application of certain GASB Statements. & <

The requirements of this Statement were as follows: (19 Fhe reqzﬁféments related to the effective date of
Statement 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reinsurangececoveries, and terminology used to refer to
derivative instruments are effective upon issuance;,(2) The réqgﬁﬁ:gments related to intra-entity transfers of
assets and those related to the applicability (\)f{Sté_@mehr‘lhts W}\‘and 74 are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2020; (3) The requifemepis Eetated to application of Statement 84 to
postemployment benefit arrangements andsthose ré‘!gf’teij—fb noﬁ'r'écurring fair value measurements of assets
or liabilities are effective for reportjlng.-p"eﬁq% begf ﬁ_ing after June 15, 2020; and (4) The requirements
related to the measurement of liabiilities (and assets,\if any) associated with AROs in a government
acquisition are effective for goveﬁ@agt_ﬁQquisiﬁ‘Qﬁ_‘;éccurring in reporting periods beginning after June
15, 2020; however, in light of the CQVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one
year. Earlier application is@ncouraged ﬁhd;i‘sn permitted by topic.

Governmental Accourft'g'r'i:g Standards :@Roar:H'Statement No. 93

In March 2020, the GA\‘S‘B\_"-igsued _S’ta'tement No. 93 — Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The
objective of this Statement i's»ip.‘a,?ax’éss accounting and financial reporting implications that result from
the replacement of an IBOR. This Statement achieves that objective by: (1) Providing exceptions for
certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting termination provisions when an IBOR is
replaced as the reference rate of the hedging derivative instrument’s variable payment; (2) Clarifying the
hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to replace the reference rate; (3)
Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by itself, affect the
assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is probable; (4) Removing LIBOR
as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest
rate swap; (5) Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as
appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate
swap; (6) Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended; and (7)
Providing an exception to the lease modifications guidance in Statement 87, as amended, for certain lease
contracts that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate upon which variable payments depend.

30

59 ls



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 93, continued

The requirements of this Statement were effective as follows: (1) The removal of LIBOR as an
appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting periods ending after December 31, 2021; and
(2) All other requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2020; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective dates have been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 94

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94 — Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and pubhc-publlc partnership arrangements
(PPPs). As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in whlch a government (the transferor)
contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental{enfity) to provide public services by
conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, suchas infrastructure or other capital
asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an ,e‘;c‘hange or eXc‘hange like transaction. Some
PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangément (SCA) whicly’the Board defines in this
Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects 4nd.is cqmpensated by fees from third parties; (2)
the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approdie’ which services the operator is required to
provide, to whom the operator is required to previde the servlces and the prices or rates that can be
charged for the services; and (3) the transferor’ 1‘5 enf itled to s&tpﬂcant residual interest in the service
utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangemgm

This Statement also provides gundanc.e for. agcoun{mg and financial reporting for availability payment
arrangements (APAs). As defined jifthis Stal,Ement\an APA is an arrangement in which a government
compensates an operator for serv:ﬁes that may meludéec\le&gmng constructing, financing, maintaining, or
operating an underlying nonﬁnanua? a;s“et for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like
transaction. ] : \

The requirements of this(Statemenf are ef‘h:etlve for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods therea‘ﬁ;ﬂr Earlier app'hcatlon is encouraged.

Governmental Accountmg S{audard:) ‘Board Statement No. 96

In May 2020, the GASB lssth Statement No. 96 — Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use
subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the
capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a
SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for
SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged.

31

Sg‘/ el



Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97 — Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 41 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The
primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically
would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension
plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans
other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in
fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, cop_s:tstency, and comparability of the
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC){Séction 457 deferred compensation
plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension_:\p__lan:'aqd for benefits provided through
those plans. P ™

The requirements of this Statement that (1) exempt prin}afjr'éovemments\“t "éct_\ perform the duties that a
governing board typically performs from treating theglibsence (6f a governing board the same as the
appointment of a voting majority of a governing boﬁ?d\“'in_, determining whether they are financially
accountable for defined contribution pension plans, defined -qﬂ&gtribution OPEB plans, or other employee
benefit plans and (2) limit the applicability of tiji%financial bﬁr\é't_:q criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement
84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined ‘t?gfbpé”f'rt )QPEB_ﬂaﬁs that are administered through trusts
that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of 'S_jcg__temeri‘t\lﬁz./gr}ﬁ‘ragfaph 3 of Statement 74, respectively, are
effective immediately. The reqllirenle_gtgi.oﬁgtqs Statgment that are related to the accounting and financial
reporting for Section 457 plans are’,_ej'l’f'cctive‘: for ﬁscﬁyears beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes
of determining whether a primary?, 'ﬁvernnﬁeﬁﬁsv--ﬁn%' cially accountable for a potential component unit,
the requirements of this Statement\tia\f'prf)\‘?id_ehtﬁét for all other arrangements, the absence of a governing
board be treated the same as'ihg ‘-agpéiqﬁ'u\ent of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary
government performs ﬁf_é/duties\"‘thh{ a\g} erning board typically would perform, are effective for
reporting periods begil’w’.’rﬁn after Jung \15, 2021. Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged
and permitted by requiremgnt as specified within this Statement. The Board considered the effective dates
for the requirements of this"&hlg@gﬁf’in light of the COVID-19 pandemic and in concert with Statement

No. 95, Postponement of the I:.‘T{@éfr’\'}e Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance.
(12) Commitments and Contingencies
Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to
requests for reimbursements to grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

Litigation

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties.

After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any,
will not materially affect its financial condition.

(13) Subsequent Events

Events occurring after June 30, 2020, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial
statements or disclosure as of December 15, 2020, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

32

‘“"/ W



< Page Intentlonall)Qﬂan&

‘”‘/ el



L2 s

Report on Internal Con@ompliance






Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on the Audits of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District
Cabazon, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally gccepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 40" Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the finan€ighstatements of the Cabazon Water
District (District), as of and for the years ended June 30, ZQZQj-ﬁnd\‘Zf}\'l-Q, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Districti§ basic finangial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated December 15, 2020. g . h

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting A ™

In planning and performing our audits of the financial sta\t‘elzp“gpts, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal controﬁhi{@teuyine ‘th-;é‘;-qudit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing Qlir opfnibimen the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on thg_..ef(cctivei'géss_’,ﬁf the Bistrict’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectijeressiof théi‘l'i':'strict’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal contro{'/':ﬁ(ists w‘nén the hésign or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the‘”lf@rquﬁfGﬂ‘m&-af’performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatemcypqu\] a"ti_rﬁqu basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in interna{;eéntrOY;-.§hgll\thg‘k\there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial Sfatements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency ig"\a\--deﬁciency\' .'br a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material “\eak11ess,_/§5t important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. ) ¥ 4

\ 4
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audits, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audits and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

33

w/ ke



@S/ e

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on the Audits of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, continued

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly. this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
December 15, 2020

34



New Business

2.Discussion/Action Item:

Reimbursement to Board Directors for taking
COVID test related to District business.



1 / \uu

@covm CLINIC

INVOICE

Receipt

Provider Info

Dr. Matthew Abinante
NPI# 1740685387
9518476749

Product

COVID-19 Test

Appointment

Date: October 17, 2020

Time: 4:30 pm

Service: $150 - Rapid COVID-19 Antigen Test - 60 Min Result

Nasal Test: COVID-19 Testing, Z11.59 CPT: 87426 TIN: 85-0673475

Other Comments

Covid Clinic encourages every patient to seek reimbursement from
their insurance provider(s). This invoice should help with seeking a
reimbursement from your insurance provider.

COVID Clinic makes no guarantee or representation that your
insurance provider will reimburse you for this test.

Amount Due
$0.00

Invoice Number:
Invoice Date:

Order Number:
Order Date:
Payment Method:
Patient's First Name:
Patient's Last Name:

29261

October 17, 2020
36076

October 17, 2020
Credit Card
Sarah

Wargo

Quantity Total

1 $150.00

Subtotal $150.00
Shipping $0.00
Paid $150.00




e

@COVID CLINIC

Invoice
Covid Clinic
18800 Delaware St DATE: 10/17/2020
STE 800
Huntington Beach, CA 92648
(949) 287-8191 TIN: 85-0673475
Anthony Thomas
Po Box
Cabazon, CA - 92230
01/05/2011
QTY Service Delivered UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL
Rapid Antigen Test: COVID-19 Testing, Z11.59 CPT: 87426 TIN: 85-
1 0673475 $150.00 $150.00
OTHER COMMENTS Subtotal: $150.00

Covid Clinic encourages every patient to seek
reimbursement from their insurance provider
(s). This invoice should help with the seeking a
reimbursement from your insurance provider. Paid: $150.00

Balance Due: $0.00



(a‘r/wu

@COVID CLINIC

Invoice
Covid Clinic
18800 Delaware St DATE: 10/17/2020
STE 800
Huntington Beach, CA 92648
(949) 287-8191 TIN: 85-0673475
Eden Thomas
Po Box
Cabazon, CA - 92230
05/01/2014
QTY Service Delivered UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL
Rapid Antigen Test: COVID-19 Testing, Z11.59 CPT: 87426 TIN: 85-
1 0673475 $150.00 $150.00
OTHER COMMENTS Subtotal: $150.00

Covid Clinic encourages every patient to seek
reimbursement from their insurance provider
(s). This invoice should help with the seeking a
reimbursement from your insurance provider. Paid: $150.00

Balance Due: $0.00



New Business

3.Discussion/Action Item:

Transfer of funds from the District’s General
Account to the District’s LAIF (savings)
Account.

"O/ V)



91 \,\-QLQ

Old Business

1.Discussion/Action Item:

NBS Water Rate Study and Review and
Discussion.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND WORKSHOP ON PROPOSED
ADJUSTMENTS AND INCREASES TO
CABAZON WATER DISTRICT WATER SERVICE CHARGES

The Cabazon Water District invites the public to attend a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, November 17, 2020, at
6:00 p.m., to consider the adoption of a 5-year schedule of water rates. The public hearing will be held at the District offices
located at 14618 Broadway Street, Cabazon, CA 92230. The purpose of the public hearing is to consider all oral testimony
and written protests to, and the adoption of, the proposed rates. If adopted, the new water rates will go into effect for
services provided on and after January 1, 2021, and will be adjusted each January 1 thereafter beginning January 1, 2021,
and through and including, January 1, 2025.

REASONS FOR THE RATE ADJUSTMENTS AND INCREASES

The District is committed to providing the highest quality water at the lowest possible rates for our customers. To meet this
commitment, over the last five years the District has worked to manage operations and maintenance costs and maintain
lower water rate increases. Despite these efforts, there are costs that continue to increase that cannot be avoided. The District
engaged NBS consultants (NBS) to perform an independent water rate study and evaluate the infrastructure, programs, and

rerations and maintenance costs of the District’s water services and the rates necessary to recover the costs of those services
.r the next five years. A cost of service and rate study demonstrates what it costs the District to provide water service and
the appropriate rates to fairly and appropriately allocate the costs of providing water to our customers. The cost of providing
water includes not only the water the District pumps, but the infrastructure that treats and delivers the water to ensure that
there is safe and reliable water to meet the demands of all of our water customers twenty-four hours a day, seven days a
week.

Based on NBS’s evaluation, it has been determined that rate adjustments and increases are necessary for the District’s water
service charges to enable the District to:

recover current and long-term projected costs of operating and maintaining the water system;

fund capital infrastructure improvements needed to repair and update the District’s aging water system;
maintain the operational and financial stability of the water utility;

comply with State mandated drinking and groundwater water regulatory requirements; and

avoid operational deficits and depletion of reserves.

PROPOSED RATES AND HOW THE RATES ARE CALCULATED

The proposed rates are calculated to recover the costs of providing water services and to proportionately allocate those costs
on a parcel basis among the District’s customers. The proposed water rate structure has two customer classes—Single
Family Residential (SFR), Non-Single Family Residential (Non-SFR). The District also provides water to one customer
pursuant to a contract. The proposed rate structure has three components—a Service Charge, a Volume Charge, and a Fire
Service Charge. The proposed rates are described in more detail below.

“ie proposed Service Charge is a fixed monthly charge calculated to recover a portion of the District’s fixed costs, such as
weter reading, billings and collections. The proposed rates for the Service Charge are established on the basis of the size of
.ie meter (in inches) serving a property to recover the incremental costs of sizing facilities to sufficiently deliver water to
properties served by larger meters. The Volume Charge is a variable charge imposed per unit of delivered water, with one
unit equal to one hundred cubic feet (HCF), or 748 gallons, and is calculated to recover a portion of the District’s fixed costs

1



2w
and its variable costs of providing water service. The Fire Service Charge is imposed on Single Family Residential, Non-
Single Family Residential, or Commercial customers who are required as a condition of extending or initiating water service
. '~ install a private fire suppression system on their property, or where the customer or property owner has requested the

clivery of water to the property for the purpose of fire service protection. The Fire Service Charge recovers that District’s
fixed costs of operating and maintaining infrastructure for private fire service.

For Single Family Residential customers the current rate structure for the Volume Charge has four tiers which impose higher
rates as the level of consumption increases. Under the proposed rates, for Single Family Residential customers the Volume
Charge will consist of three tiers. The tiers are designed to recover the incremental costs to the District of serving more
water to those who place higher demands and greater burdens on the District’s water system and resources. These costs
include, for example, sizing, operating and maintaining water pipes, reservoirs, pump stations and other related facilities to
meet this additional demand. Due to the varying consumption needs among Non-Single Family Residential customers and
the contract customer, and the relatively small number of these customers, the Volume Charge is a uniform rate per HCF of
water delivered during a billing period.

The amount of the Service Charge and the Fire Service Charge imposed is the same each month. The amount of the Volume
Charge imposed varies each month depending on the number of units of water each customer uses during the billing period.
The current rates and the proposed maximum rates and effective dates for the Service Charges, Fire Service Charges, and
Volume Charges are set forth in the tables below.

CURRENT AND PROPOSED RATES FOR MONTHLY FIXED SERVICE CHARGE

($METER SIZE)
Current Proposed Rates and Effective Dates
Rates as of 1/1/2021 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 1/1/2025
Meter Size 12/1/2020

5/8 inch $68.10 $25.29 $26.05 $26.83 $27.64 $28.47
3/4 inch $98.24 $35.20 $36.25 $37.34 $38.46 $39.62
{ inch $158.51 $55.00 $56.65 $58.35 $60.10 $61.91
1.5 inch $309.21 $104.52 $107.66 $110.89 $114.21 $117.64
2 inch $490.04 $163.94 $168.86 $173.92 $179.14 $184.52
3 inch $972.27 $322.39 $332.06 $342.03 $352.29 $362.86
4 inch $1514.77 $500.65 $515.67 $531.14 $547.08 $563.49
Contract (10 $2233.06 $2300.05 $2369.05 $4418.51 $4551.07 $4687.60
inch)

Construction $286.73 $344.40 $354.73 $365.38 $376.34 $387.63
Meters (3 inch)

CURRENT AND PROPOSED RATES FOR MONTHLY FIXED FIRE SERVICE CHARGE ($/METER SIZE)

Proposed Rates and Effective Dates
Meter Size Current Rates 1/1/2021 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 1/1/2025
4 inch $61.54 $34.05 $35.08 $36.13 $37.21 $38.33
6 inch $130.62 $70.78 $72.91 $75.09 $77.35 $79.67
8 inch $212.11 $119.76 $123.35 $127.05 $130.86 $134.79




75 | e

MOLIOLUQ]) PUN}
sojIunNuWIWo Bujdiey

_SdaN

il

: >u:um 91y 191E/\
— PUISIg J91e\ uozeqe) |

(2

= Ed
. 5 - =T

e

- | —
A e i — l||.m.....rp...+llr......_.. .
4 \A —_ g% Towk >

7

\

0202 ‘ST 12quia3das
x {bunaajy s,410333.11q Jo pinog

I




716 |\

0 A

Apnis ajey ay
JO MIIAIDAQ

$



77 f\dk

SISATVYNYV

DINYIS ¢
-10-1502

1VIONVNIA

I




18]\

ue|d |eldueuly



ing Priorities

ial Plan Fund

inanc

F

o

&

o
Iy

fa)
LTy " s -
st

ST AR AT A LEHPLEEEEEEER




&0 | e

Seoc veoc

sajey Builsixg Japun SaNU3NIY e

sasuadx3 N30 N

0€ aunf Sulpu3 Jeaj jeasty
€20t [44o14

Teoc

0coc

- INO'S

- IWTS

- HNY'S

- IN9'S

- TN 8'S

- INO'TS

- NINTZTS

NN VTS

NN 9°TS

IN8TS

suoiiesi|qo jenuuy

3Jueuajuiel) g suonesado



2 e

~

'/2/920C Ul S/ ‘STS SI ubo7 YMQa 10f 1uawdod [pul4 *T
leuolieN

€0L°88S €7/TT0T Ad ysnoayy 35414 UoizZ

:
Pl

T o sanh ] : e
.q.amw\ ! 3 f .« ; b
siiizie
e

e .. .m..m“m..,w.. SOy ey =g T l.w H. %w i WM-
e t._..%“mmi % i B TLC 7 rw AL AL Sl ‘?

¥

s

i

Junowy  owenown 149G
jenuuy

3JIAIDS 109Q



82 [ W

0€ aunf 3ujpu3 Jea; jedssid
§20¢ veoe €20¢ (4414 Teoc 0zoc

sajey BuilsIxg JOpUN SINUIADY eammm
sasuadx3 'S0 I
MRS 1qeg T

III||||/

N O'S

BN TS

NN v

IN9'S

W8S

IIN 0TS

NN TTS

A TS

A 9°TS

N 8°TS

suonesijqo jenuuy

9JIAJ9S 19




23 |ude

i ~

‘(xapuj uoiypojful 3507 UoIINIISUOD YNT 42d) S31DWIIS3 1500 [pUIbLIO 01 Paljddp upaA 1ad %g fo uonoifur sapnpul T

S¢0¢ ‘ v20¢ ; €20¢ v rq4irs A 120¢ _

0TS‘cz $|SS8'Te S |8I¢‘TT S | 059'69€ $ | 000‘02S $ 150D weJSoad dID :|e1ol
- - - 00SVST - qeyay 3jneA eyuog
, Jojesauagd a|gepod Jo
- ) - ) 00052 GM '8 TM 01 XOg Jajsuel| 3 co_uumccouu.
- - - - - 000°0ST qeyay T# juey
i} - - - 000°0¥C qeyay T# TTM uononpold
- - - 0ST80T - Xona] AN 921nes
- - - 006°0€ - aqu] Aq pay207 pueT uoiaas yoeaq
0TS‘Ce GS8'T¢ 8TC'TC 009°0¢ 000°0¢ sjuawade|day 4913\ J91eM
i - - - 000°ST 3 92417 1€ JuelpAH 3414 918I0|9Y
- S|- S |- $ [ 00S‘TS S| 0000C S (s1dw-asnoya2)) Auadoud 19anS uley

uondiidsaqg afoad

weisold Juswanosdwj jeude)




Y4

Ol

R

saley Bunsix3 JSpun SBNUBAASY e
sasuadx3 W30 Il
3dIAeSIqag—

s108(044 [e3ided =3

0€ aunr Suipug 1eaA |edsid

€20C

(44114

- INO'S

- INO'TS

- INS'TS

"N 0TS

IIN S°TS

suones|qo |enuuy

weidoldd Juswanoidw) jeude)



s e

: e

Juswade|day

13 qeysy |eude

B

Vi

HE R P

pun4 aAI9S9Y

Slosse 1au JO %9

Spun4 aAJ13s3Yy



80 | |yl

cl

0€ aunf Suipu3 Jea, {easty

S¢0¢ 12414 €20 (44014 Y414 0z0¢
- - INO'S
oouejeq 198.1e] |2Op| e
2Jue|eg 9A19SY 1953.18] WINWIUIN e
aduejeq ysed Suipu3
aAIas3Y 1930 PARLISY N L NS
- IINO'TS
W S'TS
NN 0TS
NN S'ZS

sajey paisnipy 1apun
}93.4e] DAI9SDY "SA dduejeg yse) payiafoad




21 | e

el

0€ aunr 3ujpug Jeap [eIsl4
S20? vezoz €202 44114

saley PaIsn(py JOpUN SaNUaASY e e e
sajey Buiisix3 JopuUN SANUSADY e
sasuadx3j W30 I

MAIBSIq3Q 0]

s329l0.d |edide) =3

- INO'S

- INO'TS

- INS'TS

NN 0TS

NN S'2$

suonesijqo |[enuuy

9NUIAJY djey 03 sjuswisnipy pajrialoid



=

142

SiSAjeuyy 92IA43S JO 1S0)



29 |\

$1S0)

|
A oul Bicmeoigll | =20
lpowwo) o s . JBWoIsn)
_ 9 _

SCORLLAR NI B rIO 1, 3702 U N p”

d|qellen

Sjusawalinbay anuanay

uoIedI4ISSe|) puk uoijezijeuoidung




ao k!

_ Y

e | i

,_-,x.m.whe e

%V 1¢C $150) Alipowwio)
..

S
=4 @ o T

wm.
e (L Ty

o
S T
! AR

!
i
s
bt

w.._mpcmuhmn_ Eom

*JUO0J ‘Uuoijedijisse|) pue uoijezijeuoildoung



U | el

Ll

uoI10NJISUO0)

10e41uo0)

¥Y4S-UON/|eldJawwo)

(44S) [e1auapisay Ajlwed 9|3uls

— N o <

sasse|) Jawoisn)



(e

[
1

47

8l

udisaqg 9a3jey



61

Cf?r(tmm

paJal]l pue wuoyun/ield 21n32nJ3S ey a|geliep
Aj1oede) aljnelpAY 4919 94N3on11S 91ey paxi4
S,% 91ey s981ey) oajqelien

9jqeldep/paxi4 aAlleUIR|Y € "SA paxi4 JO UoneIo||Y

12BJJUO0) ¥ UOI3dNJISUOD)
“Y4S-UON/Wwo) Y4S :4no4 Sasse|) Jawoisn) Jo #

10143S1g 4918\
uozeqe) J0j siseg

sjusauodwo) udisaqg aiey

sjuauodwo) usisaqg aiey




g |\

0¢

||qeren %0L / Paxld %0€
(T2-0202) syuawalinbay
9NUINY 13N pIrsnipy

J 3AnDUI3A}Y I1DY

ajqelen %09 / paxid %0v
(Tz-0202) stuswaiinbay

9NUBAJY 12N pRisnipy

g IA1IDUIIYY 31DY

0SC9TY‘T S 0SC9TY‘T S 0SC9TY'T S Juawalinbay anuanay 18N

9LT'E0C S 9L1'€0C  $ 9/1'e0Cc  $ Sa3ey JPLIIU0) WO} INUINAIY

%00T | pLO'ETZ'T S %007 vLO'ETT'T $ %007 VLO‘ETZ'T S - leaol
%Vv0 €60°S S %v0 €60°S S %V 0 €60°S S $1503 Pale|ay - UoNIN0.Id 94l
%0°S 98€'09 S %0°S 98€'09 S %0°S 98€°09 S S$150) p3ie|ay - J;2woisn)
; ) . : : (34BYs paxiy)

%9°vC Evv'86e S %9°vE 0SL6TV S %9 vy LSOTYS S §1507 parejay - Awpeden
. ; ) g . > (24eys d1432WIN|OA)
%9°8v c9£'68s S %9°8€ 85089 S %9°8¢ 1SL9vE S 51507 patejay - Awoeded
.1 4 ¥4 98L'6S5¢ S »v'1C 98.'65C S %V'IC 98.'65C S $150) paie|ay - Apowwo)

Aio391e)
|[euondung

S9AIRUId}|Y udisaqg a1ey




95 | \ue

uoIiloNJIsuo0)
/ 44S-UON / |eldiawwo)

SRR

ajey a|gelien SSe[) Jawoisn)

ajey a|qeliep



F@ |ugle

¢ce
8C'TIS S6°0TS €9°0TS CE01S 70°0TS 45 PY+T g€49l]
oS €795 G09S L8°SS 0L°SS GE'ES PYYI-8 [ LIk
TS ] AN oT°es €0°CS 86°TS €S°TS PYLO TJ91L
jeaig pasodoid
{(s1aw01sn) Y4S) a1ey paiail
V/N V/N V/N 90°vS v6°€S €8°'€S ajey Jpesuo)
L8VS ELVS 65°vS 0T'sS S0°SS 96°CS (uo13onuIsu0) + Y4S-UoN) a3y wuoiun _
pawnsuo) J3JeM JO oy uad ey |
sol D Aipowiwio) |
- 6LVELS | 98°0ET$ | S0/Z1S | seects | o961 | trenes | puig |
L9°6LS SE'LLS 60°SLS 16°2LS 8L°0LS 79'0€TS youig
€€°8€S TTLES €T'9€S 80°SES SOvES ¥S°T9S Yyout
:s981eY) 921A43S 3414 Ajyluowy
8G°LL9S S8°£S9S 69°8€9S 60°029S €0°209S €L°98CS (Yyout €) 1333 UOIIINIISUO)
0€°€6¥'8S 16'SC'8s G/'S00‘8S S0'69€CS S0°00€ ¢S 90°€€T‘CS (you1 oT) WENUOD
SS'910°TS ¥6'9865 61°856S 6C'0€6S 6T°€06S LLVTSTS Yyaur g
187595 08°€€9S ¥€'ST19S ' 16SS 70°08SS LTTL6S Yyoul g
0S°62€S 06°'6T€ES 85°0TES €5°TOES QL'T6TS ¥0°06vS Yauig
SC°80CS 61°c0¢s 0€'96TS 85°06TS €0°'S8TS TZ'60€S Yur gt
TZ°L0TS 60°V0TS 90°'101S 21865 92'S6S TS'8STS yourg
08'99S S8'79S 96°C9$ €T°19S GE'6SS v2'865 Youl /€
65915 €TSS 26'EYS ENAR) (0728872 0T1°89S youi g/s

ST/v20C Ad | YT/€20C Ad | €2/220C A4 | 2e/Te0Z Ad | T2/020C Ad

s9jey pasodo.d

u344n)

9|NpaYds aiey 1918\

(31qenen %0S / paxid %0S) — S9ley pasodold




47 | e

4
SY'vIS E0VTS 79°€ETS ZTETS v8°ZTS Trss PY +T €431
88°LS §9°L$ ev'L$ TT'LS 00°LS se'es PYYT-8 z491L
TS 9T°C$ 0T'z$ €0°CS 86'TS €S'T$ PYLO T431L
yealg pasodold

{(s1awo1sN) Y4S) ey pasall

V/N V/N V/N 90'%$ v6°€S €8'€$ 3jey 1esjuod

LE'SS 12°SS$ 90°S$ TE9S zr9s 96°7S (uonaNJISUOD + H4S-UON) 21ey wiojiun

6L VETS
L9°6LS
€€'8ES

19°7€SS
Sb°065°9S
20°06.S
¥8°£0SS
10°£STS
¥6°79TS
958
12°€SS
€G°L€S

SZ/Y20C Ad | VT/ECOZ A4 | €2/220C Ad | Te/1e0Z A4 | 12/020T A4

98'0€1S
SELLS
1T°LES

60°LTSS
6v°86€9$
10°£9.$
v0°'€6vS
4N 74
0T'8STS
01°78$
99°15$
tb9€s$

S0°LTTS
60°SLS
ET'9ES

€0°20S$
€T°CTT'9S
L9YYLS
89'8/S
STTveS
65°€STS
TL°6LS
ST°0S$
8€°GES

sajey pasodouid

GE'ETIS
16°2LS
80°GES

' L8YS
G0'69€TS
86°72LS
YL Y9y
0z'sees
AN
8€°LLS
69°'8vS
GEVES

9,'611S
8L°0LS
SOvES

TTELYS
G0°00€°CS
26°10LS
0z 1SYS
GE'87TS
LL VTS
€T°SLS
LTLYS
v €S

1T
79°0€TS
¥5°19S

€£°987S
90°€£2°TS
LLYTSTS
LTTU6S
¥0°06vS
12'60€S
15°8STS
v2°'86$
01°89%

saley
juain)

:pawinsuo) 133\ JO Joy 13d ajey
sabioy) Aipowwio)
your g
yauig
youty
:s981eYD 321A3S 3di4 Ajyuopw
(youi g) s1919W\ uoIIPNIISUOD)
(you1 0t1) EIUO)
Yyout ¢
Yyoui e
Yyauie
Yyauist
youl g
Yurp/e
yauig/g
:sa84ey) 32195 paxi4 Ajyluon
sabiny) 4313\ paxid

3|nNpayas 3iey 191\

(31qelen %09 / paxid %0v) — S9ley pasodold




a2 | oo

vc
79°LTS TT°LTS T99TS FARCIAS S9'STS (AR PY+HT giail
GE'6S 80°6S 18'8S GS'8S 1€°8S SE'ES PYHT-8 ¢491L
[AArA 91°7S 1) ArAN €0°CS 86'TS €S°TS PY L0 TJall
yeaig pasodold
:(saow03sN) Y4S) ey pasall
V/N v/N v/N 90°'vS v6°€S €8°€S ajey 1Ie4Iu0)
L8°SS 69°SS €9°6S 18 ATAS 0C'LS 96°CS (uopniysuo) + Ew-:ozv ajey wuojiun
Ipawnsuo) 1338 M\ JO oy 1ad ajey
sabuny) Ajipowwo)
6L VETS 98°0€TS S0°/2TS GE'ETTS 9/°6TTS 11212 yaui g
L9°6/S SELLS 60°S.LS 16°2LS 8L°0LS 79°0€TS ysuig
€€°8€S TT'LES €T°9€S 80°SES SO'vES ¥S'19S youry
:s384ey) 9211u3S 3114 Ajyluop
€9°/8€S vE9LES 8€°G9€S €L°VSES oV vheS €£'98C$ (Youi €) s1333\ UOIINIISUO)
09°L89VS LOTSSVS 1S 8TV'vS S0°69€CS S0°00€CS 90°€€C‘TS (Your oT) PEIIUOD
6v°€95S 80°L¥SS PTTESS £9°STSS 59°00SS LLYVTISTS yaul ¢
98°79¢S 60 TSES €0°TVES 90°C€EES 6€°CCES LTTL6S Youl g
S¥8TS YT 6LTS T6°ELTS 98°'89TS v6°€9TS ¥0°06vS youi g
¥9°LTTS TTYTTS 68°0TTS 99°'/0TS 7S P0TS 12°60€S youi gt
16°'T9S 0T°09S GE'8SS $9°95S 00°9SS 15°8STS yourg
79°6£S 9¥'8€S vELES GZ'9€S 0C'SES v7°865 Youl y/¢
LY'8TS ¥9°LTS €8'9CS S0°9ZS 6C°STS 0T89S Youi 8/
:sa8iey) 20113S paxi4 Ajyruow
sabiny?) 12313\ paxid

SZ/vT0T Ad | v2/€e0e Ad | €2/Z20Z Ad | TZ/T20C Ad | TZ/020T Ad saiey

a|nNpayas aiey Jaie

sajey pasodoud uaLn)

(1qelien %0L / PaxId %0€) — Saley pasodoid




ISEVY'TS
2E°002°TS
TT'L56$

LT'TSO'TS
9¢'6/8$
#590L _
8S'vTY
18°099%
6€'855%
96'SSt
85'9829

EL'LYES
T9'TOES

05'SS¢S [
8T'¥81
6T'T61S
ETELTS

97'sSTS
86'CETS

Z6°2ITS
€0'60T$
ST'SOTS
8E'LOTS

96'885
6'["68'5
tv'68S
16 86$

Average
Summer

QECLS
81'GLS
20°'8.$
1T26S

s
9
gcu
» £
::
T

o3, o)
E vV
o

O g
— el
= {19
o o
.

5 O
g3
T o
S a
=
:‘g&.
5 ¢
T o
v £
o ©
n:x..
5
O

€0'SSS

81'T9$

29'99$
15°S89

ST'LES
0Z'stS
ST'ESS

8TLLS

SER Bill - Alt C (30F/70V)

SFR Bill - Current
m SFR Bill - Alt A (SOF/SOV)

 SFR Bill - Alt B (40F/60V)

LT'6ES
CELYS
69°2LS

g Ajyauo

9 (1ol

Monthly Water Consumption (HCF)



(oo t \U?k.l

ELLSTTS

8L'70T'T

0O
U
=
rel
S

(40H) uondwinsuo) 1aiepy Ajyiuo

g
Jawuing
a8esony

ld
jenuuy
a8eiany

(AOL/40€) D 31V - [118 |e1uBWWO)

(n09/40p) 8 IV - 1118 [el218wWo) B

(NO0S/40S) v 31V - 119 |euewiwo) m
juaiin) - |ig |elaiswwo)

(4933w Youl-8/s) sarey pasododd "SAIua4in)
uosuedwo) |jig 1918/ |e1JaWwwo)

lig Ajyauon




o1 gl

uondwnsuo) id3epn

LC
¢S EVY'TS | LT°2SO'TS | T8'099S €L LYES 6T'T6TS 9|qelen %0L / PaXid %0€ - D UV
ZE00T‘TS | 9€°6/8S 6£°85SS T9'TOES ETELTS 9|qeueA %09 / paxld %0 - 9 IV
(4 WA ¥590LS 96°SSYS 058°SSTS 9C'SSTS 9|qeleA %0S / Paxid %0S - V 1V
8G°TYSS 8S'VIvS 8G'98¢CS 8T V8TS 86'CETS uaun)
uoizdwnsuo) Jaiemn i V21 Y
6'TITS 96°88S GE'TLS €1°59S ST'LES cTTES alqelen %0L / PaxXld %0€ - D UV
€0'60TS 61°68S 8T'S/LS 8T'T9S 0T'svsS LT6ES dlqeleA %09 / PaxXld %0V - 9 UV
GT'SOTS r'68S 20'8LS 79'99S QT €SS e LYS d|qeuen %0S / Paxid %0S - V UV
8€'LOTS 16'86S 12265 19°98S 8TLLS 69°CLS uaun)

aAlleUId}|Y 91y

suosiaedwo) ||ig |ennuapisay Ajiweq ajuis




oz tole

8¢
T9'v9V'TS | 8L'VOT'TS | L8'1T6S S6 LS ¥0°99SS TT'TCYS 3|qelUeA %0L / PaxXId %0€ - D IV
€L°LST'TS | VY9'TS6S 65°86.S ¥9°9v9S 6V 26vS G0'0LES 3|qeueA %09 / Paxid %0t - 9 IV
G8'0S0°TS | 6v'86LS T€CL9S TARE] 21 v6'61VS 00°6TES d|qeueA %0S / Paxid %0S - V HV
0T°099S 0T'ZISS OT'8EVS OT'¥9€S 0T 06TS 06°0€2S uaain)
uondwnsuo) 133\ SR RN/ ER
GS'LCES 9T'E€TES 81°79CS 78°06TS YT EETS 92°'L6S 8C'T9S 9|qeuen %0L / Paxid %0€ - I UV

LY°06CS TT8LTS LESETS STVLIS LT'STTS 99'v6S S6°€95 3|qeuen %09 / paxid %0y - 8 1V
8E'ESTS 6T EVTS 96°L0TS 8'LSTS 0T'LT1S L8'T6S €999 3|qeueA %05 / paxid %0S - V 3V
retsS 05°98T$ 8L'G9TS 8T'9€TS 09°CTTS 0L'L6S 06'28$ juaung

aAleUId]|Y dleY

CO_HQEBmCOU 191\

suosiiedwo) ||ig |[elluapISaYy-UON



103 | R

6C

suonsany



o4 l\ale.

0¢

|elialeAl Adejuswad|ddng



&> \ AL
|

uolle|ju| 1s0J |eyde)

%C 9Sea Jamoy |[9D

%E |on4
%G'€ ISTRINRRETE

%9 uose|ju| syljauag

%€ uoneju| Alejes

% UOIIBJU]| 1SOD) [BJDUID)

%0 YIMOJ5) Jawoisn)

s10}oe4 uonepuj




0€ | yde

A
wds 0oy wd3 00Z‘Y yau| 0T
wds 009‘T wds 000°T Yau| 9
wds 0G€ wds oze yauj €
| wd3 00T wds 00T | You| §°T
wds8 og wd3 og Yyau| /€

wds oz youj 8/9

Ajdede) JijnelpAH

T



ee

T |l

xs|x'paie|ndiuelN ZOJOTOD 1LYOdIYIOVSN uozeqe) :s3|lj 92un0§
‘Alyruow s|[1q9 @MD '6T0Z Wody st uondwnsuo) T

%00T | 9T0'9LT ~ lesol
%L'T V€6 UOIPNIISUO)
%E"SC [0S VP 1eqluo)
%E"0C 099°S€ |BIDJ3WIWO0) /Y4S-UON J3Y10
%b°€S GT6'E6 |le1luspisay Ajlwed a|8uls

awnjoA [eyor| . (424)
sse|) Jawoisn)

JO JUu9di9d SWN|OA

sse|) Joawoisn) Aq uondwnsuo) Ja1ep



| tete.

4%

-

(o2

Xs|xpap[ndiubiN- Z0IT0D LY¥0dIYIDYSN U0ZDGD) PuDb XSIX'ZOITOI AYYWINNS SLIOJV NVNI4~U0Zogn) s3]} 3d4nos

‘elep JowWolsnd 6T0Z AMD dYl uo paseq si eyep uondwnsuo) g

‘uoidwnsuod Jawwns a8eiane s1 Yaiym oy T 0113siujod yeauq g 4911

‘uozeqe) ul uondwnsuod Joopu| 95eIaAE JO 31ewW1ISa ue ‘uondwnsuod J3juIm aSesane 0313siutod yealq T 4311 T

uondwnsuo)

dds ||ejol
Jo 23ejuadiad

: uofdwnsuo)

pajadx]

%00T | ST6'E6 3 |  l=oL
%0¢ 618'ST -- €Joll
%€l 0Eh‘TC PYPvT ¢ 491l
%LS 999°¢cS PYL T 911

- julodyesig

Alyiuony

1311 Aq uondwnsuo)

:O_HQEZm:OU 191\ PaJol] H4S




o | e

GE

‘(s|1gejiene jou eyep Aep yead) ejep Ajyjuow xead uo paseg 't

1030e4
Apede)

YIUOIAI XEIA

1037e4

Alyjuo yead

. ($3u)
asn Ajyauo
Nead

(34)
asn Ajyiuo
93esany

%00T G612t 89911 |eo)
%C CC €€°1 126y 60LE }enuo)
%C’°E )7 7 6TL T91 uoI3dNJISU0)
%L°CC 69T €0‘s TL6°C |eII3WWO) /Y4S-UON 43Y10
%6°'TS JA'A 12STT 978'L |lennuapisay Ajlwe4 a|3uis

sse|) Jawoisn)

sse|) Jawoisn) Ag sunjead




ot

xs|x'paie|ndiuelN z0JDTOD LYOdIYIDVYSN uozeqe) :$3|l} 924n0S
‘Ajyruow s||1q @MD '6T0OZ 49qwa3ag wod}) S13Uun0) U313 T

%0°00T 8T6 jelol
%10 T 10e41U0)
%L 0 9 uoI130N11SU0)
%S0 q S19139|A 921IAI3S 2414
%L"S ZsS |eldJawwo) /44S-UoN JaYy10
%0°E6 S8 |lelruapisay Ajlwe 9|3uls

|erol . Si1919AN
sse|D 419wo3isn)

Jo1uddiad | jouaqunp

sse|) Ag siawo3isn) Jo JaquinpN



Y 2 (153
. TN

““WATER

~ Final Report

YY) Water Rat&st d

OFFICE LOCATIONS:

Temecula - Corporate Headquarters
32605 Temecula Parkway, Suite 100
Temecula, CA 92592

San Francisco — Regional Office 7 &
870 Market Street, Suite 1223 /

; -~ ™ { . b
San Francisco, CA 94102 - » ' *ﬁ g S B
Py e - g . Ik 3! .
L “ b i ...= <% 3

California Satellite Offices - S } ;; R 5
Fdero, Davis Prepared by:

Jtington Beach,

Joshua Tree, Riverside ; *
SACTEento. saviose N B y helping communities fund tomdarrow

www.nbsgov.com




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1.  Purpose and Overview of the Study......ccccoiviiiniiiiiiiiniiinccnninneseseeeneene. 1
AL PUIPOSE (oot iereene s ssiteairecceereees e e esirsraneeseesenasstrteereeesesssssssesesssnsasostbssasereeassensenrsrsaneessnes 1
B. OVErvIeW Of the STUY.......ooiiiiieeeeee et srescrar s csreneseresssaraesranenn 1

Section 2. Water Rate STUAY ....ccuuieemiiiiniiiiniiiniiiniiiisiiinisiisiinisiiniinmessesmereseseeesserarssessessesessans 4
A. Key Water Rate STUAY ISSUBS......couviriieierierietnrtenee et e et saasseasesreseeesreeannenen 4
B. FINANCIAI PIAN.. .ottt ete sttt s e s nae s st esseessrnre s asseaessseesanensnseenan 4
C. COSt Of SErVICE ANAIYSIS...ciriiierireiiriereeete e re e s e ee e ee e rae s s e e seeras e e esaeesbeesessaassaanes 7
D. Rate DESIZN ANAIYSIS c.uveiiirieieieriieriesiteeeiee e rree e ae e s tesssaressbeeestesseerresernneesnresssreeensene 14
E. Current and Proposed Water RateS ....ccccvevvieiiiiniiciirecreeree st e e 17
F. Comparison of Current and Proposed Water Bills .......cccocveeveiieceicnicnceeeeie e 18

Section 3. Recommendations and Next Steps ......cccccviiiiiiiiniiiinieninniiieniienisiessersiasseensenssees 20
A. Consultant Recommendations........coviiiiiieeree it sae e e e eenas 20
2 A Y {= o U OO O OO UURUPT PN 20
C. NBS’ Principal Assumptions and Considerations ..........ccccevveeeeceeniiecveeiineecee e 20

Appendix: Detailed Water Rate Study Tables and Figures

ll’l—/\\m



TABLE OF FIGURES

Figure 1. Primary Components of @ Rate STUAY ...oc.viiiiiiiiiii ettt eetees s eetrr e e e s are s e e e e eeans 1
Figure 2. Summary of Water Revenue REQUITEMENTS ......c.eiiciieiiieeiieeie et cee et sesebe e eesnneeae s e seenns 6
Figure 3. SUMMAry Of RESEIVE FUNMS ....ooviieiiieietee sttt sr st sa e stassn e s e e besres 6
Figure 4. Contract Charges and Projected REVENUE .........ccciiiiriiiceiinieeerctreerresessereie st e saesaresanesenessnes saseanns 7
Figure 5. Cost Classification SUMMAry .........ccovieiiiiiiiiniericrnerresenineseenes st sseesie e insssssssssssssesssseesseessessassases 8
Figure 6. Allocation of Water Revenue REQUIrEMENTS ......ccccovvevciieiiieiiecieeeiieeecieeestteeseeeree s e steeenaesereesaneeessrenns 9
Figure 7. Water Consumption by CUSTOMET CIaSS ....cccvivieiieiiiiiiiiieec ettt erree s eeeceeessesneesnvrssrstrs e ersarresrensenes 10
Figure 8. Peaking Factors by CUStOMEr CIass.......ccuiiiiiririiiiiniiiinieesieerictieeeescrrer e e ereeessesseesensreesrneaseesssnesssensens 10
Figure 9. Single-Family Residential Peak Capacity Allocation FACtors........ccccevveeiineecriesesresreee e ee e 11
Figure 10. Number of Meters by CUSTOMEr Class ......c.cvieeiieririiniieiieeieeeireeessiessstrssetsesnsesreestbessereessseeenseeenens 11
Figure 11. Cost AHOCEHION METhOUOIOZY . .vviiiiiiiiciiccee ittt et et ente s erssres e ebessreaesrtaesnnseeesnns 11
Figure 12. Capacity Related Costs (fixed share) AllOCatioN .......c..ccveeeererriiniiecii et 12
Figure 13. Customer Related Cost AlIOCAtIoN .........ceeeviiriiiicir ettt ste et sre e e esesreaeaeeas 13
Figure 14. Fire Protection Cost AlIOCAtION ......c.ivciiiiiiiii ettt et ettt ste e e etaesabreeebeaeebeeasenes 13
Figure 15. Commodity Related Costs AllOCatION.......coviiiiiiirie ittt e e st aaeesn e e sre e e e ens 14
Figure 16. Capacity Related Costs (variable Share) .........ccocvveeiviiiiiiiiicic e e e 14
Figure 17. Fixed Meter Charges FY 2020/21......ccccccvieieeiriiarerennesreniessesresiesesansesssensassessssseessesmsssssenssessessseens 15
Figure 18. Single Family Residential Commodity Related COStS ......cccoivviiiiiecieeii et 16
Figure 19. Single Family Residential Capacity Related Costs (variable share)..........cccccoovieeiieeccee e cvnreerene 16
Figure 20. Calculated Variable Charges for FY 2020/21....covuiiieiiieiiiieieeeciteeseesre s esttesssnessonieseseenraessrnnnes 17
Figure 21. Updated Fee Schedule for CONStruction CUSTOMENS .......c.cvvvuieiiveeveeeeesienriesreeeesinesseseaeeeeestesasnens 17
Figure 22. Current and Proposed Water RGeS .......ccccuiieiiiiciie ettt etee et v este s etre s eeneetae s s etneesnnesesenns 18
Figure 23. Monthly Bill Comparison for Single Family CUSTOMErS .........covviieivieceiesie e et 19

Figure 24. Monthly Water Bill Comparison for Commercial CUSTOMEIS ......cccveevviieiireciieeesecereeeevreeerree e 19



i wds

Section1. PURPOSE AND OVERVIEW OF THE STUDY (

A. Purpose

Cabazon Water District (District, CWD) retained NBS to conduct an update of the 2017 water rate study for
a number of reasons, including meeting revenue requirements and updating the water rate structure. The
rates resulting from this study were developed in a manner that is consistent with industry standard cost of
service principles. In addition to documenting the rate study methodology, this report is provided with the
intent of assisting the District to maintain transparent communications with its residents and businesses.

In developing new water rates, NBS worked cooperatively with District staff and the District’s Board of
Directors (Board) in selecting appropriate rate alternatives. Based on input from District staff and the Board,
the proposed water rates are summarized in this report.

B. Overview of the Study

Comprehensive rate studies such as this one typically include the following three components, as outlined
in Figure 1:

1. Preparation of a Financial Plan, which identifies the net revenue requirements for the utility.

2. Cost of Service Analysis, which determines the cost of providing water service to each customer
class.

3. Rate Design Analysis, which evaluates different rate design alternatives.

Figure 1. Primary Components of a Rate Study

COST-OF-
RATE DESIGN

ERVICE ANALYSIS

ANALYSIS
Compares current sources and Proportionately allocates the Considers what rate structure will
uses of funds and determines the revenue requirements to the best meet the District’s need to
revenue needed from rates and customer classes in compliance collect rate revenue from each
projects rate adjustments. with industry standards and State customer class.

Law.

These steps are intended to follow industry standards and reflect the fundamental principles of cost-of-
service rate making embodied in the American Water Works Association (AWWA) Principles of Water Rates,
Fees, and Charges’, also referred to as the M1 Manual. They also address requirements under Proposition
218 that rates not exceed the cost of providing the service, and that they be proportionate to the cost of
providing service for all customers. In terms of the chronology of the study, these three steps represent the

1 Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1, AWWA, seventh edition, 2017.

5 Cab Water District
ONBS "Woter Rate Study 3



order they were performed. Detailed tables and figures documenting the development of the proposed
rates are provided in the Appendix.

FINANCIAL PLAN

As a part of this rate study, NBS projected revenues and expenditures on a cash flow basis for the next five
years. The amount of rate revenue required that will allow capital projects to be funded and reserves to be
maintained at the approved levels, is known as the net revenue requirement. Although current rate revenue
covers all the net revenue requirements, rate adjustments -- or more accurately, adjustments in the total
revenue collected from water rates -- are recommended in order to fund planned capital improvement
projects and keep reserve funds at healthy levels. This report presents an overview of the methodologies,
assumptions, and data used, along with the financial plans and proposed rates developed in this study?.

RATE DESIGN ANALYSIS

Rate Design is typically the stage in the study where NBS, staff and the Board must work closely together, to
develop rate alternatives that will meet the District’s objectives. It is important for the District to send
proper price signals to its customers about the actual cost of their water usage. This objective is typically
addressed through both the magnitude of the rates, and the rate structure design. In other words, both the
amount of revenue collected and the way in which the revenue is collected from customers are important
to consider.

Several criteria are typically considered in setting rates and developing sound rate structures. The
fundamentals of this process have been documented in several rate-setting manuals, such as the AWWA
Manual M1. The foundation for evaluating rate structures is generally credited to James C. Bonbright in the
Principles of Public Utility Rates® which outlines pricing policies, theories, and economic concepts along with
various rate designs. The following is a simplified list of the attributes of a sound structure:

¢ Rates should be easy to understand from the customer’s perspective.

¢ Rates should be easy to administer from the utility’s perspective.

e Rates should promote the efficient allocation of the resource.

® Rates should be equitable and non-discriminating (that is, cost based).

e There should be continuity in the ratemaking philosophy over time.

e Rates should address other utility policies (for example, encouraging conservation & economic
development).

* Rates should provide month-to-month and year-to-year revenue stability.

The following are the basic rate design criteria that were considered in this study:

Rate Structure Basics —The vast majority of water rate structures contain a fixed or minimum charge in
combination with a volumetric charge. The revenue requirements for each customer class are collected
from both fixed monthly meter charges and variable commodity charges. Based on direction from the Board
of Directors, the rates proposed in this report are designed to collect 30 percent of rate revenue from the

2 The complete financial plan is set forth in the Appendix.
3 James C. Bonbright; Albert L. Danielsen and David R. Kamerschen, Principles of Public Utility Rates, (Arlington, VA: Public Utilities
Report, Inc., Second Edition, 1988}, p. 383-384.

: ‘ Cabazon Water District
ONBS " Water Rate Stucy )

\lS/W



ufyge

fixed meter charges and 70 percent from the variable commodity charges, which is the opposite of the
District’s current rate structure.

Fixed Charges — Fixed charges can be called base charges, minimum monthly charges, customer charges,
fixed meter charges, etc. Fixed charges for water utilities typically increase by meter size based on meter
equivalent capacity factors.

Volumetric (Consumption-Based) Charges - In contrast to fixed charges, variable costs such as purchased
water, the cost of electricity used in pumping water, and the cost of chemicals for treatment tend to change
with the quantity of water produced. For a water utility, variable charges are generally based on metered
consumption and charged on a dollar-per-unit cost (for example, per 100 cubic feet, or hcf).

Uniform (Single-Tier) Water Rates — There are significant variations in the basic philosophy of variable
charge rate structure alternatives. Under a uniform (single tier) rate structure, the cost per unit does not
change with consumption, and provides a simple and straightforward approach from the perspective of
customers regarding their understanding of the rates, and for the utility’s administration and billing of the
rates.

Multi-Tiered Water Rates — In contrast to a uniform tier, an inclining block rate structure attempts to send a
price signal to customers that their consumption costs are greater as more water is consumed. Tiered water
rates are intended to represent the higher costs for customers that contribute more to peak summertime
usage and place greater demands on the system. The types of higher costs reflected, for example, in the
highest tier of the rate structure may include:

s Conservation program costs: intended to encourage customers to eliminate inefficient and wasteful
water use, and otherwise reduce consumption during peak periods.

* Replacement Water costs: when consumption exceeds the amount of the District’s allocated water
rights, the agency incurs additional costs for replacement water in order to meet that increased
demand. That replacement water comes at a higher cost.

¢ Energy costs: during summer months, the District may pay more in electric charges to pump, treat
and deliver water, and have a higher percentage of its energy bill in higher electricity “tiers”.

¢ Higher maintenance costs: peak periods tend to have higher numbers of service calls, capacity
costs, and system maintenance issues when the water system is running at peak demand.

4 s Cabazon Water District
W) N BS Water Rate Study 3



Section 2. WATER RATE STUDY

A. Key Water Rate Study Issues
The District’s water rate analysis was undertaken with a few specific objectives, including:

e Avoiding operational deficits and further depletion of reserves.

e Generating additional revenue needed to meet projected funding requirements.

* Adjusting the rate structure to collect a greater share of revenue from variable charges and less
revenue from fixed charges.

e Continuing to encourage water conservation with a tiered rate structure.

NBS developed various water rate alternatives as requested by District staff over the course of this study. All
rate structure alternatives relied on industry standards and cost-of-service principles. The rate alternative
that will be implemented, is ultimately the decision of the Board. The fixed and volume-based charges were
calculated based on the net revenue requirements, number of customer accounts, water consumption, and
other District-provided information.

B. Financial Plan

It is important for municipal utilities to maintain reasonable reserves in order to handle emergencies, fund
working capital, maintain a good credit rating, and generally follow healthy financial management practices.
Rate adjustments are governed by the need to meet operating and capital costs, maintain adequate debt
coverage, and build reasonable reserve funds. The current state of the District, with regard to these
objectives, is as follows:

* Meeting Net Revenue Requirements: For FY 2020/21 through FY 2024/25, the projected net
revenue requirement (that is, total annual expenses plus debt service and rate-funded capital costs,
less non-rate revenues) for the District is approximately $1.3 million, annually on average. If no rate
adjustments are implemented, the District is projected to see a $280,000 deficit in fiscal year
2020/21.

¢ Building and Maintaining Reserve Funds: Reserve funds provide a basis for a utility to cope with
fiscal emergencies such as revenue shortfalls, asset failure, and natural disasters, among other
events. Reserve policies provide guidelines for sound financial management, with an overall long-
range perspective to maintain financial solvency and mitigate financial risks associated with revenue
instability, volatile capital costs, and emergencies. The District plans to accumulate approximately
$1,500,000 in reserves by the end of FY 2024/25. These reserve funds for the Utility are considered
unrestricted reserves and consist of the following:

* The Operating Reserve should equal approximately 180 days of operating expenses, which
is $707,000 at the end of FY 2024/25. An Operating Reserve is intended to promote
financial viability in the event of any short-term fluctuation in revenues and/or
expenditures. Fluctuations in revenue can be caused by weather patterns, the natural
inflow and outflow of cash during billing cycles, natural variability in demand-based revenue
streams (such as volumetric charges), and — particularly in periods of economic distress —
changes or trends in age of receivables.

| ‘ Cab Water District
ONBS “Water Rate Sty :



WD\

= The Capital Rehabilitation and Replacement Reserve should equal at least 6 percent of net
capital assets which is approximately $422,000 in FY 2024/25, which is set aside to address
long-term capital system replacement and rehabilitation needs.

e Funding Capital Improvement Projects: The District must also be able to fund necessary capital
improvements in order to maintain current service levels. District staff has identified roughly
$935,000 (current year dollars) in expected capital expenditures for FY 2020/21 through 2024/25.
With the recommended rate adjustments, these expenditures can be funded.

¢ Inflation and Growth Projections ~ Assumptions regarding cost inflation were made in order to
project future revenues and expenses for the study period. The following inflation factors were
used in the analysis:

¢ No Customer growth is expected over the 5-year rate period.
e  Electricity cost inflation is 3.5% annually.

o General cost inflation is 2% annually.

»  Salary cost inflation is 3% annually.

» Field Salary cost inflation is 2% annually.

* Benefits cost inflation is 6%annually.

* Fuel and Chemicals cost inflation is 3% annually.

» Cell Tower Lease revenue inflation is 2% annually.

¢ Maintaining Adequate Bond Coverage: The District is required by its bond covenants to maintain a
debt service coverage ratio of at least 1.2. Rate adjustments proposed in this study will allow the
district to continue to exceed this ratio. The benefit of exceeding the minimum debt coverage ratio
is that it strengthens District’s credit rating, which can help lower the interest rates for debt-funded
capital projects in the future.

* Impact of Annual Rate Adjustment Date: In each year of the rate plan, the financial plan modeling
assumes that rate adjustments occur starting on the March bill of each year. This means that only
five months of the planned revenue to be collected from the rate adjustment listed for one fiscal
year will be collected in that year. For example, there is a 3 percent adjustment in rate revenue
planned for FY 2020/21; meaning, the rates are developed to recover $1.42 million, whichis a 3
percent adjustment over the expected $1.38 million that would be collected without a rate
adjustment. However, because of the timing for when the rates will go into effect, the Financial Plan
results in only $1.39 million in rate revenue for FY 2020/21.

Rate adjustments of 3 percent annually in FY 2020/21 through FY 2024/25, will be needed in order to fully
fund all operating expenses, planned capital projects, debt service obligations and build reserves to the
recommended targets by the end of FY 2024/25% Figure 2 summarizes the sources and uses of funds, net
revenue requirements, and the recommended annual percent adjustments in total rate revenue
recommended for the next 5 years for the District.

4 Because of the mid-year adjustment to the rates, the full impact of each year’s adjustment does not affect revenue until the
following year.

P . Cab Water District
ONBS “Water Rate Stucy 5



Figure 2. Summary of Water Revenue Requirements

Summary of Sources and Uses of Funds

5-Year Prop 218 Rate Period

and Net Revenue Requirements FY 2021/22 | FY 2022/23 | FY 2023/24 | FY 2024/25
Sources of Water Funds
Rate Revenue Under Prevailing Rates $1,375,000 | $1,375,000{ $ 1,375,000 | $ 1,375,000 | $ 1,375,000
Additional Revenue from Rate Increases ! 13,750 55,413 98,325 142,525 188,050
Non-Rate Revenues 240,500 255,800 257,200 258,600 263,600
Interest Earnings 19,600 19,600 19,600 19,600 19,600
Total Sources of Funds $ 1,648,850 | $ 1,705,813 | $1,750,125 | $1,795,725 | $ 1,846,250
Uses of Water Funds
Operating Expenses $ 1,310,100 | $ 1,368,100 | $ 1,384,600 { $ 1,384,000 | $ 1,413,700
Debt Service 137,394 137,394 137,394 48,739 48,691
Rate-Funded Capital Expenses 467,004 365,650 21,218 9,955 -
Total Use of Funds $ 1,914,498 | $ 1,871,144 $1,543,212 | $ 1,442,693 | $ 1,462,391
_ Surplus (Deficiency) after Rate Increase (265 648)| $ (165,332)| $ 206,912 |$ 353,032 | $ 38’3'859
_Projected AnnualRateIncrease |  3.00%|  3.00%|  3.00%|  300%|  3.00%
Cumulative Rate Increases 3.00% 6.09% 9.27% 12.55% 15.93%

: . 2
Net Revenue Requirement

0 44

(18,588

$1,654,398 | $ 1,505,744 | § 1,266,412 | $ 1,164,493 | $ 1,179,191

1. Revenue from rate increases assume an implementation date of March 1, 2021 and then March 1st, 2022 through 2025.

2. Total Use of Funds less non-rate revenues and interest earnings. This is the annual amount needed from water rates.

Figure 3 summarizes the projected reserve fund balances and reserve targets. A summary of the utility’s
proposed 5-year financial plan is included in Tables 1 and 2 of the Appendix. The appendix tables include
revenue requirements, reserve funds, revenue sources, proposed rate adjustments, and the District’s
capital improvement program. As can be seen in Figure 3, given proposed rate adjustments, reserves meet

the minimum target by FY 2023/24.

Figure 3. Summary of Reserve Funds

Beginning Reserve Fund Balances and

5-Year Prop 218 Rate Period

Recommended Reserve Targets FY 2020/21 | FY 2021/22 | FY 2022/23 | FY 2023/24 | FY 2024/25
Operating Reserve
Ending Balance $ 334352 S 169020 $ 375932|$ 692,000]$ 706,850
Recommended Minimum Target 458,535 684,050 692,300 692,000 706,850
Capital Rehabilitation & Replacement Reserve
Ending Balance $ 443800 |S 443,800 (S 443,800|S 468,864 |5 815,363
Recommended Minimum Target 443,800 453,300 442,400 431,900 421,800
Debt Reserve
Ending Balance $ 60928|S5 60928|S 609285 60928|S 60,928
Recommended Minimum Target - - - - -
| TotalEndingBalance | $ 839,080 |$ 673,748 [$ 880,660 |$ 1,221,792 | $ 1,583,141
Total Recommended Mlmmum Target S 902,335 51,137,350 | 5 1,134,700 | 8 1,123,900 | $ 1,128,650

CONTRACT CUSTOMER CHARGES

In January of 2012, the District entered into a contract agreement which set the initial rates and defined the
methodology of future rate adjustments for the Desert Hills Premium Qutlets (DHPO). As defined by the

ONBS

Cabazon Water District

Water Rate Study

““/\\M



120[ \ga

terms of the contract, rates can only be adjusted by increasing the current rates (both the fixed meter
charge and usage rate) by the percentage adjustment imposed on residential and commercial customers?®.
To account for this restriction, the revenue projected from the contract customer through FY 2021/22 is
calculated and netted from the cost of service analysis. The contracted rates end December 31, 2022, in
which this customer will switch to the commercial 10-inch meter rates. The calculation through FY 2021/22
is shown in Figure 4. The rates for the 10-inch meter past FY 2021/22 will be shown in later sections of this
report.

Figure 4. Contract Charges and Projected Revenue

Current * Proposed Rates

Contract
FY 2019/20 | FY 2020/21 | FY 2021/22

Projected Increase in Rate Revenue per Financial Plan:

Fixed Rate $2,233.06 $2,300.05 $2,369.05
Variable Rate $3.83 $3.94 $4.06
Estimated Consumption (hcf) 44,507 44,507 44,507
Estimated Fixed Revenue S 26,797 |$ 27601|S 28,429
Estimated Variable Revenue 170,462 175,576 180,843

Estimated Rate Revenue from Contract Customer | $ 197,259 | $ 203,176 l S 209,272

Remaining Rate Revenue | $1,177,741 | $1,213,074 | $ 1,249,466
1. Current rates found in source file: 10_Cabazon Water District Water Rate Study (4.13.17) Final.pdf, Page 50.

Contract rates end December 31, 2022 in which this customer then switches to 10 inch billing for commercial users.

C. Cost of Service Analysis

Once the net revenue requirements are determined, the cost of service analysis proportionately distributes
the revenue requirements to each customer class. The cost of service analysis consists of two major
components: (1) the classification of expenses, and (2) the allocation of costs to customer classes. Costs
were classified corresponding to the function they serve. All costs in the District’s budget are allocated to
each component of the rate structure in proportion to the level of service required by customers. The levels
of service are related to volumes of peak and non-peak demand, infrastructure capacity, and customer
service. These are based on allocation factors, such as water consumption, peaking factors, and number of
accounts by meter size. Ultimately, a cost-of-service analysis is intended to result in rates that are
proportional to the cost of providing service to each customer.

CLASSIFICATION OF COSTS

Most costs are not typically allocated 100 percent to fixed or variable categories and, therefore, are
allocated to multiple functions of water service. Costs were classified using the commodity-demand method
which is found in the AWWA M1 Manual®. In accordance with this method, budgeted costs were “classified”
into four categories: commodity, capacity, customer and fire protection. The classification process provides

5 Per Section 5c(i) and (ii).

§ Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1, AWWA, seventh edition, 2017, p. 83. \

- . Cabazon Water District
A
WY NBS Water Rate Study 7



1y

the basis for allocating costs to various customer classes based on the cost causation (classification) ('
components described below: ‘

e Commodity related costs are those that change as the volume of water produced and delivered
changes. These commonly include the costs of chemicals used in the treatment process, energy
related to pumping for transmission and distribution, and source of supply.

» Capacity related costs are associated with sizing facilities to meet the maximum, or peak demand.
This includes both operating costs and capital infrastructure costs incurred to accommodate peak
system capacity events.

e Customer related costs are associated with having a customer on the water system, such as meter
reading, postage and billing.

¢ Fire Protection related costs are associated with providing sufficient capacity in the system for fire
meters and other operations and maintenance costs of providing water to properties for private fire
service protection.

The District’s budgeted costs were reviewed and allocated to these cost causation components which are
used as the basis for establishing new water rates and translate to fixed and variable charges. Tables 16
through 20 in the Appendix show how the District’s expenses were classified and allocated to these cost
causation components. Additionally, each cost causation component is considered fixed or variable, as
summarized in Figure 5.

Figure 5. Cost Classification Summary

Revenue Requirements

Ideally, utilities should recover all of their fixed costs from fixed charges and all of their variable costs from
volumetric charges. When this is the case, fluctuations in water sales revenues would be directly offset by
reductions or increases in variable expenses. When rates are set in this manner, they provide greater
revenue stability for the utility. However, other factors are often considered when designing water rates
such as community values, water conservation goals, ease of understanding, and ease of administration.

Based on the District’s projected costs, the Cost of Service Analysis {COSA) resulted in a distribution that is
approximately 79 percent fixed and 21 percent variable. The District’s current rate structure collects
approximately 64 percent of revenue from fixed charges and 36 percent from variable charges. The Board of
Directors has chosen to move forward with a rate structure that will collect approximately 30 percent of
revenue from fixed charges and 70 percent from variable rates. However, a share of the District’s capacity
costs will need to be collected from the variable rates in order to reach this rate structure. Thus, capacity
related costs (which are normally considered fixed) will be collected from both fixed and variable rates.

Figure 6 summarizes the allocation of the net revenue requirements to each cost causation component. The
projected revenue from the contract customer, as shown in Figure 4, is included Figure 6.

. Cab Water District
ONBS Woter Rate Study :



v / W8

Figure 6. Allocation of Water Revenue Requirements

COSA Results
Unadjusted Net Revenue
Requirements (2020-21)
79% Fixed / 21% Variable
259,786 21.4%

Functional

Category

259,786 21.4%

Commodity - Related Costs
Capacity - Related Costs
{volumetric share)

Volumetric Subtotal
Capacity - Related Costs
(fixed share)

$ $

8 ol mEm 8

S $

$ $
Customer - Related Costs S 60,386 5.0% S 60,386 5.0%

$ §

$ s

$ S

$ $

589,365 48.6%

259,786 21.4% 849,152 70.0%

887,808 73.2% 298,443 24.6%

Fire Protection - Related Costs 5,093 0.4% 5,093 0.4%
Fixed Subtotal 953,288 78.6% 363,922 30.0%

; 1,213,074 100% 1,213,074 100%
203,176 203,176

eauireme 416.250 416.250

Total d
Revenue from Contract Rates

CUSTOMER CLASSES

Customer classes are determined by combining customers with similar demand characteristics, types of use
and, in this case, the constraints of a contract into categories that reflect the cost differentials to serve each
type of customer. This process is limited by the desire to not overcomplicate the District’s rate structure.

For Cabazon Water District, four customer classes were analyzed: single-family residential, non-single family
residential’, private fire and the contract customer®. All non-SFR customers (excluding the contract
customer) were placed in one customer class because these customers include a wide range of usage
characteristics:

1. They are using more water on average per account.

2. They generally have higher peaking factors than single-family residential users.

3. Their water usage varies greatly among these customers based on the specific type of customer and
meter size.

4. There are an insufficient number of customers of each specific type to determine general class
characteristics.

The amount of consumption, the peaking factors and the number of meters by size are used in the cost-of-
service analysis to allocate costs to customer classes and determine the appropriate rate structures for
each. The District’s most recent consumption is summarized in Figure 7, peaking factors in Figure 8 and
Figure 9, and number of customers by customer class is shown in Figure 10.

Commodity related costs are costs associated with the total annual consumption of water by customer
class, as shown in Figure 7.

7 Non-SFR class consists of multi-family, government, commercial, construction, industrial and irrigation customers.
8 The development of rates for the contract customer is described in Section 2-B of this report.

Cabazon Water District
F >
"\:_5._\__“3) NBS Water Rate Study 9



23\

Figure 7. Water Consumption by Customer Class (

Volume

Percent of

Customer Class 1
(hcf) Total Volume

Single Family Residential 93,915 71.4%
Non-SFR 1,338 1.0%
Government Meters 2,201 1.7%
Commercial Meters 11,562 8.8%
Industrial Meters - 0.0%
irrigation Meters 20,531 15.6%
Fire Service Meters 28 0.0%
Construction 1,934 1.5%
Total 131,509 100%
Contract 44,507

1. Consumption is from 2019. CWD bills monthly.

Peaking factors for each customer class are shown in Figure 8. A “peaking factor” is the relationship of each

customer class’ average water use to peak (generally summer) water use.

Figure 8. Peaking Factors by Customer Class

Average Peak Monthly | peak Monthly Max Mt?nth

Customer Class Monthly Use 1 Capacity

{hcf) ez (s Factor
Single Family Residential 7,826 11,521 1.47 66.7%
Multi-Family Residential 112 158 1.42 0.9%
Government Meters 183 320 1.74 1.9%
Commercial Meters 964 1,209 1.25 7.0%
Industrial Meters 0 0 N/A 0.0%
Irrigation Meters 1,711 3,338 1.95 19.3%
Fire Service Meters 2 9 3.86 0.1%
Construction 161 719 4.46 4.2%
Total 10,959 17,274 100%
Contract 3,709 4,921 1.33

1. Based on peak monthly data {peak day data not available)

Additional capacity factors within the single-family residential class are shown in Figure 9. The “additional
capacity factor” represents the cumulative peak consumption in each tier. No additional capacity factor is
assigned to Tier 1 water use, as this represents a base level of consumption by customers in the lowest tier,
therefore no additional capacity costs would be incurred if all customers stayed within the Tier 1 threshold.

Cabazon Water District
Water Rate Study 10

ONBS



Figure 9. Single-Family Residential Peak Capacity Allocation Factors

Expected Percentage of
1|Consumption ?|  Total SFR
(hcf) Consumption

Tier

Breakpoint

Tier 1 7 hef 53,666 57%
Tier 2 14 hef 21,430 23%
Tier 3 - 18,819 20%
Total I 93,915 100%

1. Tier 1 break point set to average winter consumption, an estimate of average indoor
water consumption in Cabazon. The Tier 2 break point is set to 14 hcf which is average
summer consumption.

2. Consumption data is based on the CWD 2019 customer data,

The number of customers for each customer class (also known as customer allocation factors) is shown in
Figure 10.

Figure 10. Number of Meters by Customer Class

Number of Percent of
Meters * Total

Customer Class

Single Family Residential

Private Fire 5 0.5%

All Other Meters 59 6.4%
Total 918 100.0%

1. Meter Count for December 2019. CWD biils monthly.

COSTS ALLOCATED TO CUSTOMER CLASSES

Costs are allocated to each customer class based on the customer characteristics of each class in order to
reflect the cost differentials to serve each type of customer. Figure 11 summarizes how the costs for each
cost causation component from Figure 6 are allocated to each customer class.

Figure 11. Cost Allocation Methodology
*Allocated based on the hydraulic capacity of each meter size
*Allocated based on the total number of meters

*Allocated based on the hydraulic capacity of fire meters

Commodity
*Allocated based on water consumption by customer class
Related Costs g Y

Capacity Related Costs

. *Allocated based on peak consumption by customer class
{(volumetric share)

- Cab Water District
ONBS “Weter Rote Study 1



The costs allocated to each causation component are assigned to each customer class using the cost
allocation methodology described in Figure 11. This process is shown in the following sections, in Figure 12
through Figure 16.

Capacity Related Costs

The capacity related costs (fixed share) allocation is summarized in Figure 12. Capacity related costs are
those costs associated with constructing and operating the water system to ensure there is enough capacity
in the system to meet the demand of each meter connected. Larger meters have the potential to use more
of the system'’s capacity, compared to smaller meters. The potential capacity demanded is proportional to
the maximum safe meter capacity each meter size as established by the AWWA?®. The meter capacity factors
used in this study are shown in the second column of Figure 12.

A “hydraulic capacity factor” (column a in Figure 12) is calculated by dividing the maximum capacity or flow
of large meters by the capacity of the base meter size, which is typically the most common residential meter
size (in this case a 5/8-inch meter). For example, Figure 12 shows the hydraulic capacity of a two-inch meter
is 8 times that of a 5/8-inch meter and therefore, the capacity component of the fixed meter charge is 8
times that of the 5/8 inch meter.

The actual number of meters by size (column bin Figure 12) is multiplied by the corresponding capacity
ratios to calculate the total number of equivalent meters (column cin Figure 12). The number of equivalent
meters is used as a proxy for the potential demand that each customer can place on the water system and
the percentage of capacity related costs (fixed share) distributed to each meter size by the Percent of Total
Hydraulic Capacity.

Figure 12. Capacity Related Costs (fixed share) Allocation

T = iR T
Standard Meters

5/8inch 20 1.00 845 845 67% $200,839

3/4inch 30 1.50 21 32 3% $7,487

1inch 50 2.50 13 33 3% $7,725

1.5 inch 100 5.00 5 25 2% $5,942

2inch 160 8.00 17 136 11% $32,324

3inch 320 16.00 10 160 13% $38,029

4inch 500 25.00 1 25 2% $5,942
Total 912 1,255 100% $298,287

1. Per the Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1 AWWA, 7th edition, 2017, page 338.

9 Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1, AWWA, seventh edition, 2017, p. 338.

P N Cabazon Water District
{D NBS Water Rate Study 12

125 { W



Customer Related Costs

The customer related cost allocation is summarized in Figure 13. Customer related costs are comprised of
those costs relating to reading and maintaining meters, customer billing and collection, and other customer
service related costs. The customer service costs do not differ among the various meter sizes, therefore, these
costs are spread equally among all meters. Each customer class is allocated customer related costs based
upon the percentage of total meters that are in that class.

Figure 13. Customer Related Cost Allocation

Number of | Percent of | Allocated

Customer Class 1
Meters Total Costs

Standard Meters
5/8 inch 845 92.1% $55,645
3/4 inch 21 2.3% 51,383
linch 13 1.4% $856
1.5inch 5 0.5% $329
2 inch 17 1.9% $1,119
3inch 10 1.1% $659
4 inch 1 0.1% $S66
Fire Protection

_ 6inch 3 0.3% $198

( 8inch 2| 0.2% $132

' Total 917 | 100% $60,386

1. Meter Count as of December 2019
Fire Protection Related Costs

The fire protection cost allocation is summarized in Figure 14. Only Fire Protection meters are allocated this
cost component. A direct allocation is made in the functionalization and classification step in the cost of
service analysis to represent their share of system capacity and other related operations and maintenance
costs. This cost is spread over the fire meters using the same methodology as used in Figure 12.

Figure 14. Fire Protection Cost Allocation

. e T .

Fire Protection Fire Service Type 1 & Il
6inch 1,600 80.00 3 240 46% $2,351
8inch 2,800 140.00 2 280 54% $2,742
Total 5 520 100% $5,093

1. Per the Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Manual of Water Supply Practices, M1 AWWA, 7th edition, 2017, page 338.

—

Cabazon Water District

\/\g N Bs Water Rate Study 13

2o /\uu



2 ( V¥

Commodity Related Costs

The commodity related cost allocation is summarized in Figure 15. Commodity related costs are those costs
related to the amount of water sold and commonly include the costs of chemicals used in the treatment
process, energy related to pumping for transmission and distribution, and source of supply. Each customer
class is allocated commodity related costs based upon the percentage of total consumption by that class.

Figure 15. Commodity Related Costs Allocation

Volume Percent of Allocated

Customer Class a
{hcf) Total Volume Costs

Single Family Residential 93,915 71.4% $185,522
Other Non-SFR/Commercial 37,594 28.6% $74,264
Total 131,509 100% $259,786

1. Consumption is from 2019. CWD bills monthly.
Capacity Related Costs (variable share)

The capacity related costs allocated to variable rates for each customer class are shown in Figure 16.
Capacity related costs collected from the volumetric rate are allocated to each customer class based upon
their percentage of peak monthly use.

Figure 16. Capacity Related Costs (variable share)

Average | poak Monthly | Percent of | Allocated
Customer Class Monthly 1

Use (hcf) Use {hcf}) Total Costs
Single Family Residential 7,826 11,521 67% $393,081
Other Non-SFR/Commercial 3,133 5,753 33% $196,285
Total 10,959 17,274 100% $589,365

1. Based on peak monthly data {peak day data not available).

D. Rate Design Analysis

NBS discussed several water rate alternatives and methodologies with District Staff over the course of this
study, such as the percentage of revenue collected from fixed vs. variable charges and differentiating rates
by customer class. Based on input provided by District staff and the Board of Directors, the proposed rates
were developed. The following sections describe this process.

The rates proposed in this study make the following modifications to the water rate structure:

1. Update monthly fixed meter charges to collect 30% of the revenue requirement and update
volumetric charges to reflect collecting 70% of revenue.
2. Maintain the volumetric rates for Single Family Residential customers as follows:
a. Keep three tier rate structure
b. Keep current tier breakpoints
3. Keep all other customers on a uniform volumetric rate, and impose a single charge for all water
consumed

Cabazon Water District
Water Rate Study 14




FIXED CHARGES

\2% [ WAL

The fixed meter charge recognizes that the District incurs fixed costs regardless of whether customers use

water. There are two components that comprise the fixed meter charge: the customer component and the
capacity component, as described in the previous section. Using the costs allocated to each meter size from
Figure 12 through Figure 14; Figure 17 calculates the monthly charge for each meter size.

Figure 17. Fixed Meter Charges FY 2020/21

a b c d e=b+ctd | f=e/a/12
Standard Meters
5/8 inch 845 $200,839 $55,645 S0 $256,484 $25.29
3/4inch 21 $7,487 $1,383 S0 $8,870 $35.20
linch 13 $7,725 5856 S0 $8,581 $55.00
1.5inch 5 $5,942 $329 S0 $6,271 $104.52
2iinch 17 $32,324 $1,119 S0 $33,444 $163.94
3inch 10 $38,029 $659 S0 $38,687 $322.39
4 inch 1 $5,942 S66 S0 $6,008 $500.65
Fire Protection
6inch 3 S0 $198 62,351 52,548 $70.78
8inch 2 S0 $132 $2,742 $2,874 $119.76
Total 917 | $298,287 $60,386 | $ 5,093 |$ 363,767

1. Meter Count as of December 2019.

VARIABLE CHARGES

The District currently has a three-tiered volumetric rate for single family residential customers, and one

uniform rate for non-SFR customers.

Tier breakpoints remain the same as current and were set in the last rate study in 2017. The goals when
setting the tier breakpoints were twofold:

1. The breakpoint for the first tier was set to the 7 hcf'°, which is the average winter consumption fora
typical single-family residential customer. Given the limited irrigation that occurs in the winter, this
approximates average indoor use.

2. The breakpoint for the second tier was set to 14 hcf, which is equal to average summer consumption
for a single-family residential customer. Average summer consumption is when water consumption

is highest for a two-month billing period.
3. The third tier includes anything above 14 hcf.

10 HCF is one hundred cubic feet of water.

ONBS

Cabazon Water District
Water Rate Study 15



The commodity costs {from Figure 15) within the single-family residential class are further allocated to the

expected consumption by tier, in Figure 18.

The Capacity Related Costs (variable share) (from Figure 16) within the single-family residential class are
further allocated to expected consumption by tier as shown in Figure 19. The “additional capacity required”
represents the cumulative peak consumption in each tier. No additional capacity factor is assigned to Tier 1
water use, as this represents a base level of consumption by customers in the lowest tier, therefore no

Figure 18. Single Family Residential Commaodity Related Costs

Tier Expecte.d ) Percentage of Allocated
Breakpoint Consumption Total SFF.( Costs
(hcf) Consumption
Tier 1 7 hcf 53,666 57% $106,013
Tier 2 14 hcf 21,430 23% $42,333
Tier 3 -- 18,819 20% $37,176
Total 93,915 100% $185,522

1. Tier 1 break point set to average winter consumption, an estimate of average indoor

water consumption in Cabazon. The Tier 2 break point is set to 14 hcf which is average

summer consumption.

2. Consumption data is based on the CWD 2019 customer data.

additional supply costs would be incurred if all customers stayed within the Tier 1 threshold.

Figure 19. Single Family Residential Capacity Related Costs (variable share)

Monthly Additional
- 5 : Percent Allocated
Description Consumption Capacity
1 p 2| of Total Costs
(hcf) Required (hcf)

Tier 1 Max Tier 1 Capacity 2 5,978 0 0.0% $0
Tier 2 Peak up to Tier 2 : 7,891 1,913 34.5% $135,660
Tier 3 Peak up to Tier 3 } 11,521 3,630 65.5% $257,421
Total 5,543 100.0% $393,081

1. Consumption data is based on the CWD 2019 customer data.
Source files: Cabazon_FINAN ACCTS SUMMARY_CO1C02.xIsx and Cabazon_USAGEREPORT_C0O1C02_Manipulated.xisx
2. Capacity allocated to the first tier represents the tier break multiplied by the number of customers.

3. This is the cumulative peak consumption up to the tier break; it represents capacity required to provide service to a given tier.

4. This is the additional cumulative capacity to meet peak consumption at each tier.

Due to the varying consumption characteristics of non-SFR customers will maintain a uniform volumetric
rate, because it best represents their cost-of-service. Using the costs allocated to each customer class in
Figure 15— 16 and Figure 18 — 19, Figure 20 calculates the per unit volumetric charge for each customer

class and tier.

ONBS

Cabazon Water District

Water Rate Study

\2A / \wle



Figure 20. Calculated Variable Charges for FY 2020/21

Expected Allocated Allocated Charge per
Customer Class Consumption| Commodity Capacity Total Costs Unit Sold
{hcf) Costs Costs {$/hcf)
a b c d=b+c e=d/a
Single Family Residential
Tier 1 53,666 | § 106,013| $ -1 106,013 $1.98
Tier 2 21,430 | S 42,3331 $ 135,660| S 177,993 $8.31
Tier 3 18,819 | S 37,176 § 257,421| $ 294,596 $15.65
All Other Customers 37,594 | S 74264] S 196,285| § 270,549 $7.20
Total 131,509 |$ 259,786 |$ 589,365 $ 849,152

CONSTRUCTION METER FEES

NBS also analyzed the District’s construction rates and updated the meter deposit fee, admin fee and the
recalibration fee on top of the monthly meter and water charges. Figure 21 shows the updated construction
meter fees. The meter deposit fee is based on the actual cost of the meter. The admin fee was calculated
from labor hours needed for application processing, account opening and delivery of the construction
meter. Lastly, the meter recalibration fee was also calculated based on labor hours needed to travel and
repair the construction meter. These fees are all inflated 3% annually after 2020/21.

Figure 21. Updated Fee Schedule for Construction Customers

Explanation of

Updated Construction Customer

FY.2020/21 | FY.2021/22 | FY.2022/23 | FY.2023/24 | FY 2024/25

Fee Schedule

_One-Timefees L S 5 ARG L
Construction Meter Deposit $1,965.14 $2,024.09 $2,084.82 $2,147.36 $2,211.78 [1]
Administrative Fee 5152.50 $157.08 5161.79 5166.64 5171.64 [2]
Meter Recalibration Fee 5244.00 5251.32 5258.86 5266.63 5274.62 [3]

Monthly Fees shown in Current & Proposed Rates

Explanation of Fee:
[1] Based on cost of replacing the meter in the current year, if it is not returned.

[2] Based on labor time and cost for: processing application, opening account and installing meter. Assumes 3% inflation per year.

[3] Based on labor time and cost for repairing a malfunctioning meter. Assumes 3% inflation per year.

E. Current and Proposed Water Rates

The Cost of Service analysis is used to establish the rates for FY 2020/21. In the subsequent four years of the
rate study, proposed charges are simply adjusted by the proposed adjustment in total rate revenue needed,
to meet projected revenue requirements. Figure provides a comparison of the current and prosed rates for
FY 2020/21 through FY 2024/25. More detailed tables on the developed of the proposed charges are
documented in the Appendix. It is notable to mention that after the Contract rates are over in 2022, this
customer will then switch to the 10-inch fixed meter charge and the uniform commodity rate. Since the
Contract customer uses a large amount of water, the proportion of the variable rate will decrease when this
customer joins the other non-SFR customers in FY 2022/23.

Cabazon Water District
Water Rate Study

17



Figure 22. Current and Proposed Water Rates

Woater Rate Schedule

Current
Rates

_Fixed Meter Charges LED '
Monthly Fixed Service Charges:
5/8 inch $68.10 $25.29 $26.05 $26.83 $27.64 $28.47
3/4inch $98.24 $35.20 $36.25 $37.34 $38.46 $39.62
linch $158.51 $55.00 $56.65 $58.35 $60.10 $61.91
1.5inch $309.21 $104.52 $107.66 $110.89 $114.21 $117.64
2 inch $490.04 $163.94 $168.86 $173.92 $179.14 $184.52
3inch $972.27 $322.39 $332.06 $342.03 $352.29 $362.86
4inch $1,514.77 $500.65 $515.67 $531.14 $547.08 $563.49
Contract (10 inch) $2,233.06 $2,300.05 $2,369.05 $4,418.51 $4,551.07 $4,687.60
Construction Meters (3 inch) $286.73 $344.40 $354.73 $365.38 $376.34 $387.63
Monthly Fire Service Charges:
4 inch $61.54 $34.05 $35.08 $36.13 $37.21 $38.33
6inch $130.62 $70.78 $72.91 $75.09 $77.35 $75.67
8 inch $212.11 $119.76 $123.35 $127.05 $130.86 $134.79
_Commodity Charges R T O, (D 3 SN
Rate per hcf of Water Consumed:
Uniform Rate (Non-SFR + Construction) $2.96 $7.20 $7.41 $5.53 $5.69 $5.87
Contract Rate $3.83 $3.94 $4.06 N/A N/A N/A
Tiered Rate (SFR Customers):
Proposed Break
Tier 1 0-7 hef $1.53 $1.98 $2.03 $2.10 $2.16 $2.22
Tier 2 8-14 hcf $3.35 $8.31 $8.55 $8.81 $9.08 $9.35
Tier 3 14+ hcf $5.12 $15.65 $16.12 $16.61 $17.11 $17.62

Proposed Rates
FY 2020/21 | FY 2021/22 | FY 2022/23 | FY 2023/24 | FY 2024/25

F. Comparison of Current and Proposed Water Bills

Figure 3 and Figure 4 compare a range of monthly water bills for the current and proposed water rates as a
result of the initial rate adjustment for single-family residential customers (with a 5/8-inch meter) and non-
single family residential customers (the bill comparison for a commercial customer also with a 5/8-inch

meter). These monthly bills are based on typical meter sizes at various consumption levels.

Cabazon Water District
Water Rate Study 18

ONBS



Figure 23. Monthly Bill Comparison for Single Family Customers

Residential Water Bill Comparison
Current vs. Proposed Rates (5/8" meter)

SFR Bill - Curront

“ SFR Bill - Proposed

]
>
15
€
e

Monthly Water Censumption {(HCF)
Figure 24. Monthly Water Bill Comparison for Commercial Customers

Commercial Water Bill Comparison
Current vs. Proposed Rates (5/8-inch meter)

Commaerclal 881 - Current

Commercial Bl - Proposed

Monthly il
|

$421.11 |

: .'5230.90"
e O —

Monthly Water Consumption (HCF)

. 5 Cabazon Water District
ONBS Z

Water Rate Study

19

\%‘1/ W



\’7;’3-/ \@lo

Section3. RECOMMENDATIONS AND NEXT STEPS |

A. Consultant Recommendations
NBS recommends District take the following actions:

Approve and accept this Study: NBS recommends the District Board formally approve and adopt this Study
and its recommendations and proceed with the steps required to implement the proposed rates. This will
provide documentation of the rate study analyses and the basis for analyzing potential changes to future
rates.

Implement Recommended Levels of Rate Adjustments and Proposed Rates: Based on successfully meeting
the Proposition 218 procedural requirements, the District should proceed with implementing the 5-year
schedule of proposed rates and rate adjustments previously shown in Figure 22. This will help ensure the
continued financial health of District’s water utility.

B. Next Steps

Annually Review Rates and Revenue — Any time an agency adopts new utility rates or rate structures, those
new rates should be closely monitored over the next several years to ensure the revenue generated is
sufficient to meet the annual revenue requirements. Changing economic and water consumption patterns
underscore the need for this review, as well as potential and unseen changing revenue requirements—
particularly those related to environmental regulations that can significantly affect capital improvements
and repair and replacement costs.

Note: The attached Technical Appendix provides more detailed information on the analysis of the water
revenue requirements, cost-of-service analysis and cost allocations, and the rate design analyses that have
been summarized in this report.

C. NBS’ Principal Assumptions and Considerations

In preparing this report and the opinions and recommendations included herein, NBS has relied on a
number of principal assumptions and considerations with regard to financial matters, conditions, and
events that may occur in the future. This information and these assumptions, including District’s budgets,
capital improvement costs, and information from District staff were provided by sources we believe to be
reliable, although NBS has not independently verified this data.

While we believe NBS' use of such information and assumptions is reasonable for the purpose of this report
and its recommendations, some assumptions will invariably not materialize as stated herein and may vary
significantly due to unanticipated events and circumstances. Therefore, the actual results can be expected
to vary from those projected to the extent that actual future conditions differ from those assumed by us or
provided to us by others.

. Cabazon Water District
ﬁ N BS Water Rate Study 20



Y / ele

Appendix: Detailed Water Rate Study Tables and Figures

. Cabazon Water District
W) NBS Water Rate Study



V25 [\l

TEJO T ‘UBjd |eluBUly

STSL'9£9°008:9244-|f0L | WO ACTsqu-mmm gam
SEN Aq pasedalg

"I3W 0u 51 017es 38849402 3GIP OZ°T B AaYM siead 1ySuydiy 0y pal|dde uaaq sey Juniew.oy |euonipuod

2zt abod ‘pd‘iuawasiby 3jos Juawiioisu juDg sU0iZ :321N0S “Z°T JO Ole ades3n0d 1Q3p € Ul_jUIRW ISNW 1151 J31B M USZRAED) 'SJUBUSADD JU31INI JDPUN 'S

‘puoAaq pue
TZ/0Z0T Ad U1 51502 133f0ud 0} sasuadxa asai) 01 paidde ase s10108) Aseuone|ju| '393png ay3 wouy aie sasuadxa Bupezado 0z/6T0Z Ad YSnoyy LT/9TOZ AJ24L v
SUINI3J J1v7) |E3LI0ISHY UO paseq Paie|naled si ) “sIeah JaYI0 |jB Jog '$198pNq 1911SIQ WOl 0Z/6T0Z A4 YSnony LT/9T0T A4 J0j sBujuses 3sasau| '€
"Jeah Yaea 1S Ajnf JO S1Bp UOIeIUaWaIdLLI U AWINSSE SIsealoul ey 7

'40d G3A08ddY 6181 °9 p4oog 0 3abpng uoznqo) 0Z-6T A4 £2A5136pNg 9T 3|1} wouy saindy; pus Jeak payaalosd a3 3.8 sasu3dX3 pue SnuIARI 61/8TOZ A4
‘981 0zA4136png qod ‘xsx°136png uozpgo) pardopy 1Z-07 Ad 1581} 33IN0S W05} 3se 12/0202 Ad YSnosij) 07/6T0T AJ 40) Sasuadxa pue anuanay ‘{

SZ/YZ0T A4

DUIUING 9AJ95aY 5 UD]J [DIoUDUI

¥Z/€207 A4 | £2/2202 M
paafoid

POLAd 31eY Jedj-s

2Z/T20T A4 | TZ/0Z0Z A4

888 S8 99z 9z e aspauu Ay 433y abvianod 1qaq
%E6°'ST %S5°CT %LT6 %609 %00°E S3SD3JIu| aNUINIY [DNUUY WOIf ISDAIIU| IADININD
%00°E %00'E %00°E |'%00'€ 15600 Juaunsnipy anuaA3Yy 330y jonuuy papafold
6l 6 bt ¥ 799 bt 6 86E 4SO = dNay I}y -uo 3f 5o D10 DOY © JADY 19
6S8°EBE _ § | ZEO'ESE § [ 216902 § |[ZEE'591) § |(8v9592) S, 304 ding jenuiy
T6EZIV'T $ | €69°2H'T S | ZIT'EVS'TS | vHT'TLB'TS | 864'HT6'T $ Spung Ja3eMm jo sasn 2101
169'8v S| €69'85 S| TT9'8ST | pv0's0s ¢ | 868409 S sa4nyipuadxl J2Y10 :je30Iqns
- 556'6 81212 059'59¢ v00'L9Y sasuadx3 (exde) papung-aiey
- G 5 o - 2IAIBS 303 MaAN
T69'8Y  $|6EL'8Y S| WGELET S| WEEULET ¢ |weELET  $ 301U 1q3Q Funsixg
:saimyupuadx3 43430
O0L'ETY'T S | 000'VBE'T S | D09'VBE'T S | 0OT'89E'T S | COT'OTET ¢ :sasuadx3 Bupesado :jejoigns
00.°8¢ 00L°8E 00Z'6t 0065 00L'6S sasuadx3 Sunesado-uoN
00v'8S 00v'LS 0095 00v'sS 006°TS awdinb3 73 |00 a3ARS
00€6 0026 001’6 0006 0068 s394 43410
006'y 008y 00L'v 009’y 00S'y j9Aei] / Sulures)
00Z'vLT 008°0LT 009487 00€°LLT 008°€LT sasuadx3 poddng
00v'z8 00€'18 oov'sL 00498 009°'s8 sasuadx3 3310
00€'sE 00v'vE 005'EE 009°2E 00L1E DIYO - 59
009'6EE 006'CE€ 00v'9zE 00T°0Z€E 006°€TE uonNNGLASI ‘UOISSIISURL Y “S||3M ‘53
006'049 S| 00S'vS9 $|00E'BES $|00L°Tz9 $|00T'6LS ¢ sasuadxy ||osAed
. sasuadxg bunviadp
spund 1230 Jo saspn
0SZ9¥8'T $ | SZL'S6L'TS | STTOSL'TS | €T8'SOL'T $ | 0S8'BYI'T § Spund jo s32unos |ejoL
00Z'€82 002'8Lt 008'9LZ 00v'sLT 001°09¢ 3NUBA3Y 31eY-UON :|eI0IgNns
009'6T 009°6T 009'6T 009'61T 009°6T ¢ SWI0dU[ 35333y
00026 00£'S6 008'v6 00E'v6 008'c6 aNuUanY sNO3UE|RISIN
009'99T S | 00E'€9T S |00¥'Z9T $|00ST9T $|ooL'9pT  $ 3NUaA3Y 334
J3NU3N3Y IIDY-UON
0SO'E9S'T | SZS'LIS'T | SZE'ELV'T | ETV'OEV'T | 0SL'88E'T 53583J0U] JleY I3}V INUIABY IieY :|eI0IgNS
0S0°88T szSerT SZE'B6 374 0SL°ET ¢ SASD313U] 330y WA anuanay
000'SLE'T $ | 000'SLET $ | 000'SLE'T $ | 000'SLE'TS | 000'SLET § S91BY JUDLIND JBPUN BNUBAJY S3[BS JAJEM
:anuanay 330y
spungy 1330 Jo sazinos

1 AHYIWIAINS SININIHIND3IY INNIATY 31vY

SINIWIHINDIY INNIATY 40 AYYINIWNS ANV NVTd TVIONYNIS : T 181

suodalosd ansasay pue uejd jepueury

AQMLS 3LVY ¥31vm
1OLSIQ ¥ILYM NOZVEVD



3

M 9T5/°9£9°008:39J4-(]01 | WOI'AOTSGU MMM :GIM
- TE 40 T ‘ueld |epueuly SN Aq pasedald

En

-

go) suondwnssy ‘xsx'gA Apms 310y sof 126png uozogo) TZ-07 A4 9|4 199pnq 1951 Jad sa3es Buiusea 3saiau|
‘}Je1s JO UolEPLALWOIAL BY1 18 2Z/TTOT Ad Aq sasuadxa B0 JO sAep 08T 01 sasuadxa RO o sAep 06 wouy Suiseasnu 3adie) aasasay Sunesadg
“A|JURJ4NJ 5335 UOIIDIUUOD JO) PUNy PaIJIISAL ON *
*3315NJ3 puoq 3y AQ |3y 318 Spun; 353U} 531BIS Y4V 'JAAIMOY ‘PaLLINSSE A[JUIIND JUAWAANDII 9AIB591 ON *
XSjx-@3uDj0q Ysod paiopdn 07 0£°9
B ‘LT 2bod ‘fpd's}uawalos 1o1aubuld papPnY 6T0Z-8T0Z A4 :53)1§ 34n0s “1a11stq +2d TZ/0Z0TA pue 02/6T0T Ad 40} ysed Buiuuidag -
%070 [%0z0 | ss0z0 | %0z0 %020 _ s 2J0y sbuiuing 35313)u] ponuuy

= s= B GE GIE s 3aupjog puny 224 uop3suuo) bujpug
- - - B - s122(0.4d [elde]) 10} SAAIBSAY §O BS( 1S53
- - - 5 - |anuanay 294 Aydede) :snigd

N m < 0

-

- ¢ - $ |- $ |- $ |- $ ¢ oueleg da1353Y Buluuidag
: St- S- s|- HE s aoupjog buipu3 136104
82609 s 182609 582609 s |8z609 S| 82609 s aoubipg /353y 39oQ Buipuy

- - - - - . anJasay Junesadg o1 sniding jo saysues) :ssay
- - - - - suonedi|qo 1qag MmaN wody Sulpung aaasay :snid

826’09 $|8Z6°09 $ (82609 $|8Z6'09 $|87609 S , 9Iuejeg saJasay duiuuiag
J 239} 143

= Bt ; SIIBSIY.
£9S°C6E S| b969€ S |(896°bTE) S |(0€SVES) S |(€sTV2Y) S 532610} aniasay 03 pasndwio) (3ifaq)/snydins Bujpug
059°8 006 004D 0 06 ouDjog BuIp ab.p

9809 618 028219 S 32uning Buip
008°TZy S| 006'TEr S | 00vZey S |OOEESy S| 008€ry S (51355Y 19N JO %9) 21253y ywY |1pIA0)
E96'SI8 S | k98’89 5 | 008Evb S | 008°Eby S | 008'€bt S| @duojng aaiasay Juawadniday R quyay |o3do) buipug
{o1522) (006'TT) S - {966'25) s12210.4 je3ide)) 10y SaAIBS3Y 4O 35 ;5537
600°69€ ¥96°9¢ S o - snidang anuasay Sunesado jo Jaysued] :snid
v¥98'89y S| 008'tvv S [ 00B'EPP S| 00B'Evy S | 96296V S 3ouejeg aasasay Juiuudag
0S890,/ S |000269 S |00£269 S |0s0v89 s |sesgsy S| . (W0 JOSADP-08T 01 uonisuD.A) aupjog buipu3 136401
05890£ 5| 0007769 5 | ZE6°SLE S| 0Z06IT S | ZSEVEE S a3unjng ania59Y BupInIadp bujpu3
(600°69€) {969g) - - - anasay Juawsde|day [eyide) 01 INQ Jajsuel] 5s3]
- - - - - snjding 9A1353Y 1gaQ JO J3jsuedy sn|d
658°€8€ TEO'ESE 716902 (zege'sot)  |{8¥9°S92) (saseauou| a1ey Ja1y) MO|d ysed 13N snid
000'T69 S | TEG'SLE 020'69T TSEVEE 000'009 1 9Iuejeq anasay duruuidag

anu3say bunpiado

] [96c90T ¢ £ ¢, SED Suluuiaag eloL

S¢/vZ0Z Ad | ve/€20e Ad [ €2/2202 Ad | 22/1202 A4 | TZ/020Z A4 SANYISTH GIID1YLISIY-NN
pajafoid | ALIAIIDV HSYD 40 AYVWIANS

pouad 31eY JBIA-S AYYINWNS ANN4 3AY3S3Y : 2 319V

suonaalosd aAI1asaYy pue ue|d |eldueuld
AQNLS 3LVY HILVYM
DWILNG 3AJ353Y '§ UD|d |plaupuld 12141810 Y31YM NOZvavd




3
3

7€ JO € ‘sa|ge] pue suey)

91S2'9/9°008:8314-||0L | WOI'AOSSqU MMM :GIM

SGN Aq pasedauy
0¢ aunp Buipuz iea ) [eosiq
S70T veoz €201 zeoe 1202
S81eY PIISN(py Japun SANUSASYHe e o @
s31ey BuilSIXT JSPUN SAINUIADY e
sasuadx3 W'R0 I
ERIIVEISLET =
. syslold [eyde) == [ 000°00s5

>

3

- 000000'T$ 2

L

(@]

g

&

-

=

- 000°005TS 3

...0.....0......0.....
000°000T$
000'005°2$
SIjey pasealdu] pue w:_am_xm J9pPpUN 9NUINIY
"SA SJuBWAIINbaY anuaAdYy J31e
T LYVHD

s9|qel Joday pue suey) judwisnipy aley

AQNULS 31VY d3lvm
1D1Y1SIa YLV NOZYEvd



V28 [ 4L,

Z€ 40 ¥ 's3(qeL pue siey)

915£°929°008:9344-)|01 | WO A0TSqu MMM gD
SgN Aq pasedaud

0€ aunf Sulpu3 1eap |edsid
Y44 7404 €201 (44114 1202
: - -
douejeg 198ie] [eap| e
duejeg anIasaYy 1981e] WNWIUIA e
2due|eg ysed Suipul .
9A1959Y 1G9Q PalIUISAY - 000'00S$
000'000'T$
000°005‘TS
' '
—— = 000°0002$
000'005°2$
$198.1e] 9AI3SdY PopuUsWIIOIlaYy
*SA soduejeg ysed

¢ LYVHD

sajqe ) 3ioday pue suey) uaunsnipy aiey
AQN1S 31LVvYd 431vm
1DIY1SIa Y31LVM NOZVaVYD



.W,

=

lfj.
S,
K

Z€ 40 § 's3|qey pue syiey)

91S/'9/9'008:33.3-]|0L | WO A0TsquU MMM :GIM

SAN Aq paJedauy

0€ aunf 3uipu3 Jeap |edsid
S¢0¢ teoc €e0c [4414 TZ0¢
%0
%0°€E %0'€ %0°€ %0°€E %0'€
- %S
9NUdAIY 3ley 01 sjuswiisnipy pajrraload
€ 14VHD

s9[qe] 1ioday pue suey) uauwnsnipy ajey

AQNLS 3LVY HILVYM

LOIWLSIQ Y31VM NOZVEvD



o/

Z€J0 9 (RO} T Hqyx3

91SZ°949°008°3914~|01 | WO A0BSqQU MMM 1QIM
SEN Aq pasedaig

002'859'T 00Z'€S9‘T 008°TS9‘'T  $ | 00v'059'T 00T'SE9'T $ INNIATY “TVLIOL

00961 009'61 009°6T 009'6T 009'61 2UI0IU] 153J3}U|

000'L6 00€'S6 00816 00E'v6 008'€6 3NUIAIY SNOBUEBDISIA

009'99T 00€'€9T 00b‘Z9T $ | 00S'T9T 00L'9%T S anuanay 994
‘INNIAIY ¥IHLIO

000'SLE'T 000'SLE'T 000'SLE'T S| ODO'SLE'T 000'SLET § anuaAldy aley J31eMm
‘INNIAIY 31VY
_ 198png AYVINIAINS INNIATY : v 378YL

poisad aiey g1 doug

00Z'859'T 00Z'€S9‘T 008'TS9'T $ | 00'0S9°T 00T'SE9'T $ INNIAIY 1TVIOL

0oL 00L 0oL 00 00L p,ed YMQ - SWOdU| 153133

00T'e 00T'E 00T'E 001°¢ 00T p.1ed Siiig J31eM 3Wwodu| 15a493U)

008'ST 008'ST 008°ST $ | 008'ST 008'ST s pled 41V W0y 3saI33U]
JWoduj IsBIRU|

00E'L 00€'L 00€'L 00€'L 00€'L T awoduj SunesadQ-uoN snoaue||3dstip

009°LT 00t'L2 009°9¢ 00192 0095 T JWO0dU| 35BaT JAMO] (19D

00v°0T 00Z'0T 007’01 00z'01 00Z'01 1 WO JUBWINBS 13399

00L°1S 00408 00L'0S S | 0oL‘0s 004'0S S S 8NU3A3Y Xe| - WaIoleA Py
INUDADY SNOJUR}BISIIN

006'STT 009°ETT 009°€TT 009'ETT 009'€ETT S anuanay xej - s334 Ag pueis

- - - - - T {221n185 MaN) 934 sanl|ide, Jiseg

00s 00s 00§ 00S 00S T S@94 329U) pauiniay

009'T 009'T 009't 009°T 009'T 1 1118 121BM - 934 JUN02IY MIN

009'8v 009°LY 00L'9t S | 008'St 000'TE S T s|itg 1918 M - 994 Ajjeudd
SNUBASY 994

006°S 006'S 006°S 006'S 006'S T s||ig J31em - Safes auy

000091 000°09T 000091 000°09T 000'09T 1 12e13U0D OHda

000'vTE 000'vTE 000'pTE 000v1E 000'vTE T sajes Aypowiwo)

007’568 001568 001’568 S | 001968 00T'568 S 1 Siiig 1218 18y aseq
INUDADY B1eY J9jem

S207 vzoz €202 F44174 1202 steed HOHAIRSIG

:O_um_u:_

_ 198png

poudd dley 81z doid

T LI9IHX3

{ 1SVI3UO4 INNIAZY : € 318VL

sasuadx3 pue anuanay Suijesado
AGALS 31V HILYM
DIIYLSIA YILYM NOZVEVD




——

VS

TE 40 L (WBO) T qIyx3

9152°949°008°93.14-[j01 | w0 A0Tsqu mmm :gapm

SgN Aqg pauedasy
00S0T0T 00b'£86 004'v96 008206 000'€68  § le3oi-qns
00Z'eT 006'ZT 009'CT 0oyt 0022t v B2Y0
00609 004’65 005°8S 00t'LS 00€95 S 14 $221A195 Suuzawguy

uoiINqLASIQ 'y SUBJ] ‘S||9M ‘284 Snoaue|Bdsin
00T’ 00T’ 000'€ 006°C 008°C ¥ 1BY10 - suely
00T'1T 00T'T 00T'T 00T'T 00Tt v S3UOYq SWiejy
00572 00122 00L'12 00€1Z 006'0¢C S 14 UoNUIARL BWID
Aundag
00L'€€E 000°€€ 0ov'ze 008'T€ 002°1€ v 13430 - duBUIUIE []IM
000, 0069 008'9 00L'9 0099 S o1 s|earuayd
[jueuUIBA [|DM
00S'8L 000°LL 00S'SL 000'vL 0052, S ¥ sjeta1e Jieday 19 Julen aun
10)0E13U0)) Jieday 1§ UIN 3ur]
00901 005'70T 005°00T 00S'86 00996 14 Sljam - sejun
00T's 00T1's 000's 006t 008y v SIABN
00L'6 005’6 00£'6 0016 006’8 S ¥ saa4 qel
uoiNgLISIQ ‘uoissiwsuel] ‘sjiap ‘sanljey
008 008 008 008 008 8 Junsa] |esipay
000'S 006'C 008 00L'C 009 8 113 puens
00Z°ZE oov'1E 009'0E 008°6T 0086t S 8 2JeJIPB pue y3IJj
"33 ‘saxe - asuadxy |josAed
00978 001’28 00L'6L oov'LL oov'LL 8 uotsuad
004901 009'v01T 005701 005001 008’6 8 a1e) yljeaH azhojdwiy
0099 0059 00v‘9 00£'9 00zZ9 S 8 -dwio? sia)Jom
asuadxg syysuag sako|dw3z
000°0LT 004991 00p'€9T 007'091 000'€2T S L SIDNI0M PID14
suonesadQ piayd
005'L6 00L't6 006'T6 007'68 007'68 9 Jageue |esdUa9
0098 o0ov's 002’8 000'8 008'L € uelsIssy ulwpy ‘dway
00648 00v'Z8 00008 00L'LL 00L'LL 9 Jadeuel [BJBUID JURISISSY
008'65 00185 00t'9S 008'vS 008'vS S 9 SJUN0JJY Jawoisn)
21186 s12WO0ISN) 7§ Juaiadeuepy
00791 006'ST 009'ST 00€'sT 000'ST S 9 5934 510333410
sasuadx3 ||oJAed
siseg
520t vzoe €202 [44174 1202 NOILdI¥2S3a
uogeyu}

_ 198png

pouad a1ey greg doid

T LIgIHX3

1 15¥0340d ISN3IdX3 ONILYYHIdO ¢ S 318Vl

sasuadx3 pue anuaaay Sunesado
AQNLS 3LVY H3LVYM
12141510 Y3LVM NOZVEYD




S

H'z_{

¢€ 0 8 ‘(WB0) T naiyx3

9T6Z°9£9°008:9914-{101 | WO AOBSqU MMM :GaM

SON Aq pasedalg
00190€ $ | 00s'00¢ $ | 00E‘PIE S | 00Z'01E $'| o0s'voE |e301-qns
006 006 006 006 006 v J3Y1Q - $385 J3YI0
0017 001°C 00T'Z 00T°C 001t 12 S99y J91BM Bl€1S
00E'9 00¢'9 0019 000'9 006'S v s394 AJuno) apisianty
- S |- S| s|- S| v sa34 aseajay uan Auno)

saa4 BY10
000T 000'T 000'T 0007 000°T ¥ s|eapy [aaesy
006'€ $ | 008'E S| 00L'E S | 009€ S | 00S'E v Buluted) /sieuiwas
joaedyg / Bujuies)
00Z'8T 009°22 oot'LT 0099z 001'9¢ v aduesnsu Ayjiger jessusg
006 006 006 006 006 v uoddng aysqam
009°s 00s's ooy's 00€'s 002's 12 33195 [josAed
- S|- S|- Si- S|- v sadiey? 221M3S yueg
uoddng snoaue)jaasiin
001'T 00T'T 00Tt 00T'T 001t v sadley) 13 5994 - |eda
0056 00€'6 001’6 006'8 00.'8 v |3uu0sIad - [e83]
009'TT 00’11 00Z'1T 000'TT 00801 v Ja1eM - B89
005'vS S 1 00V'€S S | oov'es S | 00P'TS s | oov'os v |esauan - |2337
|edaq
008'LE 00T'LE 00v'9€ 0oL'se 000'S€E L Sununody
000'st 00S've 000°vZ 005°€T 000'ET L UPNY |e3ueuly
- Si- $ | 00007 $ | 006'TT s | oo9ct L Jogeq Asesodway
sasuadxg Jjoddng
00T’z (110134 00T’z 00T 0012 4 13410 - sasuadx3 a0
- - = 00SC 005°T 12 (VSMD) @oue)|y swalisAs Ja1em VD
00s's 00¥'s 00¢g's 00T's 001'S 4 Supiaiag Buluoipuo) a1y
- - - 00€'9 0029 v 38e1015 3210
006'6€ 001'6€ 00£'8E 00S'LE 008°9¢ v S931A13S J3IndWwo)
00L9 009'9 0059 00v'9 00€'9 v suonedgnd 1§ Sunuig
0068 00L'8 0058 00£8 001’8 14 ade1sod
006 00€'T 006 006 00€'T ¥ suonduasgnsg g sang
oov's 00€'s 00zZ's 001°S 000's ¥ sajddns pue Jaido)
006'0T ooL'ot 00501 00€'0T 001°0T 1 juawdinb3 g sayddng
0012 007’7 001'T 001'C 001 v walsAg Suiig 191eM
- S|- S |- $1- S |- v Supines WalsAS wuely aal4
sasuadx3 Yo
000°s 006’y 008t 0Lt 009't 14 Suiueap) ad1yo / dnyaig ysesL
000°TT 008'01 009°01 0001 00z'01 1 auoydajay
00T'T 00T'T 0011 0017 001'T 6 sen
002781 S 1009t $ | 000LT S | 00¥'9T S | oo8'sT € Awounaagg
91P0 - senuln
siseg
Sz0Z vzoz €202 b4 114 1202 : NOiLdI¥IS3a
uonepuy
188png _ 9 31avL

poliad 21ey 81z doid

T LigIHX3

sasuadx3j pue anuanay SupesadQ
AQNLS ILVY HILYM
LD1YLSIg ¥3LVYM NOZVEYD



E

—

B

2€ 40 6 '(WB0) T NaIyx3

91S2'9£9'008'22:4-)01 | WO ACTSqU MMM 1M

SAN Aq pasedalg

006ZTV'T S | OOT'TEE'T $ | 00T'S6ET §$ | 008'IBE'T S | 008'EZET § jejoL
= = e = o pled NOLLVIDIHd3a
= 009'T 008'E 008‘S 008°s p12d asuadx3 15aJ31uj OdHA
00’y $ | 00S'S S {0049 S | 006z S | 006'L S| pied asuadx3 152493uf YMA

s|seg

5202 veoe €202 (4414 1202 boneyu) NOILdI¥DSIa

(€ LIBIHXI NI NMOHS) INQAY WOYU4 3aNTOX3 SW3LE: 8 319v.L

00L'EI¥'T $ | 000'vBE‘T ¢ | 009'vBE'T ¢ | oOT'89€‘T ¢ | oOTOTET ¢ ‘dX3 ONILYYIdO-NON 2 DNILYYIJO (TV10L ANVYD

000'SLE'T  § | 00E'SPE'T  § | OOb'SEE'T $ | oov'soE‘Tt ¢ | oov'osz'T $ SISNIdXI ONILYY3JO :TVLOL ANYYD

00126 $ | oot‘os $|oo9'sor  $|oor'stt  $|oogetr  $ jel0i-qns
000°SE 000'SE 000'SE 000°SE 000's€ €T YOS / VSO
- - 00501 00012 00012 p.led . Pealed odHa
0011 00Tt 00T'T 00Tt 0011 €T snoauejjadsiN
00zt 00t't 00Tt 00’1t 00t €1 asuadx3 19aqg peg
00V'T $ | oov't S| 00Y'T s |oov't s | oov't S €1 994 JuIssan0id ueo YMa

sasuadx3g SunesadQ-uoN
- - - - - ¥ SUOIIEINUNWWO)
00Z's 001's 000'S 006’ 008y v 13UIaU} / Buoyd 13D sdO Jatem
00L'ST 00t'stT 001'sT 008'vT 005"t ¥ Ul 73 Jieday - $3INIL 82IAIDS
000 000'C 0002 0007 0007 17 {ejuay juawdinby
00TV 000t 006'¢€ 008°€ 00L'E v sasuadx3] Jojoes]
0007 000'C 0002 000C 00s 14 Ayojes
008'T 008'1T 008t 008'T 008'T 14 swiojiun ashojdwy
005'LT 00241 006'9T 009'9t 00gE'91 6 [9n4 3PIY3A
00101 S | oo6's s |oos's s | 00s'6 s | oog'se $ ¥ s|oo [lews 13 s3ijddng doys

wawdinb3 g sjoo) axAsRs

S202 yz0z £20T 20T 120T P NOLLdIYIS3a

:O_um_u:_
198png L 318vL
pousad aley gz dold

T LI91HX3

sasuadx3 pue anuanay Sunesado
AQNLS 31vY YILYM
12144510 Y3LVM NOZY8vd



S
M,

—
-
3

ZE 4001 ‘(W'80) T 1qIyx3

‘G031 0ZA4126png G Xsijx'1abpng uozoqo) p31dopy TZ-0Z A4 1S9

9TGZ°9£9 008°3314-101 | WO A0TSqU MMM GO
SAN Aq pasedald

‘goy suopdwnssy ‘xsjx"126png uozoqo) paydopy TZ-07 A4 13|l 33IN0S WO J4e1S AQ papiacid sanjea uoneyu| s
20T ‘1€ Joquwiadag uo paydde aq jjim 3paJd 157 "WIISAS Y] 0 Pa1IBUUSI OdHJ Uaym papnosd Adedes jeuanippe 03 anp yoeqAed OdHA 7
40d GINOYddY 61 8T'9 p400g 03 JaBpng uozoqo) 0Z-6T A4 EZA~S12Bpng 9T 3|y wouy saindy pua Jead payoafoid ay) ale sasuadxa pue anuaAss 6T/810T Ad

324N0S WOoJJ 318 TZ/0T0T A3 4EN0IY) 02/6TOT Ad 1O} S3SUAMXD pue INU3ASY T

%000 %000 %000 %00°0 %00°0 €T uoljejeis3y oN
%00°¢C %00°¢C %00°C %00°C %00°C (4 35837 J9MO] 18D
%020 %02°0 %020 %020 %0¢°0 13 w0l 3s3u133u|
%00'E %00 %00°€ %00’ %00°E 0T s|estwsy)
%00 %00'E %00°€ %00°€ %00°E 6 12ng
%009 %009 %009 %00°'9 %009 8 suotiedo|je syysuag
%00°C %00°C %00'C %00°C %00°C L salejes pjai4
%00°€ %00 € %00°€ %00°€ %00°'€ 9 sauejes
%007 %000 %000 %00'0 %00°0 S sanuaaay xej Auadoid
%00°C %00°C %00'C %00°C %00°C 14 uone|u| |es3uan
%0S'E %0S'E %0S°€ %0S'€ %0S°€ € A3
%00°€ %00'€ %00 %00°E %00°S 4 sajey Jajem man
%000 %00°0 %000 %000 %00°0 1 S9[eS Ja1em
szoe 24114 €20¢ ceoe 1202 stsed ¢ SYO10V4 NOILLYTdNI
uoneju)

T 19iHX3

SNOILIIWNSSY ONILSVYI3HO4 : 6 318VL
sasuadx3 pue anuaaay sunesadp
AQNLS 3LVYH YILYM

1D141S1a YILVM NOZVEVYD



9T5/'9/9°008:23.4+{|0L | WO AOSSqU' MMM GO

W,

P TE O TT (dID) T 1a1yx3 SN Ag pasedaid
—

(V)

=

wend
- m. 5 m. - .w - m. - v» SP2aadoid puog anuanly MaN
- S |- HE s- s |- S upol yung
z s |- gf- e - 3 (Auapyfag) snidins buipuny (pydny
015'Te S | §S8'1T S | 812'1C S | 0S9'G9€ S | 000°0TS S 5150 133f0.4 |elo)
01522 $ | SS8‘TZ s | 812'T2 ¢ | 0s9's9e  § |looo'0es S spunj |eyjde) jo sadinos felol
. 656°6 81212 059'59¢€ 0029t anuUaARY ey
01572 006TT - - 96675 21952y Juawade|day pue uoneyjiqeysy jende) Jo asn
- - - - - Spa9204d puog anuaAay MaN JO s
: d - 5 & Suipun4 ueo Jy4s
x z - = = sanJasay 834 Ajdede) jo asn
g 3 b o L [ $|- 5 SluelH

SZ/YZ0Z A | ve/ET0T A4 €7/220T Ad T2/1T0Z A4 | T2/0Z0T A4 §324n0S Suipuny

pazaalolg ~ 1SYD3404 ONIANND 1V11dvD

AHVININNS DNIANNS TVLIdYD : 0T 319VL

sainypuadx3 uejd Juawanosdw jeyded
AQNLS 31VYH ¥3Lvm
< 1lIgIHX3 1O141S10 ¥3LVM NOZV8VI



P TE$0 7T (dID) Z nayx3

——

>
=3

a—

9TS2°929°008:33.4-|(0L | WO ACBSqU MMM 1q3M
SN Agq pasedang

SIUIOUO0I3/LLI0Y 1U MMM S3DINOS “XIPU) 150D UOIIINIISUOD pLoday-smaN SuuaauiSul ayl Jo adesaae Jeah O JuaLind JSOW 3y3 UO paseq Si JOJejjul LOIINIISUC) 7

{0Z/6T0Z +0f) g1 07 A4 196png g3 pue

(92/5202-12/0202 10f) D1 d12 4034-S ‘Xsix33bpng uozpqD) PAidopy [Z-0Z A4 53|t 334N0S U1 punoj s3s0d 1afoxd Juswsrosdw (exdes pajewnsy 't

(34 60°T 90T £0°T 00T 020z woJy Ja1diny 1507 UoiIdNIISU) aAlejNWND
%00°€ %00°E %00°'€ %00°€ %000 . P1033Y SmaN Buliaauidu3 1ad ‘Uonejju) 1503 UOHINIISUO) [eNuLY
ST0¢ y 24114 €20¢ 20T 1202 sajgenen Jwouod3
SNOILJININSSY ONILSYIIHO4 : €T 319VL
015'ee s | ss8'te S | 812'T¢ 059'S9E 00002 $ (510/0@ 4103 4-34n3nJ) 5350) wesdoid dID :|eI0L
- - - - - 28esaAy (970Z-TZ0Z Palewns3) s150) diD g
- = - 00SPST - qeyay JneA ejuog
- - - - 000'SL J01e13ua8 ajqeiod 10 SM 9 T O1 XOg JBJSURL) 13 UOIIBUUOD)
= # = = 0000ST qeyay T#yuer
- g - - 000'0vT qeysy T# TTIM uonInposd
- - - 051801 - yanut Awjian asines
- - - 006'0¢ - aqu] Ag poy207 pue] uonIvs Yoeiag
01522 SS8'12 81212 009°0Z 000°02 syuawade|day JAIBA 1M
- - - - 000'ST 3 31241 18 JuRIpAH 3414 33E20|3Y
- S S |- 00515 000°02 $ (s1dwi-asnoyad|) Auadold 192435 U A
S20¢ v20T €20¢ 70T 20T uondisaq 13(0ad
1 (SYV110Q ¥V3IA-IYNLNG NI} SLSOD INVYDO0Ud LNIINIAOYIINI TVLIdYD ¢ T 318V1
000°02 $ | 000°02 $ | 000°0C 000°SS€E 000025 $ (51Djj0@ 1D3A-3ua11n)) s3s0) weadoud did :jejol
- - - - - 28eJany (9202-TZ0T PRIBWNST) 51500 dI1D 24ming
- - - 000°0ST - qeyay nep ejuog
= & - - 000'sL 10321338 3|qenod 10y AN T8 TM O} XOg J9jSuel] 1§ Uoldauuo)
- # - - 000°0ST qeyay T# juer
- = - 0000v¢ qeysy T# TTOM uonanpoid
= = = 000°S0T = yonug Ann 2o1nas
- - - 000°0E - aqu1 AgQ pa)207 puet uonIas Yoelag
00002 000°0¢ 000°02 000'0z 0000z sjuawade|day 1913 43)eM
- . - - 000°ST N 3J241D 1e ueIpAH aJl4 2182013y
= 5 - S|~ 0000S 000'0Z S {sydwsij-asnoyad|) Auadouad 19908 uley
se0z | 7414 €202 (24114 1202 uonduasaq 13afoad

[AICIEPE]

; (SHV1100Q 4V3A-LNIHUND NI) S1SOD WVHYO0Nd LNIWIAOUdIN TYLIdYD © TT 318VL

IANVYO0Ud LNIWIAOUDINI TVLIdYD

sainyipuadx3 ue|d Juawanosdu) jeside)
AGQNLS 3LVY ¥31LvM
12141510 Y3LVYM NOZVavD



H’\’/ ke

Z€ 40 €1 ‘(3920) € ugyx3

915£'9£9°008:93.4-|01 | w0 AoSsqu mmm :gam
SEN Ag paJedaud

- s|- s|- $ - R S 13b4n] ani3say 1g9aq buisix3
%0CT %0ZT %02T %02T %021 uawainbay abniano) jpnuuy buiisixg
I69°80 S |6ELBP S| PEELET S | V6ELET S | V6ELET S 32In13S 193@ jpnuuy Bupsix3

SI1VY ¥31VM Ad Q314S1LVS 39 OL SNOILVYDIT90 18930 TVNANNY DONILSIX3 : ST 319VL

Jpdiuawaaiby 3| JuawyoIsu) yusg SUoIZ 13|14 334n0S papiosd 1Rl v
‘9T/ST/ZT JJe15 AQ Pawsiyuod 1Gap Suiisixa 104 SUBWAINDIS DAITSAION '€

Jpd1uawaaiby afns Juaw|joisu; yupg suoiZ ;34 92inoS "suciedqo Allued ||e sapnjdul pue JudwaaJ8y JudwijjeIsu] yueg uoiz Ag 1as Juawalinbas a8esano) 'z

{pd'Q3SIAIY-3InPaYss 1Gaq ¥/Md 13114 331nos papinosd B T

- S |- $|- s |- HE $ ¢ (souejeq puny je101) USWALINbaY anIasaY
%0 %0 %0CT %01 %021 . (luawAed [enuue aroge Juwy-$) Juawalnbay adesanod
- Sl- S| €oL'88 $|c€oL'88 $|€0LB8 S 0iAIS 199 |enuuy (eloigng

- - 9297 ssL'e T€8'S swAhed 153.103u|
- $1- $|L0'L8  S|6ve'v8 S |z878 S uawAed jedidund

, JUBW9aI3Y 9[es JUaW([eIsu] [eUONEN I5it UOIZ

g $ |- $ |- $|- $1- ¢ ¢ (92uejeq puny [e101) JUaWalINbay anlasay
%071 %07T %0ZT %0ZT %0ZT . (3uswAed jenuue aroge Juwy-$) Juswalinbay sdesano)
1698y $|6EL8y S {1698y S |169'8Y $[T69'8Y S IS 1q2(Q |eENUUY ([eloigns
9987 y0Z'y €8S TEL9 8T6'L uawAed 3s3133u
GZ8'sy S| ves‘vr S| BOZ'EY S| 6S6'Ty S| E€9L0v S uswAed |ediduid

SZ/ve0T Ad

€ 119IHX3

t72/€202 Ad

£€2/2202 Ad

22/1202 Ad

12/0202 Ad

1 9Tr853 ON UBOT YMA
1sa|npayds JuawAeday jenuuy
SNOILLVSIT90 1930 10141S1a INJWSSISSY

T 3149Vl

2210438 1930
AQNLS 31VY 431LVM
1OMY1SIA H31VYM NOZVvEavDd




Msz/ e

ZE JO YT ‘uoneaysse;y 1§ “oung

9TSL 949 008-9214-{01 | WO ACTSGU MMM Gam

SAN Ag pasedald
%9°0 %T6 %209 %0°0€ | 100'S S| 2Le'€L 5 | €z0'18Y S | 0OE‘ObT $ | 0OL'66L S |e3ol-gns
%L'0 %00 %€'69 %0°0€ | vZZ S - S | 91912 $ | 096 s | ooz'te S 13430 - dUBUBIUIRIN |IPM
%00 %00 %00 %0°00T - S - S - $ | 0099 $ | 009'9 $ sjeatwuay)
IduBLAUIEW |IIM
%L°0 %0°0 %E'69 %0'0€ | Tes S - S{62Z’0S S|0sL'1T  S|o0sTL S sjeuale Jieday 13 Julepy aun
%L°0 %0°0 %E69 | %0°0€ - s| - s - S| - S|- S Aouadraw3 uay Jieday B uIN 3uri
%L°0 %00 %E'69 %0'0E - S - S - S - s|- S AduaBiawg uondnasuo) Jleday g UIN aull
%L°0 %00 %E'69 | %008 - S| - O S| - S1- S Juady Jreday g UIA BuN
%L°0 %00 %E 69 %0°0E - S o S - S - S|- $ uonINIISUO) Jieday 13 Ul 3un
J033e3U0) sjeday g LN dun
%L°0 %00 %E'69 %0°0€ - S - S - S - $]- S vavos
%0°0 %00 %00 %0'001 - S - $ - $009'96 $|009'96 S SIIaM - s31IN
%L0 %00 %E'69 %0'0E - S - S - S - S|- S aueudjuley g adedaspuey uelpan
%00 %0'0 %00 %0001 - S - S - S - Sl- S 4012843U07 331AUBS JOYRIBUID
%L'0 %00 %€'69 %00e | VE S - S| 9TE'E S| ovr'T S| 008V S 519191
%L0 %00 %¢E'69 %0°0E - S - S S S & S|- S adueujuren g Suideaspue] als
%L°0 9%0°0 %E'69 %00E | ¥9 S - $ {9919 S |09 S | ooe's S saad qe
uonNqUISK ‘uoissiusuel] ‘siiRAA ‘sales
%L°0 %00 %E"69 %00€ |9 S - S | ¥SS S | ove s | oos S Buiisa) jenpa
%L0 %00 %E"69 %00 |61 S - s | 1081 s | o8 s | 009 S 1i3 pueins
%L0 %00 %E'69 %00 | V1T S - S|9ov9'or S |ove's S | 008'6¢ S JEJPAN pue ¥IId4
' ‘saxe] - asuadx3 |joiAed
%L°0 %00 %E'69 %00t | 995 S - S{vz9'es $|0cT'tEr S| o0v'LL S uoIsuad
%L°0 %00 %E'69 %0'0€ | 189 S - $ 16959 S |Ovv'8Z S| 0086 S 3JeD y1jeaH aahko|dw3
%L°0 %0°0 %E'69 %00 | o S - 1474 S | o981 s | ooz'9 S "dwo) S1YI0M
asuadx3 syysuag aaiojdw3
%0 %00 %E'69 %0'0€ | €88 S - S| L1258 $| 00698 S | 00O'ETZT S SIDYI0M PIIY
suonesadQ piaid
%00 | %0°00T | %00 %0'0 S S| - s| - N S |- S Japeay 1o
suonesadQ J31ep
%L°0 %0°0T %E'68 %00 | 0¥9 S| 0z6'8 sjiove'sL S - S | 00Z'68 S Jadeuep e1auan
%L°0 %007 | %E68 %00 |95 s | o8 $ | ¥96°9 s - s | oo8'c $ JUeISISSY uwpy dway
%L°0 %001 %€ 68 %00 855 sjoLL't S|eeey S - slooL'LL S Jadeuey [B18UBD JUEISISSY
%L°0 %001 %E 68 %00 - S| - S| - 3 S|- $ uelsissy ulwpy
%L°0 %E 66 %00 %00 | €6t S|Lovvs  $ - S - S | 008vS S SIUNOIY JBW0ISN]
2IIA43G SIBW0ISN) P JuswaTeuely
%L0 %001 %E 6L %001 | 80T S| 00sT S| T68'TT S| 00ST $ | ooo'st S 5394 51010200
sasuadx3 jjoshed
d v dV O d Y dV O
U01333304d sjudwalinbay ait08a1e) 189png
one 0 a3WoIsn) Aldede) Allpowwio) :

UOROIJsSOp) % vonaung

3114

DNUINDY {0

91 18Vl

SisAjeuy aJIAIas Jo 3500
AGNLS JLVY YILvm
13141510 HILVM NOZVEYD



14/ 1

9T5£'9£9'008:2244-4|0) | WO ACTSGU MMM .M
ZE JO ST ‘uoiBdIyIsSe|D g “Joung SAN Aq pasedalg

%L0 %L %265 %8¢ | 916t s|o89'0z  $|veeo9r g |os2te Sjoocisz S 1e10.L1-qns
%L0 %00t %E'6S %00t | 1S S| 00S°E S{evL0z $|0090T S| 000'SE S UNUNOY
%L0 %001 %E'65 %0°0€ | 591 S| 00ET S| SE9ET S| 0069 $ | 000'€C S Ipny jepueuly
%L0 %0°01T %E 65 %0°0¢ | 06 S 10921 sloLv'e s|osLe S| oo9'zt S Joqey Atesodway
sasuadx3 uoddng
%L0 %0701 %E'6S %00t | ST S| otz S| spE'T S [ 0g9 sjootz S JByiQ - sasuadx3 anyo
%L0 %0°0T %E 65 %0'0E | 8T s | ost S| zert ${0sL $ | 00SC S (VSMD) aduel|y swalsAs Jatem v
%L0 %0°01T %E 65 %00 | LE s |o01s S| €20t s |oest S| 00T's S Bup1uas Jujuonipuo) iy
%L°0 %001 %E'6S %00 | SV S | 0z9 S | se9e S| 0981 S| 00z'9 S adei01s YO
%L'0 %001 %E6S %0°0¢ - S - S - S - s - $ peoy /830
%L°0 %001 %E'6S %00E | ¥9C $ | 089t s|ot81c  $|ovo'tt S| 0089€ S Sa21A3S JaIndwo)
%L0 %0°0T %E'6S %0'0E - S - S - S - s|- S Suay 1g sased’)
%L'0 %0°0T %E'65 %00€ | SY S | 0E9 S| SEL'E S 0681 s | oog’e S suopeslqnd g Juiuid
%L0 %0°0T %E'6S %00 |89 S |0t8 S| zosvy S | OEV'T S |oot's S 3deisod
%L0 %001 %E 65 %00E {6 S| OET S| tLL s | o6€ S| 00E'T S suonduasqns g sang
%L0 %0701 %E"6S %0'0E | 9€ $ | 00S S {96 $ | 00S°T $1000'S S sa1jddns pue Jaido)
%L 0 %001 %E6S %00E | €L $ | 010t S| L86°S $ | 0E0'E $ | ootot $ wawdinb3 13 s3yddng
%00 %0001 %00 %00 - $ |00t S - S - $]001C S Wa1sAg Fuijjig Ja1em
%L°0 %001 %E 65 %0"0€ - S - S - S - S|- S Fupines wWalsAs wuey alg
sasuadx3 PO
%L 0 %0°0T %E6S %0°0e | EE S | 09 S|eeL't S | 08€T S | 009'v S Suiuea|) 310 / dnydid yseat
%L 0 %001 %E'65 %00€ | €L S| 0T0'T S| Lv0'9 S | 090’ S | ooz'ot S auoyda|a)
%L0 %001 %E'6S %00€ |8 s |ott $]2s9 S | OEE $|o01't S se9
%L°0 %001 %E'6S %0°0€ | ETT $|08st S| L9g6 S|ovl'y S {008'sT S Adus|3
3NYO - AN
%00 %00 %00 %0001 - S S - s|ooz'zt  $|ooT'Tl S Jayio
%00 %00 %00 %0'001 - S - S - S - Si- S S10}eULIOYD
%L0 %0°0 %E'69 %0°0E | vOv S = S | 900'6€ $ | 06891 S | 00€'9S S $30iA135 Bunsauidug
uonnNqLIsI ’g suel] ‘s|iam ‘ae4 snoauejIsiN
%L°0 %0°0 %E 69 %0°0€ = S = S c $ = S|- $ asea) dinb3 o3pia
%L°0 %00 %€'69 %0°0€ - S s S o S = $]- $ wJe|y olpny
%L'0 %00 %E'69 | %00E 2 S| - L S| - S| S sjeuen
%L0 %0'0 %E'69 %0'0E = ) = S - S - S|- S wawdinb3 /3ululesy
%L°0 %00 %E"69 %0'0E | 0OC S - S| ove'T $ | ovs s | 008 S 4310 - swuelY
%L0 %00 %E'69 %0'0E |8 S : s|zoL $ | OEE $toot’t S S3U0Yd SULIBY
%L°0 %0'0 %E'69 %0'0€ | 0ST S - S| 08y'PT S| 0LZ9 $ | 006'0C S UOIIURARL BN
Aundag

12/0202 A4

uo1322)04 sjuawalnnba ¥l
uonesyisse|) jo siseqg U Jawoisn) Aydeded Alpowwio) 4 R saL0fsie) 129png

aild anuanay |eyoL
panuijuoa ‘sasuadx3 j0 UONEBIIISSE]D

L1 318Vl

SISAjeUY 3IIAIBS JO 150D
AGNLS 31VY HILVM
12141510 ¥31VvM NOZVavd




150/ e

9T5/°9£9'008:39J4-[|0L | WO AOTSqU MMM .QaM
ZE 40 9T ‘uaneaysse;d 1§ “Iung oy A pacin

%90 | %es |T%e09 | %e1el | 8eo'sl$)|icoe’se §|lesz'962  $1| 000'0Ty. S |l0OTOTET ¢ asuadx3 Suesadg [e3o)
%50 %S°0 %TS9 | %8EE | TeTT EZ43 S |Eov'6bT S| O0Ev'LZ S |ooz'eTT  § {e101-gng
%L°0 %0°0 %E'69 | %O0E |15 sy - s|evz'vz  $|oos'or ¢ ]o000'SE $ VINOS / VSO
%L'0 %00 %E'69 | %00E |TST S| - S| 6vS'yT S| 00g9 $ 100012 S Z¥2eghed OdHA
%L°0 %00 %E'69 %0°0¢€ - S - S - S = S- S jueynsuo) adew)
%L0 %0°0T %E'65 %0°0€ - S o S o S o s|- $ uoddng ajisgam
%L0 %00 %E69 | %00e |8 st - S| zoe s | oge S 10011 $ snoaue|dsiy
%L°0 %E'66 %0'0 %00 |6 S| 1617 s| - sy - s | ooz't S asuadx31qag peg
%L0 %0°0 %E69 | %00E |or S| - sloze S| ozy s{oov't $ 324 Bu)ssadoud ueo] HMQa
%L0 %E66 %00 %00 e sl - s - s| - s |- $ $¥o3YD pauimay
sasuadx3 Bunesadp-uoN
%L'0 %00 %E69 | %00E 0 s| - s - s - $ - $ J3Yi0 - awdinb3 1 51004 231085
%L'0 %00 %E69 | %00€ e s| - S| - s| - s |- $ SUONEJILNWILO)
%L'0 %00 %€69 | %00 S st - S S| - Si- S 1auwiaul Jandwo) sdg Jarem
%L0 %00 %E'69 | %00E | vE s - $ | ozee S| ovr'T $ | ooy $ Uk / Buoyd (18D sdO J93em
%L°0 %00 %E'69 | %00E | ¥OT sl - $|9v001 S| 0sEv s | oos'vT $ UIA '3 Jieday - SHanLL 821AS
%L°0 %00 %E6Y | %00E |¥T sl - $ | 98t S | 009 $ | 000'T $ |e3uay Juswdinby
%L°0 %00 %E69 | %00¢ C St - 1 S| - S|- S 1an4 aoyyeq
%L'0 %00 %E'69 | %0O0E | LT $| - S | €95C S1OTT'T ${ooLe S sasuadx3 Joldely
%L°0 %0°0 %E69 | %00E | v s| - s lave s | 0st $ | 005 S Apyes
%L'0 %00 %E69 | %00e €T sy - S| vt s | obs $ 10081 S suugyun 3shkoidwl
%L0 %00 %E69 | %00E |11 sl - S|eezt  $ | 068 $ | oog'9t S 134 31yaA
%L'0 %0'0 %E'69 | %00E |19 S| - S | Evv9 S106L2 s | oog's $ sjo0 ||ews 1g sanddns doys
udwdinb3 13 sj00] 3)AIaS
%L'0 %00 %E69 | %00E |9 sl - S | vzo s oz $ | 006 S J3YiQ - 5334 43Y10
%00 %0'0 %00 | %0001 C S| - O s ootz s |oo1e s 533} JajeM el
%L'0 %00 %E69 | %00E |2 s| - S | 880"y $|oeet $ | 0o6s $ s394 AJuno) apisianly
%L0 %00 %E'E9 | %00E s sy - s - s| - $ |- $ 5394 aseajay ua)] Aluno)
$394 1230
%L'0 %00 %E69 | %00E | L S| - S | €69 S | 00E $ 100071 $ S|EIN janesL
%L°0 %00 %E'69 | %O0E | ST L $|ser'e s | 0s0t $ | oos'e $ duiuies| / sseutwas
%L°0 %00 %E'69 | %O0E - s - s| - s - $- $ 1onel) / Suiues)
%L0 %00 %E69 | %00E |81 sl - S| €80'8T S| 0£8L $ | oot'9z s 2ueinsu) Aujiger jesauag
%L°0 %00 %E69 | %00E |9 sl - S| ve9 s |oze $ | 006 S voddns ausgam
%L0 %00 %E69 | %OO0E | LE $| - S | €09'€ $ | 0951 s | ooz's S 33135 ||0JARd
%L°0 %00 %E'69 | %00E . sl - s - sl - St- $ sagiey) adnias yueg
1oddng snoduejjadsiiay
%0'0 %0'S %0'S9 | %00f = $|ss $|st S | ogg s|oott $ sadiey) g s3a4 - jeda]
%00 %00 %0'0L | %00€ S S S| - S| - $i- S Sulpung ueo? /jueio - [eda]
%0°0 %0°0 %00, | %00E = s| - S | 0609 $ 019 $ | ooL's S [2uugsiad - |eda
%00 %0°0 %0'0L | %00f e sl - s| - St - $ - $ P1033Y 31GNd ‘12Y umoig - |eSal
%0'0 %00 %00 | %0°00T C s| - s| - $|o080T $|o0080t $ 121eM - (BFD]
%0°0 %00 %0'0L | %00E S s| - S108Z'sE $|0ZI'ST  $|00v0S S |e18uay - |eda]

12/020T A4
u01323304d sjuawaiinbay sapiofdaie) 3a8png

uoledIsse|d jo s|se
AR B IEA E] anu3aNnaYy [ero]

panunuo3 ‘sasuadx3 0 uoledyl

81 NavL

sisA|euy 321A196 JO 150D
AGQNLS 31VY Yalvm
uoRDaIssop %y uonaung 12141510 Y31va NOZvav)d




-

s\

ZE JO LT "uonieayIsse) 73 Jpuny

915£'9£9'008'9244-}01 | WO A0TSqU MMM :GIM

%C'EL

SAN Aq pasedald
%v0 %0'S %ZEL %y'1Z %0°00T anuanay Jo 1uadiagd
9v6's.  $|00S'0L S| 90S9£0'T § | Z62'E0E  $ {0SZOTVT $ S3,bay anuanay 1aN paisnlpy
%0'E aseasnu| 31ey paioid 1Z/070¢ Ad
000'SLE'T S $3)eY JULIND) 1B BNUIASY 3ley pariafold
0SZ9T¥'T S S95E3.0U] 3)eY JAYY "ABY dley 18die) 17/0707 Ad

1{9n37 31BY JUILIND 10 JuaWSNIpY
sasuadx3 JO UOIIEIYISSE|D 03 SIUBWISNIPY
panuRuol ‘sasuadx3 Jo uoleayIsse[)

0z 31avl

S uD|d joiuodui woif ¥3ay) 3,bay anuanay 1aN

sjusLuasnbay anuanay fo uonvIoHY

3 $ | 662°012'T $ | 86T°vSE ¢ | BEEPSYT $ SINIWIYIND3IY 3NNIATY 1IN
%t'0 %0'S %UEL | %Y1 S s |(sve'vT) S |{L6T'W) s [{oog'eT) S WOodU| 3534931
%0 %0°S %TEL | wyiz |(1€) $ |(€9g) $ [(eve's) ¢ |(e9sT) 3§ |loog's) $ awodu| Suneiad(-UoN snoaue)EdsI
%b'0 %0'S %TEL | %yTC |{L0T) S [wez'n)  § |(9ec'sT) s ({zsv’'s) ¢ [(oog'sz) S BWIODU| BB JBMOL (|3D
%0 %0°'S %TEL %y 12 |(EV) S |(805) $ [(sov's) S |{ver'e) S |(ooz'oT) S 20U JUIWINDS 12193
%y'0 %0'S %CEL | %y |(€10) S |lves'e) s |{sot'Le) S |(ssg'Or)  § [(oos'os) S aNUBA3Y XEL - WRIO[EA PY
SNUIAIY SNOURHIISUA
%b'0 %0°S %EL | %vTC (L) S ({ss9’s) s |{ovi'es) S |(8ze've) S |(009'EIT) S anuanly xey - 5334 Ag puels
%b'0 %0'S %CEL %y'TT - S| - S - $ - S S S (8010135 MAN) 234 sa1de JISeg
%0 %0°S %TEL | w1 |{2) $ |(s2) $ |(99¢g) $ |(zoT) s |{oos) S $334 Y23y pauiniay
%0 %0°S %TEL | WBYTT - s - s| - s| - sl - $ S|IG J2IBM - 94 JUBpIHU|
%b'0 %0'S %CEL | %yTT (L) s |(08) s|(reT'n)  § |{ewe) $ {(009'T) S 1118 4238 - 5334 3UNODDY MAN
%0 %0'S %TEL | WYTT - s - s - s| - s - S 5994 JUBWNEISUIDY YA
%t'0 %0'S %TEL | %vIT |(OST) S |levst) s |(sso'zr) S |(6€9'9)  § [(ooo'TE) S s|itg Ja1emn - sa34 Aijeuad
%P0 %0°S %L EL %Y1 - S - S - S - S - S {eAoway 1§ ||eIsu| 133N
%t'0 %0'S %TEL | %I - s| - sl - s| - sl - S 3W0dU| MO 3114
anNuaAdy 934
stlig 431eM - $3{eS 3)1]
1EU0) OHJT
s3|es AJjpowo)
S|}ig JB1e Bley aseq
aANUAIY djey Jajem
Sanuanay aypy-uoN :$sa1
%v'0 %0'S %TEL | %vTz | 8e0'8 S| €O0E's6 S| LSITOV'T S | 000'0TY S [ 86¥'PI6'T S SANIWIHIND3Y 3NNIATY TVIOL
%0°0 %00 | %000T | %00 e st - s [voo'zor S| - s|voo'zor sasuadx3 [eude) papun aiey
sanypuadxy jende)
%00 %00 | %0001 | %00 |- HE s | veezer S| - B sjuawAed 301135 3GaQ [2I0L
%00 %00 | %000T | %00 - sl - s| - St - s |- S 01AI353G2g 2iMny
%00 %00 | %0°00T | %00 e s - sleoL'sg S| - s | €0.'88 $ | uawaaidy 3jes uBW|[eISU| [BUONEN ISIl4 UOIZ
%0°0 %00 | %0°00T | %00 . s| - S|Te9'sy S| - S | 16981 $ 91853 ON Ue07 YMQ
; syuaiuAed a3AIas 3930
d \f dV O d \ dV O 0¢0
u0133310.4d II sjuawasnbay als03a3e7) 123png
e 0 Sise A3WOISN) Aaede) Alpowwo)
ANy SNUIAIY [RIOL
Do O o a0 O O 2 |2
6T 318VL

uonoIISSo ¥ UoiIUNg

sisAjeuy 321A19S JO 150D
AGNLS 31vY Y3Lvym
1D141S1Q YILVM NOZVEv)d



N "

(St \v

Z€ 10 8T ‘s1030e4 uoHEI0||Y

5103004 UOHDIOJY

915£'9£9°008:8314-||0L | WO ACSSQU MMM :qBM
saN Aq paisedaly

‘(jonuup *6°3) awn fo poriad paifinads
D 1310 1310M JO (MO}f) uondwNsuol |D103 3Y3 YIIM PIIDIIOSSD 31D SISO3 3SAY ) :51S07) parpjay Aupowiuo)

'19B1JU02 Aq 135 S| UBISBP J)eS SE PAPN|IXA JBWDISNI JIBIIUCD €
UGIYX2 J24I0UE U) 135 I9) |BIUIS JB13W AJYIUOW B BABY SIDWO)SND UOIIINIISUDD) ¢

XS|X'pAIDINdIUDN~Z0ITOD  LHOdIYIOYSN U0ZDGY) S3|1j 32IN0S
"Alyjuows sjiig GMD "610Z Wwoy st uondwnsuo) 1

LOS'tvY . }enuo)
%00T 60S'TET jeol
%S°'T VE6'T , uondnisuo)
%0°0 8¢ SIDIAN 921AJBS 214
%9°ST 1€5°0C sJa1ay uonesiuyg
%00 - SI913N |BHISNpY|
%8'8 79S'TT SIIIIN |eIDISWWO)
%L'T 102'C 51313\ JUBWILLIRACY
%0°'T 8€E’T [enuapisay Ajiwed-niniy
%v'TL ST6'E6 |eriuapisay Ajlwed ajsusg

awnjop ; 5u)

ssep) Jawolsn)
jejo] jo juadiad awnjon

40134 uoneso|y ALIAOWINQD 2Ul Jo Judwdojaaaq
TZ avil

sisAjeuy 32143 JO 350D 131BMN
AQNLS 31VH HY31vm
10141810 ¥3LVvM NOZVEvD



S,
=

153 |

ZE J0 6T ‘s101084 UONRIO|Y

$41012D4 uonDIOJIY

9T52°9£9°008:9344-){01 | W02 A0SSqU MMM (GO
SEN Ag pasedald

‘puUDWIP Syl 333W 03 PaJinbai san1aof Jo 3zis wnwixow ay3
Ui Jutod U0 10 PaINbas PUDWAP WNWIXDW 3Y3 YIIM P3IDID0SSD SIS0 53S0 paip|ay Arndp)

‘(a1qeieae Jou eyep Aep yead) eyep Ajyjuow yead uo paseg ‘T

€E'T 126’V 60L'E JeIUOD
%00T vLT'LT 656'0T _|aoL
%Y o'y 6TL 191 uonannsuo)
%10 98°'€ 6 Z SI2IBIN 2DIAIBS Bi4
%E6T S6'T 8€€’E LT SJ213N uonesiu|
%0°0 V/N 0 0 SI9IBIAl [BIISNPU|
%0°L STl 607’1 ¥96 SIBI3 |BIDIBWWO)
%6°T vLT 0ce €387 SIBI3N JUSWUIAA0H
%6°0 'l 8S1 [N+ jenuapisay Ajwed-1ynin
%L°99 JAA? TC¢STT 9z8'L jenuapisay Ajiwed sj8uis

{3ou)
asn Alyauow SSe|) 43W03sn)

1032e4

2 oS
Kupedes Jo30e4 ; (4ou) @sn

Alyiuoi yead | Ajyruo yead

YIUOAl XEIA! a8esany
1032e3 uoKEeI0||Y (HLNOW XYIA) ALIDVdVYD 341 Jo Judwdojanag

¢g 1avl

sisAjeuy a21A136 JO 350D 131BM
AdNLS 31VY H31Vm
12141510 H3LvM NOzZvavOd




| 1ele

tstt

9T5£'9£9°008:9314-||0L | W03 A0BSqU MMM :qam
Z€ 40 0T ‘s1012e4 uOIIBIO||Y SEN Aq pasedaay

‘Buijjig pup 3603504 ‘Bulppai-iaapy (sajdwox3g walsAs ayl uo s1aW0ISNI Jo UoN3(aP 10 UOLIPPD YT YIUM
AIDA $3507 353y ‘WIISAS 1310M 3Y3 U0 J3WOISNI D BUIADY Y}M PIIDIIOSSD SISO ! SIS0 PAIDjay J3UI0ISN)

Xsjx"pa3o|ndiupiN~Z0IT0I LH0dIYIDYSN U0Z0goD :$3)Y 92IN0S
‘Ajyiucw )19 AMD "6T0Z J2GWaZAQ WOy 511Un0) JA1BW 'T

816 jelol

T joeiluo)

%0'00T LT6 (28
%L'0 9 uo132nJISuo)
%S°0 S SIDIBIAl IIAIDS D414
%C'T 1T si919W uonesiu)
%1°0 T SI3I3N |BLASNPU)
%C'E 6¢ SI919IA [B1I3WWo)
%80 L SI31IA JUDWUIBA0Y)
%0 14 |eluapisay Ajlwed-13niA
{eiluapIsay Ajwey aj3uls

S1919 N
B30} jojuadag| sse|) Jawoisn)

JO Jagquinp
4030E4 UOI1IEd0]||Y YIWOLSND 343 40 3uawdojPnaq

€¢ 318Vl

sisAjeuy 321013 }JO 150D 131BM
AdNIS 1YY Y31V
540323b4 uonpIOfIY 1D141S10 H3aLVM NOZvavDd




S
S

|ss/

€40 TZ ‘siuodyeasg Jal) ¥ds

9TS£°9£9°008:93J4-|{0L | WOI'AOBSGU MMM 1GIM
SEN Aq pazedaid

*1911 Yyoea je uonidwinsuod yead 393w 03 Aldeded aAlleINWND [EUOIIPPE 3Y3 SI SIYL b

"1213 UaA18 e 01 331A435 SpIroad 01 paJinbal Andedes syuasaidal 3 Hieauq 181l 3Y) 03 dn uondwnsuod yead JAleINWING Y3 SISIYL '€
‘SI9WOISNI JO Jaquinu ayl AQ paijdijniu )esauq Ja1) 3yl sluasaldal 1313 31541 ay) 01 pajedojje Audede) 7
XS[X'paIDINGIUDIN“ZOIT0D ™ LYOdIYIOVSN UoZDGDD) PUD XS|X"ZOITOD  AHVININNS SLIIV NVNIJ u0zognd :S3|l 331nos

"BIEp JBW0ISNI 6TOZ AMD Y3 uo paseq si elep uondwinsuo) 'T

9%0°'00T EpS‘s . ; |20
%S°S9 0€9°€ 12511 ¢ €431L 03 dnyead g1l
%S"VE €16'T 168°L ¢ 24911 03 dn yead (AU
%0°0 0 8L6°S . Meded T sa1l xey T3t

|elo] jo
1U3IIDg

5103084 U011E20]1Y (HINOIN XVIAI) ALIDYdYD MV3d |

5 (124) pasinbay
Apede)
|euotlppy

uondisag

ay Ajiwe4 913uls ays jo Juswdo|anag

SZ 319Vl

Xs|x"pa10jndiudiN”Z03T02 LH0dIHIDVYSN  U0ZDGD) PUD XSIX'ZOITOD AYVININAS SLIIV NYNIJ U0ZDgo) sajfly 321n0s

‘BIEP JAWOISNI 6T0Z AMD 2yl uo paseq s ejep uondwnsuo) 7
‘uondwnsuod JaWWNS IFLIIAR S| YdIYM Joy T 03 39S Jutod yeauq g Ja1L

‘uozeqe?) uf uolldwinsuos Joopul 3FeIIAR JO 31RWINISA UE ‘UoRdWNSUOD J13JUIM 3FIBAR 03 195 Juiod Yealq T Ja1) ‘T

%00T ST6'E6 je101
%02 618°8T - g3l
%ET OEV‘1T PYPT z 911
%LS 999°cS PYL T 4811

uondwnsuo)
Yds |eiog

uonduwnsuo)

paldadxy

. julodiealg
A (A

Jo adejuadiad

4311 Aq uondwnsuo)

vZ 318vl

1Z/0Z0Z A4 SHIWO1SND TVILNIAISIY ATIAIYA F1DNIS
Y04 SY0LIVd ALIDVdVYI TYNOILIAAY 40 LNIINdOT3IA3A

udisaq ajey/sisAjeuy adnIas Jo 150D J31EM
AQNLS 31VvY HILVM
1J141S1Q Y431LVYM NOZVEYD

sjurodypaig 4311 Y45



T €)o7z 'sdley 1oenuo)

9T54'9£9°008:9944-]|01 | WO AOBSQqU MMM :G3M
SN Aq pasedalg

'sqe) sajey pasodoud 1§ waLn) pue sagdiey?) paxi4 pasodold 39S

*SJ3SN |RI213WWIOI J0) Sul||ig Yaul 0T 03 SPYIUMS U] JBWOISNI SIYI LYIIYM Ul ZZ0T ‘TE Joqwaia( pua saiel 1oeiuo)
‘05 abod ‘fpdjoutd (LT'ET't) ApNIS 210y 121D 19141510 1210\ UOZDGDD T :3jlj 324N0S Ul PUNO) 53384 JUBLIND °T

99b'6v2'T $ | VLO'ETTTS | ThL/LLTTS |

L2607 S _ 9/1'c0z ¢ | 6se'z6T $ _ J3WI03SN) 12BIIUO) WOLS BNUIAJY 21eY parewiisy

E¥8°08T
6Cv'8C S

LOSY

90'vS
S0'69€T$

9/8'SLT
109°L2

L0S'tY
v6°€S

%00°E

S0°00€'CS

$

3NU3A3Y ey Suiuieway

(A=) AV TAS anuanay ajgeLIeA palewisy

L649C S 3nuaAay paxi4 pajew3s3

L0S'Y {42y) uondwnsuo) paiewiis3
£8'€S 31ey 3jqeuen
90'€EET'TS a3ey paxid

1UD|d [DI2UDULS 15d 3NUSASY 310Y Ui 3SDIIIUf PIII3[0Id

¢T/TZ0T Ad | TZ/0Z0Z Ad | 0Z/6T0C Ad
32813U0)

sajey pasodo.ig

1 jua44n)

9Z 319Vl
*S31VvY LOVHINOD 40 INIINdOT3IAIA
udisag a1ey/sisAjeuy a2JA13G JO 150D J21EM

AQNLS 31y HILVM
1314410 431VM NOZVEY)



=
= zejoezobed wodroBsqummm | 91.62°9/9'008
A d
—-— SaN 4q paiedaid

S

834 dn 335 3un023Y Pasya, 10f pd'(z) GINOYLdY 02 bT T 1M0day [ould uozpgo) Apnis 334 SN T 3|1 824n0S 5,1011810 Jad T

00'vvT$ 934 uoneiqy|eaay J18 N (€101
00'7ZT$ 00'7eTS 00T Jiedal J913W 10} SWN} Hels
00'221$ 00'72T$ 00’1 Jieda) J313W pue [3Ae.3 JOj W JelS

12woIsn) Anoy 12d

SINOH Joqe 994 uoneuqielay 1912
o} asuey) 150) Joge] kL) 4 Al o

334 NOLLVYE1TVI3Y 313N 40 LNIINdO1IAIQ 8T 318VL

334 dn 335 Junody paiaiap, 4of fpd (z) AINOUddY 02 +T1 I 1oday jould uozoqu) Apnis 334 SN T 13|1) 334N0S 5,10L315IQ 13d ‘T

05°¢STS 394 anpeS|UIWPY |210 ]
00'T9$ 00°Z¢1S 0s0 9210 UIBIN 03 ABAIRQ J9I3IN UOHIINIISUOD)
05°0€S 00°22TS SZ°0 unoy Suiuadp
00'19% 00'271$ 050 Buissanoid uoned)|ddy

lawoisn) Aoy aad

SINOH Joge SI3WI0ISND MDY 10§ 334 aAlEAsSIUIW
0} 3adiey) 1503 10qe] H 1097 1SNJ MON 10§ 334 3l uwpy

334 JALLVHLISININGY ¥313IN 40 LNJINAOTIAIA L2 319VL

sishjeuy ajey UOINIISUC)
AQNLS 31VY H3ivm
1J141SI1a YILVM NOZVEvD



3
>

63/ \

Z¢ Jo vz abey

woo'AoBsqummm | 915/°9,9°008
SEN Aq pasedalyg

*1eaA Jad uonepur % sswnssy ‘Jalaw Sutuondunyjew e Suuiedal Joy 300 pue awn Joge| uo paseq {€]
"Je2A J3d UojIe|jUI %E SAWNSSY ‘113w Buljjeisur pue Junodae Juiuado ‘uonedydde Suissesoud 1ioj 1502 pue 3wl Jogej uo paseg [z]
‘pauinial Jou S1 11l ‘Jead Jualind sy3 ul J31aw ay) Suideidal Jo 3500 uo paseg [1]

"894 JO uoneuejdxy

$a1DY pasodold g 3Uaiin) uj UMoYs $33- AlyIuopy

Z9'vLZS
VITLIS
8L°112'TS

£9'992$
+9°99TS
98 /pT'TS

Jo uoneue|dxy

SZ/v20T A4

A

$Z/€202 Ad

98°852S ZE°IS2S 00°tvZS
6/'T9TS 80°£STS 05°ZSTS

934 uo(jeJqgijeIny JABN
394 aAlRLISIUIWLIPY
1sodaq 4319 U0ITINAISUO)

78'780°TS 60'v20TS $T°596'TS

¥

€2/2202 A4 | TZ/TT0Z Ad | 12/020T Ad

- $334 W -3UQ

3|hpayas 294
J3wWo3sn) uopdNIIsuo) pazepdn

SYINOLSNI NOLLINYLSNOD HO4 3T1NAIHIS 334 @31vadn ;62 319VL

sisAjeuy ajey uo1INNSUO)
AQNLS 31VY H31LVM
121441510 ¥3LvM NOZVEvD



3
I:M.

154 (

ZE 0 Sz ‘sadsey) paxi4 pasodolg

0 287,

9154949 008:9944-]|0) | wod AcTsqu mmm (gap
SEN Aq pasedaug

98L'65¢

i=Ha aA3Y 19N PaIS

_F == mu«b.k..u,.uueao@ L

9|qeieA %IT / PIXId %6L

(TZ-020¢) Siuawalinbay

SNU3IAZY 9N UmumzmﬁmcD
53nsay vSOI

9LT'E0T S 9/T'€0z S S3jeY 1224340 WOI) BNUIAY

%007 VLOETTT § %001 YLOETZ'T S (2018
%P0 €60°'S S %40 £60'S 3 S1500) Pa1e[3Y - L0120 B
%0°'S 98e'09  §$ %0°'S 98€'09  §$ S350 paje|ay - JBWoisn)
] . : : (3ueys paxy)
%9'¥C Evy'86T S BTEL 808°/88 ¢ 51507 pasejey - Ajveder
3 5 i (348YS 31438WINJOA)
%98 S9E'68S S %00 o S 51507 parejay - Adeden
982’657 S 51507 paje|ay - Alpowwo)

Alo3a1e)
|euoizduny

SINIWIYINDIY INNIATY YILYM 40 NOILVIOTIV : TE 319VL

'€-G 2qeL 9-IN YMMY W0J] aJe S3TBJ MO J913W IDIAIS Jlld 7

‘T-8 31981 T-W YMMY W0Jj ae 531e) mOjj J19N T

yout -g/s 03

{wd3)
Apdede)

Yyaul -g/s 0}

00°0¢¢ oov'y 00012 00z'y
00orl 008z 00°0vT 008°C
SI213N 11 SSD]D auiqinL
0008 009'T 00°0s 0001
00'se 0oL 00°'st 00s
0s'LT 0S¢ 0091 0ce
7% [ 34AL 3JIA13S aild SJ313N | Ss0[D punoduio)
00’8 091 o008 091
00°'s 001 00°s 00t
0S¢ 0s 0S¢ 0s
0s'1 0t 0s71 0t
001 174 001 0c
Y EYEVEUEITERT e $1333pV JUSW3IID[dsig

(wd3)
Awzede)

yaur 0T
your g

youl g
yu ¥
your

yur g
Yui st
yur T
yaul /g
youl 8/s

Aduajeainb Asusjeainb
|ealnoy prerm featnog JroT, 2215 131N

; SI913IAl 231A43S Autd

¢ S4913\ paepueas
0¢ 31av1l
udisaq a1ey/sisAjeuy 321AJ3S JO 150D 131EM

AGNLS 31vY Y3lvm
10141510 ¥31VM NOZvavd

5abiDy) Paxi] pasodoig



-

ZE 40 9 ‘sadiey) paxyy pasodolg

T e

$3bIDY) paxjJ pasodoid

9T5£'9£9'008:3344-||0} | WO ATSqU MMM :GIM

SAN Aq pasedalg

%0°0 %00T | vLO'ETZ'T S %0'00T | TOE'LSE'T S  jmol
%2C %Y°€ 69T'TY S %C'T p189T S UoIINIISUO)
%V'EL- %00 - S %YET SZSTI8T  § J0e1U0D
%v0- %S0 ov6's ) %6°0 86021 S SIBIBN BAIDS BU14
%701 %S'LT ov8'zrz  $ %E'L ¥91'66 S s1919A uonesiuy
%C'T- %00 99 S %C'T L8Y9T S SI919N {BLISNPU|
%U'T- %CL £8898 S %9°8 LE99TT  § SIDIIWN [B12IDWIWOD)
%E0- %8'T 9ST'TT S %LT T1E'8T S S13]9IA JUBLLIUIBAQD
%E0 %60 L20'TT S %9°'0 888/ S Jenuapisay Ajiued-nInA
%0t %489 mww mmw w %L'V9 LLE'BLE S [eruapIsay Ajiwed a)3uis

SSE|J J2woisn)
mﬁé_uﬂ&

SLINIWIHINDIY INNIATY 40 AYVININNS IIIAYIS-40-1S0D : €€ I18VL

%0°00T ; %5 %S¢ %el {
%00T PLO'ETT'T $ | €60°'S $ | 98€'09 s | Evv'86e 9 | s9£’68S S | 98L'65T7 S JuawaLnbay anuaaay 1aN |eIoL
%V'E 69Tty - S6E [44 44" TES'VT 0z8'c UOoNINIISUD)
%0°0 - - - - - - 3IoB1U0D
%50 ov6’s £60'S 6c¢t SST L0€ sS SN DIIAIBS 3414
%SLT ov8zIe - vee TL9°LS 888'ETT LSS'OY 5121317 uonesdi)
%00 99 - 99 - - - SJDIDN [BLISNPU]
%ZL £88'98 - 016t 8880t 6vC'1Y ov8'ze SJRIBN [BIDIBWILLI0T)
%8'T SST'1T - 9t 67S'S 81601 8YE'Y SIIIDN JUBWUIBA0D
%6°0 L20'TT - £9¢ 0€L'T 16€°S EV9'T |enuapisay Ajwed-nin
%L°89 688'c€8  $ S | BET'9S s |8vo'e6T1 S | T80'€6E S | 22S'S8T jernuapisay Ajwe4 aj8uls

310YS
51507 paiejay 340YS Paxi
s3,bay 53,bay A3y 2L S150) pajeey NS 343UWINJOA | S3S0D paie|ay

-u01139304d 5150 paiejay
=21 S150) palej3y Ipowwo) $3ssej) J3wo3Isn)

INUINIY 33N 2JIAIDS -13WOIsN)
944 -Alpede)
uwaOuwo_x_ woﬁou ->u_umamu

sjuauoduwio) uonedyisse})

(21901407 %02 / P33 %0¢) sjuawiaiinbay anuaaay 13N -52304 pasodod|
TZ/0Z0T A4 - SINIINTHINTIY INNIAIY 1IN A3LSNIAY 10 NOLLYIO1TV : Z€ 318VL

uSisaq aey/sisAjeuy adnIas Jo 350D 131eM
AQNLS 31VH HILYM
1O0141S1d Y31VM NOZVvavDd



S
2

/

-~

71\

ZE 40 £ ‘'sedsey) paxi4 pasodosd

9154949 008:9313-[0) | WO AOSSqU* MMM :GIM
SaN Aq paJedasd

J932W ay1 jo Aleded ainespAy ayl pue azis J2)aw Ag paledojje aue 531500 Ajsede) b
*SJ2WOISNI JO JaqWinu (303 3yl Aq 51502 JBWOISNI (103 3Y] Suipiap AQ JALWOISND YIBa 0) Paedoye 3. S1S0J JAWOoISN) '€
1-8 2|geL 52010y puo 5334 5210y 12I0M Jo S3|didUL, ‘TN JPNUDN YMMY (2|1} 32005

xs|x'pajojndiuo Z0IT02 ™ 1HOdIYIDYSN " U020q0) pud Xspez0ITOI AUVININNS SLIIV NYNI4 u0zogo) 53|y 32Inos
Ajyiuow sjjIg QM) "6T0T JBqWIBIRQ 40§ SSB JIWOISNI pue azis Aq sJ)aw Jo JaquinN T

i

bbE'BSE $ C $ 8009 S [898E S VvWY'EE § TLZ9 $ 1858 $ 0.8'8 $ v8v'9sz S safaey) 1919 AJUIUOIN WIDL) INUIAIY 8101
182'86T $ | - Tv6's 620'8€ vZETE T6’s sl (8Y'L 6£8°007 sagueyd Ayoeded
L5009 $ o S 99 S 6599 $ 6IT'T S 6ZE S 958 S €8T $ S¥9'sS S sadseyd Jawosn)
safsey) 19191 AjUYIUOIN WO} BNUAAIY |enuuy
vve'sse  $ 51500 1313 paxij je10L
8786 1507 Anoeden
LS008 S 53500 JOW0ISN)
sadieyd) 1219 AjYIUOIN O} PRIBIO|IY 5150 Paxl4 |enuuy
L8°V9T'VS |69°00SS 6E'TTES v6°£9TS ZS'v01$ |/00°5SS 0Z'SES 62525 [ adieydualaiN Ajyauoje3oL
8E6ST'VS | 9T'S6VS 16'9TES SP'8STS €0'665 [AN343 TL'6CS 18°61$ , (1auow/309y/5) s150) Ayoeden
6v°SS 6t°'SS$ 6°'SS 6v'5S 6t°'SS 6v'5$ 6'5S 6°SS ¢ (UIuoW/120y/$) 5150) JawoIsnd
sagiey) 3RS paxyd Ajyiuow
SS2'1T o 14 091 9¢T 114 €€ zE Sp8 s193N uajeainb3 fejog
0001C 00'sz 0091 008 00's 057 0S'T 00°T , 03904 Ayo0dD3 21inDIPAH
<T6 = T 1] /4% S €T 14 5v8 _SIUN0IY/sISIaN [e0L
9 = - 9 - - - - - uonaINsuo)
1T - . - Y 1 1 = z S1313N uonesdi)
T = T - - - - ~ - SJI9I8N |enIsSnpu
6¢ - - 4 T €T SIDISW {R1D12WWO)
L = = T - Z S99} JUBLUUIBADD
¥ - - - - € Jennuapisay Apwed-ninn
v58 5 0T S78 |enuapisay Apwed 3)3uis

. 9215 pue ssep)

[e3oL yaug 01 Youi v youl € YUl b /g you1 g/s

Aq S13313)A O JaqUINN
y " {3]qD1I0A %0Z / PaXIH %0E) Siuawainbay anuanay 13N -S230y pasodold)
TZ/020Z Ad Y04 SIDUYVHI IJIAYIS HILIN G3XI3 ATHLNOW 40 NOILYINITVI : vE 31av1

il el

udisag aiey/sisAjeuy 221AI3S J0 150D JAAEM
AQNLS 3LVYH H3LvMm
10141510 ¥31VvAM NOZvav)

$abiby) paxid pasodoid



S
2
Q
2

2E 30 8¢ ‘se8sey) paxiy pasodold

$3bIDYD) PaxiJ pasodoid

916/°9/£9'008:33.4-1101 | wo AoTsqu mmm :qapm
SON Aq pasedasg

“Ja1aw ay) jo Aydeded J1nespAy ay) pue azis J93aw Agq pajedojje ale 53503 Ajdede) ¢
‘SIWOISND JO JAQLUNU |B10] 243 AQ 51500 JAWOISND (2301 3Y) Suipiaip Ag J2W0ISN3 YIBI 0F PAIedO| (e 3Je $150D JBW0ISN) 'E
‘€-G 3|qe) *,32UDUBIUIDIY PuD BULIS3] ‘UOIIDIDISUS ‘UOIIIBIAS - SIAIBN J2I0M,, ‘OIN JONUOIN YMMY 3]l 931N0S 7

XS|X*pa1ondiuoiy”Z0IT0D LYOJIYIDYSN U0Z0GO] PUs XS[X ZOITOD AYYIWIWNS SLIJV NYNIJ U0Z0GD] s3]y 334nas
“Alyiuow s|jiq QMO 6T0Z J9qWadaQ Joj SSBJI JALLOISNI Pue 9215 AQ SIa1aW JO J3qUINN T

ew's s | vL8't 8vS'T s - $  sadiey) J213N AJYIUOIN WO INUIAJY |BI0L
€60°S weL't 15€°C - sadiey) Ayoede)
62¢€ s |Cet 86T S - $ sadJeyd Jswoisn)
sadiey) J219IA AJYIUOIA] WOL) BNUBABY |enuuy
zew's S 53507 1913 PIXIS [€10]
€60°S $3500) U0NI304d i g Aldede)
62€ S $1507) J2WOoIsN)
sagiey) 1339 AJYIuolA 03 Paledoy|y SIS0 Paxi4 |enuuy
9L°6TTS 8L°0LS SO'PES adiey) 123N Ajjuoiy jero]
LTYITS 0£'59S L5°'8CS , (UIuow/123y/3) 53503 Aldeded
6v°SS 6v'SS 6¥'5S ¢ (aUOW/120y/$) 5150 JBWO0ISN)
sadiey) anmas paxi4 Ajyuow
0¢s 08¢ ove - SJ313{\ Judjeainb] |ejoy
ooovt 0008 00°'S€ ; 0104 A320do) 2noIpAY
S Z € 3 SIUNOIY /s1833 N 1EI0L
S [ € ol $150) palejay - UoI3104d 3l

, 9US pue ssep)

Ag 519331l 40 J3qUINN

(2190107 %02 / paxid %0€] Siuawialnbay anuanay 3aN -sa30y pasodold|

T¢/020Z A4 04 SIDYVHDI IDIAY3IS ¥ILIW Fdid ATHANOW 30 NOLLYINITVYI : SE 318V

udisag arey/sisAjeuy 3dAIIS JO 150 JAIEM
AQNLS 31VY Y3Lvm
1D141SIa Y3LVM NOZVavd



w_
S

— 2€ 40 62 ‘sadiey awnjop pasodouy

|

9T5/'9.9°008:33.4-)|0L | WO A0BSQU MMM :GM

SN Aq pasedald
9T7'9% %89 €09'8/S $ | TBO'E6E $ | 22S'S8T S ST6'E6 leloL
S9°STS %L PE 965'16¢ TZ¥'LST 9/TLE 618'8T - € 4911
1€'8% %012 €66°2LT 099'SET EEETY 0£b'12 129 rACIE
86'1S %S'TT €10°90T § - s | €t0'90T $ 999t L TJ31L

(324/9)

s3jey paJail

3NU3AJY 31eYy
J1433WNIoN
|e3101 JO %

sadiey)
‘|OA WOody
1,bay ‘Asy
1ad.e] 230

51500 $350D
paudissy paudissy
Ajpede) Ajpowiwio)

, (aA/ay)
uondwnsuo)
13180\

sajey paJaill

eoig 19|
R g [elnuspisay Ajiwed-a|3uls

i,
= .4-.1...

M)

I

LETIGVL

XS|x"PajondiuD T Z0IT0D LY0dIYIDVSN U0ZDGO) pup XsiX'7OIT0I AYYININNS SLIDV NYNI ~uozoqo) :sapf asinos
's{11q AjyIuo W aJe ydIym BIBP J2WOISNI GTOZ AMD 243 UO paseq S| elep uoidwnsuo) 7
*Alyluow s|iq AMD ‘6102 ‘_maEuumo 10 SSB|3 J9L01SND _ucm az15 >n $J1919W JO ‘_mnE:z b

%0L 2ST'6b8 9| G9E'68S  $ | 98L'6SZ S| 6OS'TET L16 jejo)
waofiun %E'C 2S€'82 TESVT 078’ VEG'T 9 UOJIINIISU0D)
wiofiun %00 [4}3 L0t sq 8¢ S SJDIDIN DJIAISS B4
wuofiun %L°CT SHY'vST 888'ETT £850F TES'0C IT s1213N uonesdiwy
wuofiun TAVAS %00 2 & = 0 T SI1219W |elISnpuU|
wiofiun %E'S 680'v9 6V’ Ty ov8'ze 795'TT 6¢C SI9I9A [eIdJBWIWOD)
uuofiun %E'T 997'sT 816°0T 8YE'Y 1022 L SJIJBN JUBWUIAA0D
wuofiun %L°0 ¥€0'8 T6€'S £€%9°C 8EE'T ¥ jenuapisay Ajlweg-inn

paiail 91°9% %L LY £€09°'8/S S| TBO'E6E S| TZs'S8BT S ST6'E6 ¥58 |enuapisay Ajiwed 3|3uig

TR ORI

“(3/90H7 %0L / P¥13 %60€) Uauiaiinbay anuiansy o 5108 pasodord|

$abiny) awnjoA pasodoid

9¢ 319vL

T¢/0¢0T Ad HO4 SIDYVHI JIHIIWNTOA AISOdOUd

udisag ey /sishjeuy adJAI3S JO 150 Jdlem
AQNLS 31vY IV
12141510 ¥31LVM NOZvavDd



4] 16

ZE JO OE ‘sa1ey pasodoud 1g Juann)

9T5£°9£9'008:93.4-]|01 | WO rofsqu mmm :gam
SEN Ag pasedaid

79'LTS TTLTS 19'9T$ Zr9ts §9'STS (AR PY+T £ 4911
GE'6S 80'65 18'8% 65'8% 1€'8$ GE'ES PYvI-8 z 4911
[4Ar4 91'7$ oT'zs £0°CS 86'TS €9°TS PY L0 T431L
jesig pasodoid
{(s49w03Isn) Y4S) aley pasall
v/N V/N v/N 90'v$ v6°€S £8°ES 3)ey 1enuo)
L8'SS 69°SS £5°SS 1r'LS 0zT'LS 9675 (uondnJISUOD + Y4S-UON) a1ey wiojun
:pawINsu0) Ja1eM JO oy 1ad ajey
3 sabIDY; -
6LVETS 98'0ETS S0°LTTS GEETTS 9.'6TTS TT°212S your g
L9°6LS SE'LLS 60'GLS 16'2LS 8L°0LS T9°0ETS Your g
€€'8ES 1T°L€$ €T°9€$ 80°5€S SO'VES ¥S19S Your
:saduey) aa1AaS 3414 AJYIUOIA
€9'/8€$ PE9LES 8€'G9ES €/°¥SES O PPES €1°98T$ (Youi g) ss18 N UONDNIISUO)
09'/89vS | LO'ISS'PS | TSBIV'PS | SO'69€TS | SO00ECS | 90°€er'es (Yaui OT) 32E43U0)
61'€95$ 80°LYSS PTTESS L9'STSS 59'005$ LLYISTS Youl
98'29¢$ 6C'TSES €0°ZPES 90'ZEE€S 6E'T2ES LT'TL6S your g
[AR£:18 PT6LTS T6'ELTS 98'89TS ¥6°€9TS ¥0'06¥S Your g
P9LTTS TTPITS 68°0TTS 99'/0TS 75'v0TS 17°60€S Youi g1
16'T9% 01°09% GE'8GS §9'9GS 00°55$ 15'85TS Yyourt
T9°6€$ 9t'8€$ VELES ST'9€S 07'G€$ ¥7°865 youl p/€
VAA: 14 ¥9°LTS £8'92% S0'9z$ 67°STS 01°39% Youi 8/
“mwm‘_mcu 9DIAIDS poaxi4 >_r_uco_>_

sajey

UEYIT b

$ajpy pasodo.d ® Juaiin)

8¢ 318Vl

*$3LVY HILYM 03SOd0Ud "SA LNIHHND

udisag aiey/sisAjeuy 82IA19S JO 150D J9leM
AQNULS 31vY H3lvm
12144S1a Y3LVM NOZVEV)



\&DS/ Wie-

Z€ 40 1€ afed ‘dwo) g H4S

915/'9/9°008:93.3-]|0L | WO A0SSqU MMM (G
SGN Aq pasedaud

(40H) uonndwnsuo) 1318 Ajyauon
ST el TT

<
o
=
-
>

1'g Al

pasodoud - ||!g ¥4S ™
juauin) - |jig ¥4S

(1919w ,,8/5) se1ey pasodoud SA Jua4in)
uosiaedwo) ||ig 1918/ |EIIUDPISDY



o [t

Z€ J0 7€ 9364 ‘dwo) ||1g |eRIBWWO)

N

915£°9/9°008:33.4-||0L | WOI'AOBSqGU MMM :qaM

(40H) uonndwnsuo) 1338 Ajyuon

iy
v
b
e
i
<
b

H

pasodoud - {jig |e1PJaWWO) |

Ua.uN) - ||ig [e12JI3WIWO) &

(4919w youi-g/g) se1ey pasodo.d ‘SA juatin)
uosiiedwo) |jig J91e/\ jeruawwo)

SEN Ag pasedauy



